——

FALLBROOK PﬁELIC UTILITY DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
COMBINED NOVEMBER/DECEMBER REGULAR BOARD MEETING AND
PUBLIC HEARING
AGENDA
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
MONDAY, DECEMBER 11, 2017 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028
4:00 P.M. PHONE: (760) 728-1125

If you have a disability and need an accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call the
Secretary at (760) 728-1125, ext. 1130 for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.

Writings that are public records and are distributed during a public meeting are available for public
inspection at the meeting if prepared by the local agency or a member of its legislative body or after the
meeting if prepared by some other person.

l. PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL/ESTABLISH A QUORUM

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b)
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. The Board President may limit comments to three (3) minutes.

A. ELECTION OF OFFICERS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. President
2. Vice-President

B. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARD STANDING COMMITTEES
1. Fiscal Policy & Insurance
2. Personnel
3. Water Resources

Il CONSENT CALENDAR (ITEMS C-G)
All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single motion. Items shall
be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the Board of Directors or the public

001



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Combined Nov/Dec Regular Board Meeting
and Public Hearing Agenda Page 2 December 11, 2017

requests removal prior to a vote on a motion to approve the items. Such items shall be
considered separately for action by the Board.

C. PROPOSED 2018 BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE

Recommendation: The Board establish the 2018 Board of Directors’ meeting schedule,
as proposed, to include postponing the May regular meeting by one day to Tuesday,
May 29, 2018, and combining the November and December regular Board meetings to
Monday, December 10, 2018.

D. ADVANCE APPROVAL TO ATTEND MEETINGS

Recommendation: The Board authorize Advance Approval to Attend Meetings for
Directors’ attendance to the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Tour
hosted by the San Diego County Water Authority: Colorado River Aqueduct System
Inspection Tour, January 19-20, 2018.

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Regular Board Meeting of October 23, 2017
2. Special Board Meeting of October 31, 2017
3. Special Board Meeting of November 15, 2017

Recommendation: The Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned meetings of
the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.

F. SMITH QUITCLAIM REQUEST
RESOLUTION NO. 4918

Recommendation: That the Board approve the attached quitclaim and the adoption of
Resolution No. 4918.

G. NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE BEAVERCREEK PIPELINE
REPLACEMENT PROJECT, JOB NO. 2980

Recommendation: That the Board authorize staff to file the attached Notice of
Completion with the San Diego County Recorder.

lll. ACTION/DISCUSSION CALENDAR (ITEM H)

H. RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL OF SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
SANTA MARGARITA RIVER CONJUNCTIVE USE PROJECT UPDATE
RESOLUTION NO. 4919

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the Board President and District water
counsel to execute the Settlement Agreement substantially in the form of Attachment 2,
and its filing with the Federal Court for approval, and adopt Resolution No. 4919.

002



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Combined Nov/Dec Regular Board Meeting
and Public Hearing Agenda Page 3 December 11, 2017

[Action/ Discussion Calendar Continued following Public Hearing]

IV.  PUBLIC HEARING (ITEMI)

l. PUBLIC HEARING ON THE IMPOSITION OF PROPOSED INCREASED
RATES FOR WATER AND RECYCLED WATER SERVICE CHARGES, AND
RATES FOR WASTEWATER SERVICE CHARGES

Recommendation: That the Board open a public hearing to allow the public an
opportunity to address the Board concerning the proposal to increase rates for water
and recycled water service charges, and rates for wastewater service charges, and,
upon hearing all such oral protests and receiving written protests, close the public
hearing.

V. ACTION/DISCUSSION CALENDAR (CONTINUED) (ITEMS J-L)

J. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION NO. 4920 APPROVING THE
INCREASED RATES FOR WATER AND RECYCLED WATER SERVICE
CHARGES, AND RATES FOR WASTEWATER SERVICE CHARGES AND
TAKING OTHER RELATED ACTIONS

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 4920 adopting the rates for
water and recycled water service charges, and rates for wastewater service charges.

K. AMI METER SERVICE REPLACEMENT PROGRAM: YEAR 3

Recommendation: That the Board approve the purchase of Badger meters from
National Meter and Automation, for $352,030.03, including sales tax. In addition, to
purchase the associated transmitter from Inland Water Works Supply Co. for 100W
ERTs, for $169,017.30, including sales tax, in order to replace existing drive-by radio-
read meters that have reached the end of their useful life with fixed network AMI meters
that will provide additional real-time water usage monitoring tools for the District’s
customers.

L. CONSIDER APPOINTING THE DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE ON THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY;
RESOLUTION NO. 4921

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 4921 appointing Acting
General Manager Jack Bebee as the District representative on the Board of Directors of
the San Diego County Water Authority.

V. ORAL/WRITTEN REPORTS (ITEMS 1-9)

1. General Legal Counsel

003



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Combined Nov/Dec Regular Board Meeting

and Public Hearing Agenda Page 4 December 11, 2017

N

General Manager/SDCWA Representative
a. Report from the San Diego County Water Authority Representative
3. Acting General Manager/Assistant General Manager/District Engineer
Acting General Manager Report
Engineering Report Summary
Annual Production; Total Potable Production
Ag and M&I Sales; Recycled Water Production & Sales
12-Month Running Water Sales
Meter Exchange; Backflow Testing
Sewer Overflow/Spills
4. ASS|stant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer
a. Treasurer's Report
b. Financial Statements
c. Warrant List
Public Affairs Specialist
Notice of Approval of Per Diem for Meetings Attended
Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended
Log of Board Requests
Miscellaneous

@™o o0oTw

©CoNoo

Vil. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

* % % % %

DECLARATION OF POSTING

I, Mary Lou West, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public
Utility District, do hereby declare that | posted a copy of the foregoing agenda in the
glass case at the entrance of the District Office located at 990 East Mission Road,
Fallbrook, California, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting in accordance with
Government Code § 54954.2(a).

I, Mary Lou West, further declare under penalty of perjury and under the laws of
the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

December 8, 2017 i
Dated / Fallbrook, CA Secretdky, Board of Directors

004



TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jack Bebee, Acting General Manager
DATE: December 11, 2017

MEMO

Y,

SUBJECT: Election of Officers to the Board of Directors

Pursuant to Administrative Code Article 2.2.1, Election of Officers, the officers of the
Board of Directors shall consist of a President and a Vice-President chosen by the
members, and the election of officers will be placed on the agenda in December of

each year.

The following is a list of Board members who have held office as President and Vice
President for the past five years:

Year President Vice President
2017 Charley Wolk Al Gebhart
2016 Milt Davies Charley Wolk
2015 Don McDougal Milt Davies
2014 Al Gebhart Don McDougal
2013 Bert Hayden Al Gebhart

The Acting General Manager will conduct the election:
the gavel over to the new Board President who will preside over the remainder of the

meeting.

and upon its conclusion, will turn

005



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jack Bebee, Acting General Manager , d l%
DATE: December 11, 2017

SUBJECT: Appointments to Board Standing Committees

Purpose

To appoint members to the three Board standing committees as prescribed in the
Administrative Code.

Summary

Each year after the Election of Officers, and in accordance with Administrative Code
Section 2.2.2, Duties of President, the President of the Board of Directors shall appoint
members to serve on the standing committees.

As of December 1, 2017, the appointments to the Board standing committees were as
follows:

o Fiscal Policy & Insurance: Directors Gebhart and Woik
e Personnel: Directors Davies and DeMeo
e Water Resources: Directors McDougal and Wolk

Recommended Action

That the Board President appoint members of the Board of Directors to the Fiscal
Policy & Insurance, Personnel, and Water Resources standing committees as
prescribed by the Administrative Code.

006



MEMO

TO: Board of Directors ’(‘(\\O

FROM: Mary Lou West, Secretary

DATE: December 11, 2017

SUBJECT: Proposed 2018 Board of Directors Regular Meeting Schedule

Purpose

To establish the 2018 Board meeting dates.

Summary

Administrative Code Article 2.5, Time and Place of Board Meetings, establishes the
fourth Monday of each month as the time and place for regular Board meetings.

For 2018, the Memorial Day holiday will be observed on Monday, May 28 and falls on
the fourth Monday of the month conflicting with the regular board meeting schedule. As
a result, the proposal is to postpone the May regular board meeting date by one day to
Tuesday, May 29.

In addition, it has been the Board’s practice to combine the November and December
regular Board meetings into one meeting to accommodate the fall/winter holiday
schedule.

The proposed 2018 schedule includes postponing the May regular Board meeting date
by one day and combining the November and December Board meetings, as follows:

Month Day Month Day Month ay Month ~ Day
January |22 | April 23 | July 23 | October |22
, : Combined
February |26 May 29 August 27 November | with
: December
March 26 June 25 September | 24 December | 70
Recommendation

The Board establish the 2018 Board of Directors’ meeting schedule, as proposed, to
include postponing the May regular meeting by one day to Tuesday, May 29, 2018, and
combining the November and December regular Board meetings to Monday, December
10, 2018.

007



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Mary Lou West, Secretary M
DATE: December 11, 2017

SUBJECT: Advance Approval to Attend Meetings

Purpose

To authorize Directors’ attendance, travel, and expenses to an event requiring advance
approval by the Board of Directors.

Summary

Compensation for attendance and reimbursement for expenses at other occasions,
events, or meetings related to District business, other than those listed in Article 2.12 of
the Administrative Code, shall be determined by the Board of Directors in advance.

In addition, Article 12.1.3 (1) provides that travel associated with the attendance of
meetings or functions for Directors shall be approved in advance by the Board of
Directors at a regular meeting under “Advance Approval to Attend Meetings.”
Director DeMeo has requested advance approval for the following event:
1. Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Tour hosted by the San
Diego County Water Authority: Colorado River Aqueduct System Inspection
Tour, January 19-20, 2018.

Directors must apply for the tour prior to Friday, December 15, 2017, and space is
limited.

Recommended Action

The Board authorize Advance Approval to Attend Meetings for Directors’ attendance to
the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Tour hosted by the San Diego
County Water Authority: Colorado River Aqueduct System Inspection Tour, January
19-20, 2018.

008



o

San Diego County
Water Authority

Colorado River Aqueduct System Inspection Trip
January 19-20, 2018

Dear Mary Lou,

| am pleased to notify you about my two-day
inspection trip of the Colorado River Aqueduct
System on Friday and Saturday, January 19-20,
2018.

The tour is sponsored by the Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California (MWD) and hosted
by the San Diego County Water Authority. This
tour provides a unique and highly impactful
opportunity to learn about current and historical
water issues affecting our region from a statewide
and local perspective. The tour will also provide a greater understanding of the
water supply challenges that affect our region's economy and quality of life.

Anticipated stops include the San Vicente Dam, Diamond Valley Lake, the Salton
Sea, Parker Dam, Copper Basin, and Whitsett Pumping Plant.

All transportation, lodging, and meals are provided by MWD. However,
participation on these trips by certain California governmental officials, public
officials, or public agency staff may constitute a reportable gift under California
and local ethics laws. Please contact your general counsel or legal department
regarding the reporting requirements that may apply.

If you are interested in joining me on the trip, please complete the below
application to be considered for participation.

Sincerely,
Elsa Saxod
Director

009



' San Diego County Water Authority
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

Application and Security Check Process )

Deadline: Friday, December 15, 2017

Space on the tour is limited; please complete the application today! All potential
participants will be required to provide information for security clearance. Please
click HERE to apply for the tour. The deadline to submit individual applicant
information is Friday, December 15.

About a week after the application period has closed, applicants will receive an
email notifying them if they are on the tour. Should you have any questions or
concerns about the trip, please email MWDProgramTours@sdcwa.org.

Thank you. k

Questions?

We look forward to seeing you and
sharing this important information
about our most precious resource. If
you have any additional questions or
specific needs, please email us

at MWDProgramTours@sdcwa.org.

010



San Diego County Water Authority | 4677 Overland Ave, San Diego, CA 92123

Unsubscribe maryloub@fpud.com

Update Profile | About our service provider

Sent by mwdprogramtours@sdcwa.org in collaboration with

Constant Contact’, :”

Try it free today

011



MEMO

TO: Board of Directors (‘(\U)
FROM: Mary Lou West, Secretary
DATE: December 11, 2017

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes

Recommendation

The Board approve the minutes of the following meetings of the Board of Directors of
the Fallbrook Public Utility District:

1. Regular Board Meeting of October 23, 2017

2. Special Board Meeting of October 31, 2017

3. Special Board Meeting and Public Comment and Information Meeting of
November 15, 2017

012



Minutes of the October 23, 2017 Regular Board
Meeting

013



MONDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2017

4:00 P.M.

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

MINUTES

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028

PHONE: (760) 728-1125

l PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM

President Wolk called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Fallbrook Public Utility District to order at 4:00 p.m. A quorum was established with
attendance as follows:

Board of Directors

Present:

Absent:
District Staff

Present:

Milt Davies, Member (arrived at 4:05 p.m.)
Jennifer DeMeo, Member

Al Gebhart, Member/Vice-President

Don McDougal, Member

Charley Wolk, Member/President

None

Paula de Sousa Mills, General Legal Counsel

Jack Bebee, Acting General Manager

David Shank, Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer
Jason Cavender, System Operations Manager

Mick Cothran, Drought Management Coordinator

Noelle Denke, Public Affairs Specialist

Jeff Marchand, Engineering Supervisor

Mary Lou West, Secretary

Also present were others, including, but not limited to: Steven and Kimberley Taylor,

Helene Brazier, Archie and Patricia McPhee, and Meena Westford of the Metropolitan
Water District of Southern California.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

President Wolk led the Pledge of Allegiance.

014



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 October 23, 2017

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b)
There were no additions to the agenda.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION:  Director McDougal moved to approve the agenda as submitted; Director
DeMeo seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT:  Director Davies

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. The Board President may
limit comments to three (3) minutes.

Mr. Stephen Taylor, who identified himself as a resident of De Luz Heights,
stepped to the podium to discuss his request to downsize his water meter from two
inches to one and one-half inches. Mr. Taylor represented that District staff initially told
him his new meter would be installed within one week and was subsequently told it may
take four to six weeks. Mr. Taylor expressed concern that he is continuing to pay for a
larger meter that he requested to be downsized six weeks ago. Mr. Taylor requested he
be charged for a one and one-half inch meter pending processing.

Mr. Bebee stated he would work with Mr. Taylor to address the issue and
suggested changing the District’s policy concerning charges and requests to downsize
meters and make billing change occur upon the request for a meter downsize.

Il. CONSENT CALENDAR (ITEMS A—C)
All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single
motion. Items shall be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the
Board of Directors or the public requests removal prior to a vote on a motion to
approve the items. Such items shall be considered separately for action by the
Board.

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Regular Board Meeting of September 25, 2017
2. Special Board Meeting of October 17, 2017

Recommendation: The Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned meetings of
the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.

015



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 October 23, 2017

B. CLAIM FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE

Recommendation: That the Board deny the Claim for Property Damage by Mrs.
Hansen for her driveway and forward the Claim to the Association of California Water
Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority for resolution.

C. COMPLETION OF “OF COUNSEL” SERVICES

Recommendation: That the Board discharge the services of Of Counsel to the District,
pursuant to Section 6 of the Contract for “Of Counsel” Legal Services by and between
the Fallbrook Public Utility District and Robert H. James, effective on October 31, 2017,
and that written notice of discharge be provided.

MOTION:  Director McDougal moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted,;
Director DeMeo seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT:  None

. INFORMATION (ITEM D)

D. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA (MWD)
ISSUES UPDATE

e UPDATE ON CALIFORNIA WATER FIX AND MWD BAY DELTA ACTIONS
MWD FINANCIAL PLANNING PRACTICES
e MWD’S LOCAL RESOURCES PROGRAM

Presented by: Meena Westford, Special Projects Manager of the Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California

Meena Westford, Special Projects Manager of the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California (MWD), stepped to the podium and stated she would be providing
an update on MWD issues.

Ms. Westford presented a slide show and began with an overview of MWD’s
Integrated Resources Plan, which is a plan to provide water supplies under a wide
range of potential future conditions and risks.

Following, Ms. Westford discussed the Local Resources Program for water
recycling, groundwater recovery, and incentives paid for water produced. Ms. Westford
also discussed the California WaterFix program and MWD Bay-Delta actions.

016



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 4 October 23, 2017

Ms. Westford concluded with a brief question and answer period and offered to
provide a presentation on the California WaterFix program to the Board of Directors at a
future meeting.

IV. ACTION / DISCUSSION CALENDAR (ITEMS E—L)

E. AWARD OF HARRIS PUMP STATION ELECTRICAL IMPROVEMENTS

Recommendation: That the Board authorize award of the Harris Pump Station
Electrical Improvements project to the lowest responsible bidder of California Building
Evaluation and Construction, Inc. at an amount of $392,750.

Mr. Bebee stated the electrical gear at the Harris Pump Station is reaching the
end of its useful life and replacement parts are not available. Mr. Bebee further stated
variable speed drives would be added to the pump station to increase energy efficiency.
The recommendation is to award the project to California Building Evaluation and
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $392,750.

MOTION: Vice-President Gebhart moved to approve staff's recommendation;
Director McDougal seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

F. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR SHARED FACILITY USE WITH
NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the Acting General Manager to execute
the “Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for Shared Facility Use” between Fallbrook
Public Utility District and North County Fire Protection District to develop the District
boardroom into an Emergency Operations Center to better coordinate emergency
response between the agencies.

Mr. Bebee indicated the District has been working with the North County Fire
Protection District (NCFPD) to make the boardroom a shared Emergency Operation
Center. This document would give the two parties a framework regarding the joint
sharing of the cost as well as some training. Mr. Bebee stated the recommendation is
for the Board to authorize the Acting General Manager to execute the “Memorandum of
Understanding for Shared Facility Use” between the District and NCFPD.

MOTION:  Director McDougal moved to approve staff’'s recommendation; Vice-
President Gebhart seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk

017



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 5 October 23, 2017

NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

G. CONSIDERATION OF COMPENSATION FOR ACTING GENERAL MANAGER
(INCLUDING APPROVAL OF AMENDED SALARY SCHEDULE)

Recommendation of the Board President Based on Completion of Negotiations: That
the Board authorize a temporary 10% increase in compensation to the Assistant
General Manager, effective September 11, 2017, for additional service as the Acting
General Manager of the District, and approve an amended Salary Schedule. That the
Board further direct the General Counsel and District Human Resources Manager to
draft a letter agreement for execution by the Board President and the Acting General
Manager memorializing the increase in compensation other legally required provisions.

President Wolk specified he was authorized to be the negotiator regarding a
change in Mr. Bebee’s compensation for serving as Acting General Manager. An
agreement was reached providing for a temporary 10% increase to Mr. Bebee’s current
salary while he also covers the role of Acting General Manager in addition to Assistant
General Manager. President Wolk clarified the agreement is retroactive to the time Mr.
Bebee assumed the duties of the General Manager and the temporary pay increase will
terminate when a new General Manager is appointed.

MOTION:  Director McDougal moved to approve staff's recommendation; Director
DeMeo seconded.

Director Davies requested the job title “Assistant General Manager” be revised to
“Assistant General Manager/District Engineer.”

MOTION:  Director McDougal stated he is amending his original motion to add
revising the job title of Assistant General Manager to Assistant General
Manager/District Engineer; Director DeMeo seconded. Motion carried;

VOTE:
AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

H. MODIFICATIONS TO DIRECTOR PER DIEM (ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
SECTIONS 2.12 AND 12.1.1)
ORDINANCE NO. 341
RESOLUTION NO. 4917

Recommendation: The Personnel Committee recommends the following: (1) The Board
adopt Ordinance No. 341 decreasing the amount of the per diem compensation. The

018



Fallbrook Public Utility District

Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 6 October 23, 2017

recommended amount is $100 per day, and (2) The Board adopt Resolution No. 4917
to make changes to the District’'s Administrative Code regarding meetings and other
events eligible for compensation and reimbursement.

Director Davies reported the Personnel Committee met to review the per diem
compensation rate for Directors and is recommending the rate be reduced to $100 per
day. Director DeMeo expressed her support of reducing the rate to $100 per day.

Mr. Bebee noted the item includes clarifying meetings subject to per diem
compensation and suggested the Board consider including meetings between the Board
President and the General Manager.

MOTION:  Director Davies moved to adopt Ordinance No. 341 decreasing the
amount of per diem compensation to $100 per day; Director McDougal
seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION:  Director McDougal moved to adopt Resolution No. 4917, to include adding
two meetings per month between the Board President and the General
Manager to the list of approved meetings that do not require advance
approval; Vice-President Gebhart seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk

NOES: Director Davies

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

I POTENTIAL FUNDING FOR LOCAL SUPPLY DEVELOPMENT

Recommendation: This item is for discussion only. No action is required.

Mr. Shank explained the District is moving forward with the application process to
secure funding from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California’s Local
Resource Program through the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA).

Mr. Bebee added that the application must be completed before the start of
construction of the Santa Margarita Conjunctive Use Project. In response to Director
McDougal, Mr. Bebee stated the application must be processed through the SDCWA.

J. UPDATES TO “REGULATIONS FOR USE OF THE SANTA MARGARITA
RIVER PROPERTY OWNED BY THE DISTRICT”
ORDINANCE NO. 340

019



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 7 October 23, 2017

Recommendation: That the Board adopt Ordinance No. 340 revising the “Regulations
for Use of the Santa Margarita River Property Owned by the District’ to add a new
subsection to prohibit operating drones within the Santa Margarita River Property.

Mr. Bebee explained Director Davies requested the ordinance that governs the
“‘Regulations for Use of the Santa Margarita River Property Owned by the District” be
revised to add a new subsection to prohibit operating drones within the property.

Mr. Bebee noted that drones are allowed on the property for public safety or with
the District’s approval.

MOTION:  Director Davies moved to adopt Ordinance No. 340 modifying the
“Regulations for Use of the Santa Margarita River Property Owned by the
District”; Director McDougal seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

K. WATER MANAGEMENT AT HEYNEMAN PARK

Recommendation: Approve the development of a policy for users with a community
benefit discount based on their usage and an established water budget for the property.

Mr. Bebee reported that staff performed an audit of water usage at Heyneman
Park and found a leak in the irrigation system that was subsequently repaired. As a
result, the community water usage program was reviewed and staff is recommending
developing a policy to establish water budgets for community groups.

Discussion ensued, and the Board clarified Mr. Bebee would be developing a
policy for consideration by the Board and brought back to the Board for approval prior to
implementation.

MOTION: Director Davies moved to approve staff's recommendation; Vice-President
Gebhart seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None
ABSTAIN:  None
ABSENT: None

L. POTENTIAL NOMINATION TO THE SAN DIEGO CHAPTER OF THE
CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION BOARD

Recommendation: Staff supports the Board'’s direction.

020



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 8 October 23, 2017

Mr. Bebee announced the San Diego Chapter of the California Special Districts
Association is recruiting nominations for two positions on their Board.

President Wolk noted the nomination form is in the Board packet and is due next
week.

V. ORAL / WRITTEN REPORTS (ITEMS 1-8)

1. General Legal Counsel

e Mrs. de Sousa Mills provided an update on legislation affecting water
districts. Mrs. de Sousa Mills reported that SB 5 would be on the June
2018 ballot. SB 5 is a $4 billion bond for water and park projects, and $10
million is earmarked for the Santa Margarita River.

2. SDCWA Representative

e Mr. Bebee pointed out that Dr. Brady’s report included a letter from
Eastern Municipal Water District supporting a cooperative approach
between MWD and SDCWA.

o Director Davies requested that Dr. Brady provide an executive summary of
topics impacting the District. Mr. Bebee stated he would ask Dr. Brady to
include key issues for the District in his reports.

3. Acting General Manager

e Mr. Bebee reported a draft letter from the Department of Navy was
received that approved the settlement for the Santa Margarita River
Conjunctive Use Project. Additionally, SRF funding is expected once the
water rights issues are resolved.

e Mr. Bebee reported staff is working on the presentation for the November
15, 2017 meeting on rates that will be reviewed by the Fiscal Policy &
Insurance Committee on November 13.

e Mr. Bebee reported the next Village News ad would identify water sources
and costs to ratepayers.

4. Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer

e Mr. Shank noted the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee provided
direction on enhancing the budget status report moving forward. The goal
is to have the new format for the Board in January.

e Mr. Shank reported the audit would be reviewed by the Fiscal Policy &
Insurance Committee on November 13 and submitted to the Board on
November 15.

021



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 9 October 23, 2017

5. Public Affairs Specialist

e Mrs. Denke provided an update concerning the Prop 218 Notice sent to
ratepayers and recent presentations made at local schools.

6. Notice of Approval of Per Diem for Meetings Attended
7. Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended

e President Wolk suggested projects be removed from the Engineering
Report when completed.

e President Wolk inquired on the status of the bid that was returned to staff
for reprocessing for purchase of a truck with an aluminum body instead of
a steel body.

8. Log of Board Requests
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 5:25 p.m. following an oral
announcement of Closed Session Item VI., 1. by Mrs. de Sousa Mills.

VI. CLOSED SESSION

1. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS PER GC §
54956.8:

PROPERTY: 1492 NORTH STAGECOACH LANE, FALLBROOK, CA
AGENCY NEGOTIATORS: JACK BEBEE, JEFF MARCHAND
NEGOTIATING PARTIES: BRUCE E. SCHWANDT, TRACEY L.
SCHWANDT
UNDER NEGOTIATION: TERMS

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

The Board returned from Closed Session and reconvened to Open Session at
6:05 p.m.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION (As Necessary)

There was no reportable action taken in Closed Session.

022



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes Page 10 October 23, 2017

Vil. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

There being no further business to discuss, President Wolk adjourned the regular
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District at 6:07 p.m.

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

023



Minutes of the October 31, 2017 Special Board
Meeting

024



FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
MINUTES
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 31, 2017 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028
8:00 A.M. PHONE: (760) 728-1125

I PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM

President Wolk called the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Fallbrook Public Utility District to order at 8:00 a.m. A quorum was established with
attendance as follows:

Board of Directors

Present: Charley Wolk, Member / President
Al Gebhart, Member / Vice-President
Milt Davies, Member
Jennifer DeMeo, Member
Don McDougal, Member

Absent: None
District Staff
Present: Ace Rule, Human Resources Manager

Also present were others, including, but not limited to: There were no others present.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

President Wolk led the Pledge of Allegiance.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

The agenda was approved as submitted.
PUBLIC COMMENT

There were no comments from members of the public.

025



Fallbrook Public Utility District

Special Board Meeting
Minutes Page 2 October 31, 2017

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 8:15 a.m. for discussion of Closed
Session Item Il. 1., following an oral reading of the item.

. CLOSED SESSION
1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT PER GC § 54957

TITLE: GENERAL MANAGER (RECRUITMENT OF GENERAL MANAGER
DUE TO RETIREMENT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER ON JANUARY 12,

2018)
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

The Board returned from Closed Session and reconvened to Open Session at
11:05 a.m.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION (As Necessary)

As to Closed Session Agenda Item Il. 1., by Motion of Director McDougal,
Seconded by Director Davis, the Board unanimously voted to select Bob Murray &
Associates to provide executive recruitment services for the position of general
manager due to the retirement of the current general manager on January 12, 2018.

. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

There being no further business to discuss, President Wolk adjourned the
Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District at 11:20
p.m.

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

026



Minutes of the November 15, 2017 Special Board
Meeting and Public Comment and Information
Meeting

027



FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AND
PUBLIC COMMENT AND INFORMATION MEETING

MINUTES
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2017 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028
6:00 P.M. PHONE: (760) 728-1125

L PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL/ ESTABLISH A QUORUM

President Wolk called the Special Board Meeting and Public Comment and
Information Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District to
order at 6:03 p.m. A quorum was established and attendance was as follows:

Board of Directors

Present: Charley Wolk, Member / President
Al Gebhart, Member / Vice-President
Milt Davies, Member
Jennifer DeMeo, Member
Don McDougal, Member

Absent: None
District Staff
Present: Lutfi Kharuf, General Legal Counsel

Jack Bebee, Acting General Manager

David Shank, Assistant General Manager / Chief Financial Officer
Mavis Canpinar, Customer Service Representative |

Jason Cavender, System Operations Manager

Mick Cothran, Drought Management Coordinator

Noelle Denke, Public Affairs Specialist

Kelly Laughlin, Administrative Office Specialist

Jeff Marchand, Engineering Supervisor

Mary Lou West, Secretary

Also present were others including, but not limited to, the foliowing: Charles Bertolino,
Debbie McCain, Gary Hesser, Al Erikson, Michael Summers, Michael McGuire, Alan
Geraci, Dan Coxe, Ryan Promack, Mary Cicernelle, David Promack, John Merkel, Janet
Kennington, Jimmy Aivaliotis, Larry Sinagub, Connor DeCuir, Jeanne Meadow, Roger
Milner, Dale Kaye, Bruce Helbert, Nick Stamos, Jill Pettigrew, Robert Landes, Barbara

028



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Special Board / Public Comment and Information Meeting
Minutes Page 2 November 15, 2017

Jarnes, Jason Burgess, Belinda Maxwell, Pat Bennie, and Sanjay Gaur, Vice-President
of Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
President Wolk led the Pledge of Allegiance.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION:  Vice-President Gebhart moved to approve the agenda as presented;
Director Davies seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

PUBLIC COMMENT

President Wolk invited comments from members of the public on items not
identified in the agenda and within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.

There were no comments from members of the public.

L. OPEN SESSION (ITEM A)

A. ACCEPTANCE OF AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-17

Recommendation: That the Board accept the audited financial statements for FY 2016-
17 as recommended by the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee.

Mr. Shank reported that Macias Gini & O’Connell, LLP, an independent
accounting firm, completed the audit for fiscal year 2016-17. Mr. Shank provided an
overview of highlights from the report noting the operating loss grew slightly from $1.8
million to $2.6 million and cash and investments decreased from $15.9 million to $14.1
million. Mr. Shank added the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee met with the
auditors several times and has reviewed the report and is recommending acceptance of
the audit for fiscal year 2016-17.

MOTION:  Vice-President Gebhart moved to approve staff's recommendation to
accept the audited financial statements for FY 2016-17 as recommended
by the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee; Director McDougal
seconded. Motion carried; VOTE:

AYES: Directors Davies, DeMeo, Gebhart, McDougal, and Wolk

029



Fallbrook Public Utility District
Special Board / Public Comment and Information Meeting
Minutes Page 3 November 15, 2017

NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

ill. PUBLIC COMMENT AND INFORMATION (ITEM B)

B. PUBLIC WORKSHOP ON PROPOSED WATER, SEWER & RECYCLED
WATER RATES

President Wolk announced that staff would provide a presentation of the
rationale behind the water, sewer, and recycled water rates as proposed followed by a
presentation by Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., with an overview of the fiscal
analysis developed to ensure compliance with the requirements of Proposition 218.
Following the presentations, members of the public will have the opportunity to provide
comments. President Wolk emphasized that all comments from members of the public
are encouraged.

Acting General Manager Jack Bebee provided a slide show presentation titled,
“Rate Study—What is Driving Rate Increases.” Following Mr. Bebee’s presentation,
Sanjay Gaur, Vice President of Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., provided a slide
show presentation of an overview of the rate setting process, financial plan
development, and proposed rates.

Following the presentations, President Wolk invited members of the public to the
podium to present their comments.

The following members of the public stepped to the podium and provided
comments on the proposed water, sewer, and recycled water rates: Charles Bertolino,
Debbie McCain, Gary Hesser, Michael Summers, Michael McGuire, Alan Geraci, Dan
Coxe, Ryan Promack, Mary Cicernelle, David Promack, John Merkel, Jimmy Aivaliotis,
Larry Sinagub, Connor DeCuir, Jeanne Meadow, Roger Milner, Dale Kaye, Bruce
Helbert, Nick Stamos, Jill Pettigrew, Robert Landes, Jason Burgess, Belinda Maxwell,
and Pat Bennie.

IV. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

There being no further business to discuss, President Wolk adjourned the
Special Board Meeting and Public Comment and Information Meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District at 8:11 p.m.

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

030



MEMO

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Soleil Develle, Engineering Technician Il /W
DATE: December 11, 2017 -
SUBJECT: Smith Quitclaim Request; Resolution No. 4918

Purpose

Request the Board to quitclaim unneeded portion of easement to the landowner.

Summary

As part of the planning for the Beavercreek pipeline replacement project, it was
determined that the portion of the pipeline that crosses the Smith’s property (2203
Gumtree Lane, APN 105-180-91) should be relocated to their dirt road. This location will
provide better access to the pipeline in the future. The Smiths granted a new easement
for the new pipeline alignment and the pipeline project is completed. They are now
requesting the District quitclaim that portion of the easement that is no longer needed.
Staff has determined the portion of the easement the Smiths are requesting to be
quitclaimed will not be required in the future.

Recommended Action

That the Board approve the attached quitclaim and the adoption of Resolution No.
4918.

031



BEAVERCREEK PIPELINE REPLACEMENT
2203 GUMTREE LANE - QUITCLAIM SUMMARY MAP

s =
! 2f 1,
122.C.LIP. * &
I w NO DW?N NO DRAWING 20" C.LLP. NOD
e —
] LI
' owe 5 1008 1
14-800-000

1620 1"
14-550-000

20.25 Ac. S
10518091
3
g
$
L
H
640 34"
14-640-000
@
[ 133 Ac.
10818835
1972-339872-10 -+ 2009:0063869-30 1+ | _
e e e e R O O IO T SRR AR R L SRS CXhy Sreiiiiiseiaiiiiiiiig
EREEE el Sttt et e

SiBsa 5-::::”’— -
12Ga.CMI A

MAP BY: SOLEIL DEVELLE
DATE: 11/2/2017

PROPOSED QUITCLAIM

NEW EASEMENT GRANTED
032



RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL THIS DEED
AND, UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN
BELOW, MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO:

Fallbrook Public Utility District
P.O. Box 2290
Fallbrook, CA 92088-2290

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE

Quitclaim Deed

This is NOT a transfer of property; it is only a relinquishment of rights to an easement, therefore,
a Preliminary Change of Ownership form is not necessary in this case.

The undersigned declares that the documentary transfer fee is $ -0- and is

_X_computed on the full value of the interest or property conveyed, or is

___computed on the full value less the value of liens or encumbrances remaining thereon at the time of sale.
The land, tenements or realty is located in

_X_unincorporated area city of and

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
A corporation organized under the laws of the state of California, does hereby remise, release and forever quitclaim to
Smith Family Trust
The following described real property in the County of San Diego, State of California:

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT ‘A’

Date:

President, FPUD Board of Directors
Name:

Date:

Secretary, FPUD Board of Directors
Name: Mary Lou West

033



RESOLUTION NO. 4918

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT GRANTING A QUITCLAIM
OF A PORTION OF AN EASEMENT TO THE PROPERTY OWNER

* k k k%

WHEREAS, the Smith Family Trust is the current property owner of APN# 105-
180-91 located within the Fallbrook Public Utility District's boundaries: and

WHEREAS, the District relocated a pipeline that crosses APN# 105-180-91. As
part of the pipeline relocation project, the property owner granted the District a new
easement through APN# 105-180-91 to facilitate the project.

WHEREAS, there is an existing easement through APN# 105-180-91 that is no
longer needed by the District now, or in the future, and was replaced with the new
easement granted by the property owner as part of the pipeline relocation project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the
Fallbrook Public Utility District approves the property owner’s request that the District
quitclaim a portion of the easement through APN# 105-180-91 to the property owner as
more fully described in Exhibit A.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 11t day of December, 2017, by
the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

034



EXHIBIT “A”

QUITCLAIM OF A 20 FOOT WIDE EASEMENT RECORDED APRIL 2157 1939, IN
BOOK 883, AT PAGE 497, UNDER DOCUMENT NUMBER 17705 OF OFFICIAL
RECORDS, IN SAN DIEGO COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA THE SAID
EASEMENT TO BE QUITCLAIMED BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

A STRIP OF LAND 20 FEET IN WIDTH THROUGH THE NORTH HALF OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 9 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST
OF THE SAN BERNADINO BASELINE AND MERIDIAN, THE CENTERLINE OF
WHICH IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE
NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 20, DISTANT
NORTH 89°56°30” EAST 172.83 FEET FROM THE NORTHEAST CORNER
THEROF; THENCE SOUTH 2°40°30” WEST 1153.30 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
24°05° WEST 192.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0°57° WEST 8.00 FEET TO THE
SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 20.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THOSE PORTIONS LYING WITHIN THAT CERTAIN
EASEMENT GRANTED TO THE FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT, IN
THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECORDED ON DATE:
APRIL 22, 2016, AS DOCUMENT NO. 2016-0188523 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS.

035



MEMO

FROM: Jack Bebee, Acting General Manager
DATE: December 11, 2017
SUBJECT: Notice of Completion — Beavercreek Pipeline Replacement — Job 2980

TO: Board of Directors
L

Purpose

File Notice of Completion of the Beavercreek Pipeline Replacement Project with the
San Diego County Recorder.

Summary

The contract for the Beavercreek Pipeline Replacement Project — Job 2980 was
completed on November 21, 2017. The contract was awarded to J.R. Filanc
Construction Company, Inc. The final total contract amount was $1,484,557.38. The
budgeted project amount was $1,446,000, which included the installation of 16" CML&C
steel replacement pipe along Beavercreek Lane and Frolic Way, across an easement to
Gumtree Lane, and the relocation and replacement of the Gumtree Lane Pressure
Station.

Recommended Action

That the Board authorize staff to file the attached Notice of Completion with the San
Diego County Recorder.

036



RECORDING REQUESTED BY:
Fallbrook Public Utility District

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
Fallbrook Public Utility District
Post Office Box 2290

Fallbrook, CA 92088-2290

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1.

uhwn

N

10.

The undersigned is the owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described.

The full name of the undersigned is Fallbrook Public Utility District.

The full address of the undersigned is 990 E Mission Road, Fallbrook, CA 92088.

The nature of the title of the undersigned is public utility district in fee.

The full names and full addresses of all persons, if any, who hold title with the undersigned as joint tenants or as
tenants in common are:

NAMES ADDRESSES
Fallbrook Public Utility District PO Box 2290, Fallbrook, CA 92088-2290

The names of the predecessors in interest of the undersigned, if the property was transferred subsequent to the
commencement of the work of improvement herein referred to are (OR IF NO TRANSFER WAS MADE INSERT
THE WORD “None”)

NAMES ADDRESSES
None

The work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on November 21, 2017.

The name of the original contractor, if any, for the work of improvement was: J.R. Filanc Construction
Company, Inc.

The kind of work done or material furnished was for the BEAVERCREEK PIPELINE REPLACEMENT.

The property on which the work of improvement was completed is in the unincorporated area of Fallbrook,
county of San Diego, state of California, and is described as follows: intersection of Daily Drive and Lynda Lane.
The street address of the said property is: Northerly along Breavercreek Lane, intersecting with Alvarado Street
and North along Frolic Way, continuing to Gumtree Lane.

DATED: December 12t 2017

Jack Bebee, Acting General Manager
Fallbrook Public Utility District

VERIFICATION

|, the undersigned, say:

I am the person who signed the foregoing notice. | have read the above notice and know its contents, and the facts
stated therein are true of my own knowledge.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on October , 2017, at Fallbrook, California.

Signature

037



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jack Bebee, Acting General Manager / J‘ﬂ
DATE: December 11, 2017

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Approval of Settlement Agreement
Santa Margarita River Conjunctive Use Project Update
Resolution No. 4919

Purpose

To request that the Board authorize the execution of the Settlement Agreement between the
United States and the District, and its filing with the Federal Court for approval. The
Settlement provides for the District and Camp Pendleton to proceed with the Santa Margarita
River Conjunctive Use Project and dismiss their litigation claims against each other.

Summary

After many decades, a successful conclusion to the long-standing litigation between the
District and Camp Pendleton has been reached. This is a major achievement.

Implementation of the Santa Margarita River Conjunctive Use Project (SMRCUP) resolves the
66-year old water rights litigation between Camp Pendleton and the District, secures
additional local water supplies to help provide additional water supplies during a drought, and
provides the District a buffer from escalating imported water costs. The project inciudes
facilities to be constructed by Camp Pendleton that are within its boundaries and facilities to
be constructed by the District that are within the District boundaries. Figure 1 shows the
facilities to be constructed by the District for the project.

The environmental permitting is complete for the project and the EIR was certified by the
Board on September 26, 2016.

The water rights permit process is being finalized by the State Water Resources Control
Board (SWRCB). It will modify the existing permits and license now jointly held by the District
and Camp Pendleton to enable their use for this project. It is anticipated that the necessary
water right approvals will be issued in the next several months. The funding through the State
Revolving Fund (SRF) for the District's new water treatment plant and associated distribution
facilities has been arranged and will be finalized once the water rights permits are finalized.

The design of the water treatment plant and distribution facilities is complete. Pre-
qualification of contractors and solicitation for a construction manager will be initiated after the
first of the year. Camp Pendleton has begun construction of its facilities, which are being
funded through a federal appropriation for a total cost of $47 million. Construction of District
facilities is anticipated to be initiated in 2018 and take approximately two years to complete.

038



District facilities will be funded by a $45 million SRF loan that has a 20-year term and an
interest rate of approximately 1.85%.

Settlement Agreement

In 1951 the Federal Government sued all water users in Fallbrook, claiming it had water rights
superior to those of Fallbrook, and as a federal military installation, was not required to
comply with state water law. This case, United States v. Fallbrook PUD, is the oldest
unresolved water rights litigation in California. In 1966 a Modified Final Judgment and Decree
was issued by the Federal Court, which required the U.S. Government and the District to
develop a physical solution to address the water rights dispute on the Santa Margarita River.
For over 66 years, the residents of Fallbrook and the District have been seeking to resolve
this dispute to be able to develop a local water supply. After many years of unsuccessful
negotiations, that physical solution, the SMRCUP and the local water supply it will provide, is
now within a few years of being a real, functioning project.

This final settlement was achieved by District staff and District water counsel Martha
Lennihan, working with Camp Pendleton and its advisors. It was approved by the United
States Department of Navy on November 8, 2017. It has been reviewed by the Santa
Margarita Watermaster, who has indicated that he will support it in his role as advisor to the
Federal Court. If approved by the District Board, it will be filed by the District and the U.S.
Department of Justice for the required approval by the Federal Court.

The proposed final settlement agreement is included in Attachment 2. The key aspects of
this settlement are:

1. The District would receive on an average annual basis an estimated amount of 3,100
AFY of Santa Margarita River water from Camp Pendleton.

2. The amount of water to be delivered each year varies based on the measured flow of
water in the river on an annual basis.

3. The District would only pay Camp Pendleton for the cost to pump and deliver this
water after it is pumped from the ground.

4. The District has the first right of refusal for any excess water from the project. Any
excess water would be at a price less than the imported water costs from SDCWA.
The framework of this agreement establishes a long-term mutually beneficial
partnership between the District and Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base.

5. Based on analysis conducted by Raftelis Financial Consultants, the project will save
the District and the Community it serves approximately $10 million over 10 years in
water costs.

Recommended Action

That the Board authorize the Board President and District water counsel to execute the
Settlement Agreement substantially in the form of Attachment 2*, and its filing with the
Federal Court for approval, and adopt Resolution No. 4919.

! This allows for non-substantive changes only.

039



Attachment 1

040



- ¥y Lz - 0002153114 BOMVX - 1-Z1-8) Jasar ppa) Aq pejee.d
SE” —8—:3 "99U0Z 199 ‘€8 VN GUBKd 9)81S BLIOHIED el O3] ‘1§83 ‘ANd :eaunas|

sanlioed dNJUINS I2MISIQ — | ainbiy

NOLLVYLS dWNd ANV pupy Au
ANVL 'O'W 9 M3IN 10 Aueirem Jnouym pepiaczd 8| dew siy

s Rtk
ANTFWIVIHL ¥ILIVM MIN Auqisuodsal 1o AYIiqel ou sewnsse S|

61
ANM3did A/ e Bt b 128 anioe
anN3oai

041



Attachment 2

042



O 00 N O U RN W e

NNNNNNN[\)ND—n—ar—Ar—v—kr—n»—nn—ar—nu—-
OO\)O\UIAUJI\)'—*O\OOO\]O\UI-BUJN'—'O

BRUCE D. BERNARD (CO 12166)

Natural Resources Section

Environment & Natural Resources Division
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
999 18% Street, South Terrace - Suite 370

Denver, Colorado 80202

Telephone: (303) 844-1361

Email: bruce.bernard@usdoj.gov

Attorney for Plaintiff UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
MARTHA H. LENNIHAN (SBN 122478)

LENNIHAN LAW

6645 Garden Highway

Sacramento, California 95837

Telephone: (916) 799-4460

Email: mlennihan@]lennihan.net

Attorney for Defendant FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )  Case No. 51-1247-GPC-RBB
)
Plaintiff, )
)  STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT
Vs. )
)
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY )
DISTRICT, et al., )
)
Defendants. )
)
)
SANTA MARGARITA RIVER

CONJUNCTIVE USE PROJECT AGREEMENT
AND STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT

This Santa Margarita River Conjunctive Use Project Agreement and Stipulation of
Settlement (“Settlement”), effective as of the Effective Date, is entered into by and between
Fallbrook Public Utility District, a California municipal utility district (“FPUD”), and the United

States of America (‘United States”), acting on behalf of and binding, as well as acting by and

1

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 460978.5 O 43



O© 0 N O U A WO e

NNNNNNNNNHP—‘P—‘P—‘HMHH.—‘.—A
OO\IO\M-BWNHO\OOO\]O\UIAUJN'—‘O

through, its Department of the Navy, and the United States Marine Corps, for the benefit of the
Marine Corps Base, Camp Pendleton (“MCB CPEN”). FPUD and the United States, including
without limitation its subsidiaries the Department of the Navy, the United States Marine Corps,
and MCB CPEN, are sometimes hereinafter referred to each as a “Party” and collectively as the
“Parties.” Terms not defined herein shall be as defined in Exhibit 1 hereto. The Form of Joint

Motion for Approval of Settlement and Order of Dismissal is attached as Exhibit 2 hereto.

RECITALS

A. MCB CPEN, a military facility established in 1942, is one of the largest
U.S. military bases, encompassing approximately 125,000 acres and 200 square miles in San
Diego County, is the only amphibious military base on the West coast, and is part of a larger Naval
Enclave, which includes the Marine Corps Air Station Camp Pendleton, the United States Naval
Hospital Camp Pendleton, and the Naval Weapons Station, Seal Beach Detachment, Fallbrook
(NWS Fallbrook) (collectively, “Naval Enclave™).

B. MCB CPEN, as part of the Naval Enclave, employs military and civilian
personnel, provides housing and training facilities for units of the United States Armed Forces, and
provides the full spectrum of logistic support to units of the United States Marine Corps.

C. FPUD, a public entity formed in 1922 under California Public Utilities
Code, Division 7, has its principal place of business in the community of Fallbrook, which is
contained within the unincorporated area of northern San Diego County.

D. FPUD provides water and wastewater services to its residents and
businesses in the FPUD service area as it changes from time to time, in and around the community
of Fallbrook (FPUD Service Area.)

E. The Santa Margarita River is formed at the confluence of Murrieta Creek
and Temecula Creek at a location referred to as the “Gorge,” which separates the Upper Basin
from the Lower Basin of the Santa Margarita River Watershed. MCB CPEN and FPUD are the
last significant water users on the lower Santa Margarita River and both entities are located in part
within the lower end of the watershed. A vicinity map depicting the FPUD Service Area and the

2

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 44




O 0 N N AW~

DN NN NN N NN = = s e e e e
OO\IO\MAUJN'—‘O\OOO\IO\UIAUJN'—‘O

southern portion of MCB CPEN along the Santa Margarita River is attached as Exhibit 3 hereto.

F. MCB CPEN, the furthest downstream water user on the Santa Margarita
River, occupies lands encompassing the lower Santa Margarita River and its tributaries from the
mouth of the river upstream towards Fallbrook, and relies on the natural aquifer system associated
with the Santa Margarita River to satisfy the majority of its water requirements for the southern
portion of MCB CPEN (see Exhibit 3).

G. FPUD is located immediately upstream of the Naval Enclave, and relies
almost entirely upon imported water from the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) to
satisfy its water requirements.

H. There has been longstanding litigation in the above-captioned matter
between United States and FPUD over the rights to use the water of the Santa Margarita River. On
January 25, 1951, the United States of America filed Complaint No. 1247 in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of California to seek a judicial determination of all
respective water rights within the Santa Margarita River Watershed (the “Litigation”). In addition
to FPUD, there are numerous other defendants named in the Litigation. A Final Judgment and
Decree was entered in the Litigation on May 8, 1963, and appealed to the U. S. Court of Appeals.
A Modified Final Judgment and Decree was entered on April 6, 1966 (“1966 Modified Final
Judgment and Decree”), the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference. Among other

things, the 1966 Modified Final Judgment and Decree provided that the Court:

. . . retains continuing jurisdiction of this cause as to the use of all surface waters within the
watershed of the Santa Margarita River and all underground or sub-surface waters within
the watershed of the Santa Margarita River, which are determined in any of the constituent
parts of this Modified Final Judgment to be part of the sub-surface flow of any specific
river or creek, or which are determined in any of the constituent parts of this Modified
Final Judgment to add to, contribute to, or support the Santa Margarita River stream
system.

L In March 1989, the Court issued an Order appointing a Watermaster (the
“Watermaster”) to administer and enforce the provisions of the 1966 Modified Final Judgment and
Decree and subsequent orders of the Court. The appointing Order described the Watermaster’s

powers and duties as well as procedures for funding and operating the Watermaster’s office.

3

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 4 5




O o0 9 O W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

J. This Settlement applies to and resolves all of the currently pending claims in
the Litigation between the United States on one hand and FPUD on the other hand (this subset of
the Litigation is referred to herein as the “Resolved Claims™), but not claims by the other parties to
the Litigation or by the United States or FPUD against other parties to the Litigation.

K. It is in the best interests of both the United States and FPUD to reach
settlement and resolve these claims in the manner set forth herein.

L. The Parties desire to settle the Resolved Claims, and to develop a project
that builds on and enhances the existing Santa Margarita River diversion, extraction, storage and
delivery facilities, including the storage provided by the Santa Margarita River related aquifers
underlying MCB CPEN. This project will provide a local water supply, as well as additional
benefits, to both Parties.

M. The Santa Margarita River Conjunctive Use Project, as described herein
(“CUP” or “Project”), is the “physical solution” to the Litigation over the rights to use the water of
the Santa Margarita River. The United States and FPUD acknowledge that the Santa Margarita
River is a Southern California river typified by long dry periods and short wet periods, that the
river, with and without the Project, does not provide a sufficient supply of water to fully satisfy
both Parties’ requirements, and that this settlement will improve, but not entirely resolve, that
circumstance. The Project is designed to increase the capacities and capabilities of existing
facilities, to construct new facilities, and to enhance the ability to divert, store, and deliver water
from the lower Santa Margarita River for the benefit of both Parties.

N. FPUD desires to reduce its reliance on imported water supplies by the
development of additional local water supply, which supply can be afforded via the CUP. FPUD
has for decades contributed imported water return flow to the water supply diverted and used by
MCB CPEN. FPUD anticipates that it will continue to purchase imported water for use in its
service area. Return flow from this imported water that is tributary to the lower Santa Margarita
River flow into MCB CPEN will contribute to the water supply of the CUP.

O. SDCWA annexed the majority of the area of MCB CPEN which conferred

to MCB CPEN (with certain geographic exceptions) an entitlement to imported water from the
4

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 046




O 0 O O wn N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

SDCWA, but MCB CPEN lacks an adequate means for delivery of its imported water to MCB
CPEN, and desires a usable connection to the SDCWA imported water aqueduct system, through
FPUD’s water delivery system, to enable MCB CPEN to access imported water for improved
drought protection when needed on the southern portion of MCB CPEN.

P. MCB CPEN and FPUD each have water rights to the Santa Margarita River,
and intend, as described herein, to exercise those rights for purposes of providing the water
supplies to the Parties as set forth herein, and to share title to the water rights to align their
interests, avoid competition between the Parties, and facilitate efficient Project development and
operation on a long term basis. Some of these water rights were held by the United States
Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation (BUREC) for benefit of the Parties who
originally applied for and obtained the water right permits, in anticipation that BUREC would
construct and operate a prior version of the Project. The Project as presently contemplated is being
constructed and operated by MCB CPEN and FPUD. BUREC has transferred those rights,
specifically Water Right Permit Nos 8511 (Application 11587), 11357 (Application 12179), and
15000 (Application 21471B), back to the U.S. Department of the Navy and FPUD as co-
permittees, consistent with the provisions of this Settlement.

Q. The United States’ Marine Corps Headquarters and MCB CPEN desire to
maintain autonomy in owning and operating water diversion, treatment, storage, and delivery
facilities on the Naval Enclave. In order to satisfy this goal, while sharing the Project Yield
diverted in reliance on both Parties’ water rights, the Parties have agreed to a CUP design wherein
each Party is responsible for separate ownership, operation, and all other aspects of the facilities in
their respective jurisdictions, and wherein MCB CPEN will operate the Project facilities on MCB
CPEN to provide water to the southern portion of MCB CPEN, and to reliably deliver to FPUD a
base amount of the water produced by the Project, plus excess water when available, as more fully
set forth below. The base amount to be delivered to FPUD will vary by hydrologic year type, as
described in Article 3, including Tables A, B-1 and B-2, and Appendix A. The United States’
Marine Corps Headquarters and MCB CPEN’s goal of maintaining autonomy on the Naval

Enclave, in lieu of the Parties’ joint operation of a project on the Naval Enclave as previously

5

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 047




AW

O o0 9 &N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

contemplated, resulted in the structure of this Settlement, and its focus on water deliveries to
FPUD from water facilities owned and operated by MCB CPEN on the Naval Enclave. MCB
CPEN will be entitled to all water produced by the Project other than that required to meet the
delivery obligations to FPUD.

R. Because imported water is available to FPUD and storage in underground
aquifers is available to MCB CPEN, and because the Parties have agreed to a delivery schedule
based on the hydrologic water year type, the Parties have further agreed to a water banking system
(Water Bank or Bank) that enhances MCB CPEN’s ability to satisfy its water requirements under
the Project and meet its delivery obligations to FPUD while managing and protecting the health of
the underground aquifer. The Water Bank provides MCB CPEN with additional flexibility by
creating another tool, in addition to the purchase of imported water, to satisfy its delivery
obligations when the delivery of Project water is constrained. The Parties acknowledge that each
will need to obtain funding to perform their obligations under this Settlement.

S. An Environmental Impact Statement and Report (EIS/EIR) under the
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) has been prepared for the CUP. FPUD completed environmental review pursuant to
CEQA, and certified the EIR as the CEQA lead agency. The Department of the Navy and
BUREGQC, acting as co-lead agencies under NEPA, completed environmental review in accordance
with their respective procedures. The requisite Record(s) of Decision have been issued.

T. The United States and FPUD intend the CUP to be the permanent solution to
their longstanding dispute over their respective rights to use the waters of the Santa Margarita
River and its tributaries, and desire to use the dispute resolution processes described herein to
further the long term success of the CUP and to perpetuate the beneficial sharing of the Project
Yield in the manner set forth herein.

U. The 1966 Modified Final Judgment and Decree provide, among other
things, that the Court shall reserve continuing jurisdiction of the matters stated therein. Consistent
with this, the Parties intend that to the maximum extent allowed by law, the Court in the Litigation

shall retain indefinite subject matter and personal jurisdiction to enforce this Settlement and any

6

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 048




[ B L S B S

)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

disputes pertaining to the Settlement, and that in the event the Court fails or declines for any
reason whatsoever to accept or assert jurisdiction to enforce this Settlement, any Party shall have
the remedy to file a new action in the above Court to specifically enforce this Settlement as set

forth below.

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the Parties and the terms

and conditions set forth in this Settlement, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
INCORPORATION OF RECITALS AND TERM OF SETTLEMENT

1.1.  Incorporation of Recitals. The above preamble and Recitals are incorporated herein

by reference.

1.2. Term. This Settlement shall commence as of the Effective Date and shall only be

terminated in accordance with the provisions of Article 8.

ARTICLE 2
PROJECT FACILITIES

2.1.  Project Description. The Parties have agreed upon the Santa Margarita Conjunctive

Use Project, a proposed project that will enhance the yield of the Santa Margarita River’s Lower
Basin. The Project is being designed cooperatively by the Parties. BUREC and the Parties have
also developed an EIS/EIR for the CUP, which describes the project and alternatives thereto. A
list of the primary Project Facilities needed, and figures depicting the approximate locations
thereof, is contained in Exhibit 4 hereto.

2.2. MCB CPEN Project Facilities.

2.2.1. MCB CPEN shall be fully responsible for the ownership, construction,
operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, costs, liabilities, and Regulatory compliance of all

Project facilities and features located on the Naval Enclave (excluding any Project facilities FPUD

7

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 49




N

O 00 9 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

may construct on NWS Fallbrook to deliver water from the FPUD Point of Delivery to the FPUD
Service Area), to the FPUD Point of Delivery, as necessary and convenient to divert, store, and
deliver to FPUD the FPUD Entitlement (“MCB CPEN Project Facilities”). A non-exhaustive
description of the MCB CPEN Project Facilities is contained in Exhibit 4 hereto. Some of the
MCB CPEN Project Facilities required for the Project are also required to support the southern
portion of MCB CPEN’s existing and on-going water operations and water use, including, but not
limited to: new inflatable type weir, O’Neill diversion ditch improvements, Recharge Ponds 6 and
7 rehabilitation, Lake O’Neill rehabilitation, and additional and refurbished groundwater wells.
Installation of a stream flow gage at the Point of Diversion, meeting industry standards, for the
purpose of enabling actual measurements of flow, and calibrating the 50-year data to actual data, is
part of MCB CPEN’s Project Facilities and installation of this gage shall occur as soon as
practicable. The stream flow gage will measure: flow over the weir, diversions to the ditch, and
bypass flows. The flow measurement device shall be calibrated at least annually by a qualified
third party and a copy of the certificate of verification provided to both Parties. Additional MCB
CPEN Project Facilities also needed include transmission piping and pump stations from the well
field to and including the FPUD Turnout in Haybarn Canyon, and to the FPUD Point of Delivery.

2.2.2. MCB CPEN and FPUD shall each perform their obligations hereunder in a
diligent manner consistent with Prudent Utility Practice.

2.2.3. MCB CPEN shall provide to FPUD notice that will afford FPUD the timely
and reasonable opportunity for FPUD input regarding design and construction of those MCB
CPEN Project Facilities for which FPUD will pay any of the costs of operation and maintenance
(O&M), and repair and replacement (R&R) (these are also referred to as the “FPUD Delivery
Facilities”). This provision of notice and input shall not be interpreted to reduce or otherwise alter
MCB CPEN’s obligations under this Settlement. Both Parties shall endeavor to coordinate notice
and input in a manner which will avoid any delay to construction.

2.3.  FPUD Project Facilities. FPUD shall be fully responsible for the construction,

operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, costs, liabilities, and Regulatory compliance of all
Project Facilities located within the FPUD Service Area, as necessary and convenient to accept

8

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 050




O© 00 N O »n N W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

delivery of, treat, and distribute for use the FPUD Entitlement described below (collectively,
“FPUD Project Facilities”). A non-exhaustive description of the FPUD Project Facilities is
contained in Exhibit 4 hereto. The Parties acknowledge and agree that FPUD’s ability to proceed
with the Project and perform under this Settlement is contingent upon the availability of financing
for capital related expenses including construction costs. FPUD may, at its election, receive
Project water deliveries using existing FPUD facilities and/or limited additional FPUD facilities.
To the extent that FPUD’s capacity to accept deliveries of Project water called for by this
Settlement is limited, as described in Section 2.6.1, MCB CPEN’s obligation to deliver shall be
correspondingly reduced for so long as the FPUD capacity restriction exists, and MCB CPEN shall
not incur any obligation to make-up or otherwise pay for water that cannot be delivered to FPUD
as a result of such capacity restriction.

2.4. Real Property. Each Party represents and warrants that it has or will timely obtain
any real property interests necessary to carry out its duties and responsibilities under this
Settlement.

2.5.  Use of FPUD Facilities to Convey Water from the SDCWA for MCB CPEN.

2.5.1. Request and Consent. Upon reasonable advance notice to FPUD, MCB

CPEN may request use of unused capacity in certain FPUD facilities (“FPUD Wheeling
Facilities”, further described in Section 2.5.4 below) to convey to the boundary between FPUD and
the NWS Fallbrook to MCB CPEN facilities at the Point of Delivery, without going through or
receiving treatment at the FPUD treatment plant, imported water from SDCWA necessary for
MCB CPEN to meet demand that otherwise cannot be met due to drought, a Force Majeure Event,
or other on-Base need reasonably identified by MCB CPEN. Such water shall be purchased by
MCB CPEN from SDCWA using MCB CPEN’s right(s) to SDCWA imported water supplies,
which include but are not limited to delivery, allocation and preferential rights (MCB CPEN
SDCWA Rights). FPUD shall make all reasonable good faith efforts to provide such capacity to
convey imported water to MCB CPEN through the FPUD Wheeling Facilities, provided that there
is no adverse effect to FPUD operations or deliveries of water within the FPUD Service Area. In

the event FPUD does not deliver imported water to MCB CPEN as requested because of an
9

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 051




A W

O o0 9 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

adverse impact on FPUD operations or deliveries of water within the FPUD Service Area, FPUD
will endeavor to manage its system in a manner that will allow it to make capacity available for
delivery of imported water to MCB CPEN at the soonest opportunity, provided that such delivery
shall not be required if it would cause any adverse impact to FPUD operations or deliveries of
water to the FPUD Service Area, as reasonably determined by FPUD. MCB CPEN shall ensure
that the proposed conveyance of water from the SDCWA to MCB CPEN is in compliance with all
applicable laws and this Settlement. Upon consent, the Parties shall cooperate in scheduling and
each Party will operate their respective facilities to effect such conveyance in accordance with this

Section 2.5.

2.5.2. Regulatory Compliance, Liabilities. MCB CPEN shall be solely responsible

for Regulatory compliance with all applicable laws, water quality, liabilities, costs, expenses, and
arrangements with the SDCWA and any other third parties, including scheduling and payment for
the water delivered or to be delivered pursuant to this Section 2.5.

2.5.3. Payment. MCB CPEN shall pay to FPUD O&M and R&R for FPUD
Wheeling Facilities used, plus a 15% administration surcharge on O&M, plus any additional costs
or expenses actually incurred by or to FPUD, for each acre foot of SDCWA water wheeled to
MCB CPEN. The O&M and R&R for wheeling shall be determined in a manner similar to the
method used for the FPUD Delivery Facilities O&M and R&R (see Exhibit 5 hereto), except that
all FPUD costs and expenses associated with such conveyance of water to MCB CPEN shall be
reimbursed by MCB CPEN. Payments shall be made in accordance with Section 3.2.3 hereof.

2.5.4. FPUD Wheeling Facilities. FPUD Wheeling Facilities are those FPUD

facilities, of whatever capacity, that exist at the time the water conveyance is needed and that are
necessary and capable of conveying water from the SDCWA FPUD turnout(s) to the Point of
Delivery. Those facilities include certain existing facilities as well as some FPUD Project
Facilities, to the extent constructed and operable, and exclude treatment and storage facilities.
FPUD shall have no obligation to construct additional facilities or other infrastructure, or to treat
or store any water, pursuant to this Settlement for purposes of this MCB CPEN use. The Parties

acknowledge that such wheeling will not be possible until the FPUD Delivery Facilities (which are
10

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 052




O 00 N O wn N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

MCB CPEN Project Facilities) are constructed, and will be limited unless and until the proposed
pipeline from the FPUD CUP WTP to Red Mountain Reservoir, as well as infrastructure to convey
water from the SDCWA FPUD turnout(s) to the Point of Delivery, without going through the
FPUD CUP WTP, are constructed and/or installed and in operation. This particular pipeline and
infrastructure are FPUD Project Facilities that FPUD intends to construct or have constructed as
part of FPUD Project development.

2.5.5. FPUD-NWS Fallbrook Agreement. The Parties recognize and agree that,

absent NWS Fallbrook’s agreement otherwise, FPUD’s conveyance of water to NWS Fallbrook in
accordance with the existing contract dated March 20, 1984, between the United States and FPUD
for water transportation service, as it may be amended from time to time, takes precedence over
any conveyance of water pursuant to Section 2.5.

2.6.  Construction Delay or Interruption in Performance. The Parties acknowledge that

there may be complexities regarding construction of the Project Facilities, including for example
delays caused by problems obtaining funding. The Parties’ intent is that the Project Facilities be in
place and operational by the deadline established by the United States Congress, i.e., ten (10) years
after the date of enactment of Pub. L. 111-11 (see Section 3.2.6.). This Section 2.6 addresses the
possibility that in spite of diligent good faith efforts, which the Parties are obligated to make, one
or both Parties are not able to fully construct their respective Project Facilities. Except where
Section 10.3 (Force Majeure) applies, this Section 2.6 also applies in the event of a substantial
interruption in making or receiving deliveries by the Parties.
2.6.1. FPUD. IfFPUD is not able to construct all or a portion of the FPUD Project
Facilities, or otherwise perform, in a manner that impairs its ability to take delivery of its full
FPUD Entitlement as contemplated in this Settlement (“Limited FPUD Capacity”), then during the
pendency and to the extent of such Limited FPUD Capacity:
(a) MCB CPEN is entitled to use the Project Water that would otherwise
have been, but cannot be, delivered to FPUD in accordance with Article 3;
(b) MCB CPEN incurs no obligation to make up or otherwise pay for

deliveries that cannot be made due to Limited FPUD Capacity; and
11

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 53




N

O 0 3 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

(© The provisions for conveyance of SDCWA water to MCB CPEN
shall remain in force, as set forth in Section 2.5 hereof.

2.6.2. MCB CPEN. If MCB CPEN is not able to construct or otherwise perform
so as to enable it to deliver the full FPUD Entitlement to FPUD, when such deliveries are due
pursuant to Section 3.2.6, then to the extent that FPUD is capable of taking delivery, and to the
extent of the shortfall in delivery of Project Water to satisfy the FPUD Entitlement, MCB CPEN
will provide in lieu SDCWA water to FPUD in accordance with Section 3.2.5 below.

2.6.3. Construction Coordination. The Parties shall coordinate to keep each other

apprised of the status of their efforts to obtain funding and to construct facilities as contemplated in
this Settlement. Information regarding any phasing of construction, and construction schedules,

shall be shared between the Parties.

ARTICLE 3
ALLOCATION OF PROJECT YIELD
3.1. MCB CPEN Entitlement. MCB CPEN shall be entitled to all Project Yield other

than the water needed to satisfy the FPUD Entitlement. This is referred to herein as the MCB

CPEN Entitlement.
3.2. FPUD Entitlement. FPUD Entitlement consists of the FPUD Base Entitlement and

Excess Water as to which FPUD exercises the FPUD First Right to Purchase Excess Water. MCB
CPEN determines whether there is any Excess Water, and the amount of that Excess Water, in
accordance with Section 3.2.2 and other applicable provisions of this Settlement.

3.2.1. FPUD Base Entitlement. The Parties have agreed that the volume of water

to be delivered to FPUD as its Base Entitlement will be determined based upon the hydrologic year
type, as more fully set forth below including Tables A, B-1, and B-2 (hereafter the “FPUD Base
Entitlement”). This FPUD Base Entitlement is predicated on the agreed upon long-term average
annual delivery of 3,100 AFY, assuming the hydrology of the 50-year Period of Record, (water
years 1952 through 2001). The actual amount of each year’s FPUD Base Entitlement will vary

depending upon that year’s hydrologic condition. The long-term average annual amount may also

12

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 5 4




O o0 O O n A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

vary from 3,100 AFY, as a result of variation, if any, between the future hydrology and the
hydrology of the Period of Record. The Parties acknowledge and assume the respective risk that
the agreed upon amounts may vary annually and cumulatively from what they would have been
during the Period of Record, whether less or more.
MCB CPEN shall deliver the FPUD Base Entitlement to FPUD at the Point of Delivery. The
FPUD Base Entitlement shall be determined as follows:
(a) FPUD’s annual Base Entitlement will be based on the previous
October 1 through April 30 total stream flow at the Point of Diversion, before any diversions,
extractions, or bypasses at the Point of Diversion have occurred. This volume is referred to as
“Winter Flow.” The Winter Flow is calculated (or measured in the future when measurement
facilities are in place), and used to determine each year’s Hydrologic Condition (or Year Type) as
one of the following: Very Wet (VW), Above Normal (AN), Below Normal (BN), Very Dry (VD),
or Extreme Drought (ED).
The following Table A describes the relationship between Winter Flow at the Point of

Diversion and Hydrologic Condition.

TABLE A
HYDROLOGIC CONDITION
Range of Winter Hydrologic Condition Number of Years
Flow (AF) (Year Type) Hydrologic Condition
Occurred During
MY 1-50

> 57,700 VW - Very Wet 9

57,699 to 14,700 AN - Above Normal 15

14,699 to 7,600 BN - Below Normal 14

<7,599 VD - Very Dry 5

2 or more Very ED — Extreme Drought 7

Dry Years in a row
13

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 055




N

O 00 3 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

The “Extreme Drought” condition only occurs following the second consecutive Very Dry
year. While there is a volumetric range for the VW, AN, BN, and VD year types, there is an
antecedent condition (an immediately preceding Very Dry year) required for the Extreme Drought
year type.

“MY” as used herein means model year, and refers to modeled future conditions based
upon the 50-year Period of Record used for this Project. A more detailed description of the
modeling upon which this is based, entitled “Surface Water Modeling Supporting the MCB Camp
Pendleton-Fallbrook Public Utility District Settlement Agreement”, is contained in Appendix A to
this Settlement.

) The Hydrologic Condition established based upon the
October 1 through April 30 Winter Flow determines the FPUD Base Entitlement delivery schedule
for the immediately following twelve month period, May 1 through April 30 (Delivery Year), in
accordance with Table B-1. The monthly Base Entitlement delivery volume measured at the Point
of Delivery ranges from O up to 740 acre-feet per month (AFM). MCB CPEN shall equalize the
daily deliveries of FPUD Base Entitlement to the maximum extent feasible, in accordance with

Table B-2.

TABLE B-1
MONTHLY DELIVERIES OF BASE ENTITLEMENT TO FPUD AT THE POINT OF
DELIVERY
(ACRE-FEET PER MONTH)

Month ED VD BN AN VW

May 0 0 60 600 740

June 0 0 60 600 650

July 0 0 60 500 550

August 0 0 60 400 450
14

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 56




N

O 0 3 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

September 0 0 60 300 350

October 0 0 150 230 350
November 0 0 150 230 400
December 0 115 150 360 500
January 0 115 150 450 550
February 0 115 150 455 590
March 0 115 150 495 590
April 0 120 100 500 600
Annual

Total 0 580 1300 5120 6320

TABLE B-2

DAILY BASE ENTITLEMENT DELIVERIES (MGD)

Month ED VD BN AN \AY%
May 0 0 0.6 6.3 7.8
June 0 0 0.7 6.5 7.1
July 0 0 0.6 53 5.8
August 0 0 1.6 4.2 4.7
September 0 0 1.6 3.3 3.8
October 0 0 1.6 24 3.7
November 0 0 1.6 2.5 4.3
December 0 1.2 1.6 3.8 53
January 0 1.2 1.6 4.7 5.8
February 0 1.3 1.7 53 6.9
15

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT

057



S

O o0 9 & W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

March 0 1.2 1.6 5.2 6.2
April 0 1.3 1.1 5.4 6.5

(i)  If in the future, upon recommendation by the Technical
Committee and approval by the Management Committee, it is determined that any changes should
be made to the range of winter-time stream flow for any or all hydrologic year types, e.g., due to
model calibration (see Appendix A), the number of years each hydrologic condition occurs, and
the volume of water to be delivered to FPUD during those year types, must remain the same so as
to be consistent with the Parties’ agreement that the Base Entitlement to be delivered to FPUD is
on average 3,100 AFY based upon the hydrology of the Period of Record.

(iii) MCB CPEN is developing, as part of the MCB CPEN Project
Facilities, and will implement as part of its responsibility to manage the aquifers, an adaptive
management plan (AMP) to monitor stream flow, habitat, groundwater levels, and pumping rates
in order to determine how environmental and riparian conditions are being met. MCB CPEN will
consult and coordinate with FPUD and keep FPUD fully apprised of the AMP and any proposed
changes thereto, and will promptly provide FPUD with copies of all AMP reports, correspondence
and other communications and documents. In a manner consistent with other provisions of this
Settlement, MCB CPEN will use the AMP and other tools available to it to take actions as needed
to maintain the aquifers and associated environment in good condition, and to facilitate MCB
CPEN’s ability to meet its resource stewardship and environmental compliance obligations. As
part of this undertaking, based upon the model described in Appendix A hereto, and the AMP,
MCB CPEN may periodically propose to FPUD adjustments to the total groundwater pumping
from the aquifer that would shift the volume of water delivered to FPUD in one or more month(s)
to another month(s), or one or more day(s) to other day(s) without reducing the annual Base
Entitlement delivered or exceeding FPUD’s capacity to take delivery of, store, and use the
delivered water. The Parties shall coordinate regarding any such proposed delivery schedule

changes, which FPUD shall endeavor to accommodate whenever reasonably feasible without

16

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 058



o o0 9 O W»n A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

adverse impact to FPUD or its customers. MCP CPEN and FPUD shall coordinate to
accommodate reasonable maintenance and repair activities. In the event that MCB CPEN makes
CUP water available to FPUD in accordance with the agreed upon Base Entitlement delivery
schedules set forth in Tables B-1 and B-2, and FPUD chooses not to take delivery in satisfaction of
its Base Entitlement for reasons other than technical infeasibility (which infeasibility shall include
maintenance and repair), MCB CPEN shall receive credit toward FPUD’s Base Entitlement as if

FPUD had accepted delivery.

(b) Payment.
>i) Payment Rate A for O&M and R&R. For each acre foot of

FPUD Base Entitlement delivered to FPUD, FPUD shall pay to MCB CPEN the FPUD Delivery
O&M rate, the administrative surcharge, and the FPUD Delivery R&R rate described in
subsections (1) - (3) below, for use of the FPUD Delivery Facilities (which are the MCB CPEN
Project Facilities from the FPUD Turnout to the FPUD Point of Delivery). This payment rate is
sometimes referred to in this Settlement as Payment Rate A. Exhibit 5 hereto provides more detail
regarding the manner in which Payment Rate A is determined.

(1)  The O&M rate shall be the reasonable and actual
operation and maintenance costs for the FPUD Delivery Facilities, based upon actual Project
Water deliveries to FPUD.

2) FPUD shall pay an additional fifteen percent (15%) of
the above O&M payment, in payment of its portion of administrative costs.

(3)  The R&R rate is based upon the capital cost of the
FPUD Delivery Facilities divided by their expected useful life, divided by the projected average
annual volume of FPUD Base Entitlement plus the projected average annual volume of imported
water wheeled to MCB CPEN for those facilities that will be used for wheeling pursuant to Section
2.5. The R&R Rate for FPUD Delivery Facilities required to lift or pump Project Water is based
on an average annual delivery of 3,100 AFY. The R&R Rate for FPUD Delivery Facilities used to
convey both Project Water and imported water between the FPUD Turnout and the Point of

Delivery is based on an average annual delivery of 3,350 AFY. (See Exhibit 5). This denominator
17

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 59




O 0 9 N »n A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

will be re-evaluated every ten (10) years commencing on the Effective Date, or more frequently as
determined by the Technical Committee, to ensure that it roughly approximates the actual use of
these facilities. This rate is not based upon actual R&R costs, which will be paid by MCB CPEN
regardless of whether they are lesser or greater than the R&R paid by FPUD.
“) No other Project (or non-Project) costs shall be
included in Payment Rate A.
(i)  Payments shall be made annually in accordance with Section
3.2.3.
3.2.2. FPUD First Right to Purchase Excess Water. Water that is or could be

produced by the Project each year in excess of the sum of MCB CPEN Annual Demand plus
FPUD Base Entitlement, shall be declared as Excess Water. MCB CPEN shall reasonably
determine the amount of Excess Water, if any. FPUD has an exclusive First Right to purchase
Excess Water as set forth herein. The Parties will cooperate in good faith to enable exercise of this
right for purchase and delivery of Excess Water to FPUD.

(a) Availability and Delivery of Excess Water. The Parties shall

coordinate to ascertain at the earliest time reasonably possible the amount of Excess Water that
will be available in a given month, and whether and to what extent FPUD will exercise its First
Right to purchase that Excess Water.

@) Projections for Planning Purposes. At least thirty days in
advance of the beginning of each Delivery Year, MCB CPEN shall provide notice to FPUD of
MCB CPEN’s good faith estimate of the amount and timing of Excess Water it anticipates will be
available, including the basis therefore. FPUD shall respond to MCB CPEN identifying whether
FPUD anticipates that it will want to purchase some or all of that water, and the probable volume
and timing thereof. This coordination effort does not bind either Party, but furthers necessary
planning for both. The Parties shall update this information periodically during the Delivery Year.

(i) FPUD_Exercise of First Right to Purchase Excess Water.

When MCB CPEN proposes to deliver Excess Water to FPUD, it shall make an advance request

for a change in the delivery schedules set forth herein (Tables B-1 and B-2), in accordance with

18

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 060




o o0 9 N »n A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Section 3.2.8, to allow delivery of amounts greater than the Base Entitlement Amounts. MCB
CPEN shall specify in its request that it is proposing to deliver Excess Water to FPUD, and to the
extent reasonably possible, MCB CPEN shall send such request sufficiently far in advance to
enable FPUD to adjust its operations and prepare its facilities for such Excess Water. FPUD may
exercise or may decline to exercise its First Right to Excess Water, in whole or in part, in its
response to such request without prejudice to its rights to do so in the future. FPUD shall timely
notify MCB CPEN of its response. The Parties anticipate that to a lesser extent, Excess Water may
also be determined during the end of year accounting, if the amount of water delivered to and
accepted by FPUD exceeds the amount of Base Entitlement for that Delivery Year.

(iii)  Delivery. MCB CPEN shall deliver the Excess Water as to
which FPUD has exercised its First Right on a delivery schedule agreed to by the Parties and in a
manner that does not interfere with FPUD Base Entitlement deliveries. MCB CPEN shall equalize
the daily volumes of water delivered to the extent feasible.

(b)  FPUD Payment for Delivered Excess Water.

>i) Payment Rate A shall apply to (1) the first four hundred acre
feet (400 AF) of Excess Water in each year, or the full amount of Excess Water in that year if less
than 400 AF, as to which FPUD exercises its First Right; and (2) all water that is credited to the
Bank per Section 3.2.4.

(i)  Payment Rate B shall apply to each acre foot of Excess
Water delivered to FPUD that is not subject to Payment Rate A. The method set forth in
subsection (1) below shall be used to determine Payment Rate B, absent agreement of the Parties
in accordance with (2) below.

€9)] An amount halfway between:

(a) The SDCWA Treated Water Rate, minus the
sum of the following: FPUD’s O&M cost to treat Project Water, plus any FPUD capital obligation
for FPUD Project Facilities, plus FPUD’s O&M cost of pumping and conveying this water to Red
Mountain Reservoir; and

(b) MCB CPEN’s O&M cost of production and
19

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 61




N

O o0 9 N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

delivery of Project Water to FPUD’s Point of Delivery.
Using the amounts defined in (a) and (b) in this subsection, Payment Rate B = ((a) + (b))/2. (See
also Exhibit 6 hereto.)

Capital and R&R costs other than the capital obligation referenced above are considered to
be sunk costs, and have been intentionally omitted by the Parties. Administrative costs of both
Parties are omitted from this calculation for simplicity.

(2) A different amount agreed to by the Parties in writing,
which amount provides a financial benefit to MCB CPEN to sell and a financial benefit to FPUD
to buy this category of Project Water.

(c) Payments. Payments shall be made annually in accordance with
Section 3.2.3.

3.2.3. Annual Accounting and Payments. At the end of each Delivery Year, the

total deliveries to FPUD will be compared by the Technical Committee to FPUD Entitlements for
that year, actual MCB CPEN Demand, deliveries of imported water to MCB CPEN, Excess Water,
Bank debits and credits, and any other relevant information or categories. The volumes in each
category, and the amounts owed by each Party to the other Party, shall be determined in
accordance with this Settlement. The foregoing information, including the proposed payments and
reasonable back up documentation therefor, shall be reviewed, approved, and reported by the
Technical Committee. The resulting Technical Committee Delivery Year Report pursuant to
Section 6.1.4, shall be provided to the Management Committee within thirty (30) days after the
end of the Delivery Year. Within sixty (60) days after the date that the report is provided to the
Management Committee, the Parties shall make payments to each other sufficient to reconcile
these accounts and bring the balances to zero. The Parties can agree to a different payment
schedule, if such different schedule has been reduced to writing and signed by both Parties.
Several examples of water delivery accounting are provided in Exhibit 7 hereto.

(a) MCB CPEN shall make payments to FPUD in cash or cash
equivalent timely delivered to FPUD at its administrative headquarters located at 990 East Mission

Road, Fallbrook, CA 92088 (mailing address P.O. Box 2290, Fallbrook, CA 92028-2290), or
20

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 062




O 0 9 &N wn A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

other address as FPUD may identify from time to time.

(b)  FPUD shall make payments to MCB CPEN in one of the three

following methods:
i) By check or postal money order made payable to the U.S.
Treasurer (Treasurer of the United States) and mailed or delivered to the following address: AC/S
Comptroller, Attn: Budget Office, Box 555011 Bldg. 1160 Room 273, MCB Camp Pendleton, CA
92055-5011; or
(i) By deposit to an account clearly and sufficiently identified by
MCB CPEN in advance notice to FPUD requesting that any or all FPUD payments under this
Settlement be deposited to that account, where:
(1)  FPUD agrees to create and maintain such account,
provided that all costs of such account shall be borne by MCB CPEN; and
2) Upon notice to the Management Committee, funds
held in such account may be withdrawn by FPUD and used to satisfy any MCB CPEN financial
obligation to FPUD under this Settlement, including but not limited to the purchase of in lieu
SDCWA water pursuant to Section 3.2.5 hereof; and FPUD shall be entitled to any interest
generated by this account; or
(iii) By the provision of in kind services in accordance with
subsection (c) below.

(©) MCB CPEN anticipates that FPUD can, directly or by third party
contract, provide certain water utility services in a relatively cost effective and proficient manner
that will directly benefit MCB CPEN by minimizing the expenditure of appropriated funds to
support the installation’s water infrastructure, serve the public interest, and further the national
defense mission of MCB CPEN and the Department of the Navy. In lieu of any other form of
payment by FPUD to MCB CPEN pursuant to this Settlement, MCB CPEN may request that
FPUD provide: (1) maintenance, protection, alteration, repair, improvement, replacement, or
restoration (including environmental restoration) of property or facilities at the Naval Enclave as

defined in this Settlement; (2) construction of new facilities at the Naval Enclave as defined in this

21

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 063




O© 0 9 O w»n N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Settlement; (3) provision of facilities for use by the Naval Enclave as defined in this Settlement;
(4) facilities operation support for the Naval Enclave as defined in this Settlement; or provision of
such other services at the Naval Enclave as defined in this Settlement as the Secretary of the Navy
deems appropriate with the priority of such services for MCB CPEN Project Facilities, or any
MCB CPEN water system facilities on the southern portion of MCB CPEN. MCB CPEN shall
make any such request in writing with the scope, timing, and other relevant factors clearly
specified. FPUD will determine in its sole discretion whether to provide requested services; and if
it decides to provide those services, whether it will do so itself, or it will do so by contract with
another service provider, in whole or in part.

(i) Where FPUD and MCB CPEN agree that FPUD will provide
certain services, the scope, value, and all other required information shall be set forth in writing
and agreed to by the Parties. Authorization to proceed by MCB CPEN will occur only through
written approval from the designated responsible MCB CPEN official. A “not to exceed cost
ceiling” will be established in the written approval. Upon completion of all or any portion of the
services, MCB CPEN shall promptly inspect and accept the services if performed in accordance
with prudent utility practices, taking into account the circumstances. A MCB CPEN representative
may inspect the work while it is in progress for the benefit of MCB CPEN. The Parties shall
cooperate in furtherance of successful completion of the services.

(1)  If, and to the extent FPUD provides such services:

(1) FPUD shall assign to MCB CPEN, on a non-
exclusive basis, all representations, warranties, and potential liability that FPUD's contractors may
have in connection with the performance of such services. In that regard FPUD shall serve as a
conduit for such liability, and shall not have any independent or direct liability as a result of the
performance of such services.

2) With respect to services performed by FPUD
personnel directly, FPUD's maximum liability shall be limited to the extent of FPUD’s insurance
coverage for such liability.

3) The Parties may use the Technical Committee to

22

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 064




O 0 N A AW NN -

BN N NN NN N N N = e e e e e e pm e
X N L AW = O VNN N N WD R, oo

assist in reaching agreement upon, coordinating, and resolving any issues which may arise with
respect to such in kind services. In kind services may be provided to satisfy FPUD payment
obligations to MCB CPEN which have accrued in accordance with this Settlement. In no case will
in kind services be performed that have a value that exceeds the amount owed to MCB CPEN
pursuant to this Settlement at the time agreement is reached by the Parties regarding in kind
services to be provided by FPUD. A running account including in kind services will be maintained
by the Technical Committee, and reflected in its report(s).

4 The sufficiency of the in kind services provided, or
the amount of the incurred cost of performing those services, will be subject to inspection by the
Technical Committee upon request by either Party or as determined to be reasonably necessary by
the Technical Committee. Any disagreement over sufficiency or cost will be reviewed by the
Technical Committee, and subject to the dispute resolution provisions of this Settlement.

3.2.4. Water Banking. The Water Bank is for the purpose of providing to MCB
CPEN a measure of flexibility by providing an alternative method for MCB CPEN to meet its Base
Entitlement delivery obligation to FPUD, in addition to Santa Margarita River water obtained by
operation of the Project (Project water) or in-lieu SDCWA water in accordance with Section 3.2.5.
The Water Bank operates as an accounting tool that tracks the quantity of credits and debits. The
balance of the Water Bank is a cumulative running total from year-to-year of those credits and
debits. Credits to the Water Bank (positive value) accrue when Project Water is delivered to
FPUD in excess of the sum of the FPUD Base Entitlement plus the first 200 AF of Excess Water.
Debits (negative value) are deducted when MCB CPEN does not meet its annual obligation to
deliver FPUD Base Entitlement in the form of Project water or Section 3.2.5 in lieu SDCWA
water. The Water Bank does not entail any accrual or exchange of money between the Parties. All
allowable credits and debits to the Bank, within the limits defined herein, are made through the
delivery of or retention of Project Water. Decreases in required deliveries of FPUD Base
Entitlement can occur pursuant to this Settlement only if and to the extent that (i) Bank debits are
made in accordance with this Section 3.2.4, or (ii) MCB CPEN makes in lieu SDCWA water

deliveries sufficient to timely provide the full FPUD Base Entitlement in accordance with Section

23

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 065




S

O o0 9 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

3.2.5 of this Settlement.

(a) Bank Capacity. The maximum permitted Bank negative balance at

any time is negative 3600 acre feet (-3600 AF). The maximum permitted Bank positive balance at
any time is positive 3000 acre feet (+3000 AF).

(b)  True Up. The Bank balance shall be no less than zero at least once
every fifteen years. In order to effect this true-up, MCB CPEN shall deliver to FPUD either
Project Water or Section 3.2.5 in lieu SDCWA water in an amount equal to the negative Bank
balance. This delivery shall be in addition to other deliveries called for pursuant to this Settlement,
and shall be completed on a mutually agreeable schedule during the fifteen years, except where a
different delivery schedule is agreed to by the Parties.

(c) Bank Credits. In a given Delivery Year, credits to the Bank are
accrued, up to the maximum permitted balance, after MCB CPEN’s delivery of FPUD Base
Entitlement is met and the first 200 acre feet of Excess Water has been delivered to FPUD. Credits
are based upon additional (greater than the first 200 AF) Excess Water deliveries to FPUD. In a
given Delivery Year, the Bank will be credited based on the amount by which the total volume of
water delivered to FPUD exceeds the sum of the FPUD Base Entitlement plus the first 200 AF of
Excess Water. Once the maximum Bank balance is reached based on this calculation, Excess
Water Deliveries may not be accrued as Water Bank credits.

(d)  Bank Debits.

i) Debits to the Water Bank balance may occur only when and
to the extent that the Water Bank balance is greater than the minimum Water Bank balance, and
MCB CPEN determines that there are aquifer, environmental, or operational constraints that
prevent the delivery of the full amount of the FPUD Base Entitlement in the form of Project Water,
and MCB CPEN elects to use the Water Bank instead of providing in-lieu water pursuant to
Section 3.2.5. If the Water Bank is used in whole or in part to meet MCB CPEN’s obligation to
deliver the FPUD Base Entitlement, the debit from the Water Bank balance will be calculated as
the amount by which the FPUD Base Entitlement exceeds the Project and Section 3.2.5 in-lieu

water delivered to FPUD during that Delivery Year, provided that the Water Bank cannot be
24

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 066




O 00 9 A W»n A WD

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

debited below the minimum Water Bank balance. After the debit is applied to the Water Bank
Balance, and provided that that debit plus the Project and the Section 3.2.5 in lieu SDCWA water
delivered to FPUD during the relevant Delivery Year at least equal the FPUD Base Entitlement,
MCB CPEN has no further financial or other obligation to provide water to FPUD in fulfillment of
MCB CPEN’s obligation to provide that Delivery Year’s FPUD Base Entitlement.

(i) MCB CPEN shall request that the Technical Committee adjust
the delivery schedule in accordance with Section 3.2.8 to accommodate Water Bank debits, and
shall inform the Technical Committee and the Management Committee of its intent to debit the
Water Bank, the existing and projected Water Bank balances, and the resulting proposed
reductions in Project Water deliveries to FPUD. The Technical Committee shall approve the
request and make the appropriate adjustments provided that they are consistent with this
Settlement.

(e) Annual Accounting. The Parties shall perform, or have performed,

an annual accounting of the Water Bank to document and to reconcile Water Bank transactions as
part of the accounting described in Section 3.2.3 above. This accounting shall be included in the
Technical Committee’s Delivery Year Report pursuant to Section 6.1.4. Credits and debits, and
the balance, of the Water Bank are expressed in acre-feet (or fraction thereof, as determined by the
Technical Committee) of water and are not based on the value of water or the transfer of money.

3.2.5. MCB CPEN Provision of In Lieu SDCWA Water. If and to the extent that

MCB CPEN cannot meet its delivery obligations to FPUD using Project Water, and there is no
capacity in the Bank for further debits (i.e., the Bank is at -3600 AF), MCB CPEN shall purchase
from SDCWA water using MCB CPEN SDCWA Rights, in an amount equal to the amount of
unmet FPUD Entitlement delivery obligation, and shall have that water delivered to FPUD at the
SDCWA point of delivery to FPUD at the turnout that supplies Red Mountain Reservoir. Delivery
shall be made no later than one month after the end of the Delivery Year within which the water
would otherwise have been delivered to FPUD from the CUP, on a schedule selected by FPUD,
with MCB CPEN consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. MCB CPEN shall

pay the SDCWA raw water rate for such water including delivery to Red Mountain Reservoir, and

25

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 067




> R > ) U B N

e}

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

FPUD shall pay any SDCWA treatment surcharge for such water. MCB CPEN shall provide to
FPUD at least sixty (60) days advance notice of its need to providle SDCWA water in lieu of
Project Water. The Parties may agree to a shorter notice period. Once the CUP is fully
operational, the Parties intend that such provision of SDCWA water to fulfill the FPUD Delivery
Entitlement shall be the exception rather than the normal practice. Such provision of in lieu
SDCWA water to FPUD shall not be required if it would cause any harm to FPUD, as reasonably
determined by FPUD.

(@) SDCWA Allocations. Each Party shall use its own SDCWA

allocation to meet its respective water demands and any other applicable obligations (e.g.,
obligation to deliver water) of that Party pursuant to this Settlement. Either Party may request use
of the other Party’s SDCWA allocation, which use shall be allowed provided that (i) the other
Party consents to such use in writing, as determined in its sole discretion, and (ii) such use is
allowed under all applicable rules and requirements, including those administered by the SDCWA.

3.2.6. Initiation of Deliveries. Commencing within thirty days of the date of

FPUD notice to MCB CPEN that FPUD is ready to accept deliveries, but no earlier than the earlier
of (i) the date MCB CPEN has completed sufficient construction to enable the FPUD Entitlement
deliveries, or (ii) ten years after the date of enactment of P.L. 111-11, MCB CPEN shall
commence deliveries to FPUD, at the FPUD Point of Delivery, of the FPUD Entitlement. MCB
CPEN shall promptly provide notice to FPUD if and when it completes sufficient construction to
enable the FPUD Entitlement deliveries in advance of the deadline set forth in Section 3.2.6(ii)
above.

3.2.7. Point of Delivery. The FPUD Point of Delivery (or Point of Delivery) is a

point on the boundary between the NWS Fallbrook property and the FPUD CUP WTP property, at
a location as close as is feasible to the FPUD CUP WTP, as depicted in Exhibit 8 hereto. The
exact location will be determined by the Parties’ mutual agreement during the design phase. MCB
CPEN will construct the pipeline and associated facilities from the FPUD Turnout to this Point of
Delivery, and FPUD will be responsible for construction of facilities for treatment and distribution

of Project Water from that Point of Delivery. This point will serve as the Point of Delivery for
26

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 068




A~ W

O 0 3 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Project Water delivered by MCB CPEN to FPUD, as well as for SDCWA water conveyed by
FPUD to MCB CPEN pursuant to Section 2.5. Except as otherwise provided in this Settlement,
possession and control of, and responsibility for, the water being delivered or conveyed transfers to
the receiving entity at the Point of Delivery.

3.2.8. Delivery Schedule. The FPUD Base Entitlement shall be delivered on a

monthly schedule, measured at the Point of Delivery, in accordance with the schedule set forth in
Tables B-1 and B-2. The Parties may agree to a different schedule for any given period of time.
Such agreement shall be made in advance and shall be in writing. Requests to change the delivery
schedule made at least 60 days in advance of the proposed change are the most likely to be able to
be accommodated. If the volume of the change in delivery is minor (e.g., less than 20 acre feet in
a month), shorter notice may be feasible. The Parties shall coordinate with each other, using the
Technical Committee and other resources as needed, to facilitate deliveries and scheduling thereof
in compliance with this Settlement.

3.3.  Water Quality. Project Water used to meet the FPUD Entitlement shall consist
solely of water extracted by wells tapping only the underground aquifer(s). No treatment of this
water by MCB CPEN is required; however, MCB CPEN shall ensure that the quality of Project
Water delivered to FPUD at the Point of Delivery shall be no less than the quality of the raw water
used on the southern portion of MCB CPEN for domestic purposes, before treatment, in every
respect. MCB CPEN shall operate the wells and other Project facilities so as to deliver to FPUD
water of a quality consistent with this Section. Provided the MCB CPEN is in compliance with
this section 3.3, FPUD shall be responsible for any water treatment needed before distribution to
FPUD customers.

3.4. Place and Purpose of Use.

The Parties may use the water to which they are entitled under this Settlement in any
location and in any manner allowed by this Settlement and applicable law.

3.5.  Generation and Protection of Project Yield.

3.5.1. Each year MCB CPEN shall produce as much water from the Project as

feasible, in light of relevant factors, including but not limited to aquifer conditions, sound water

27

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 069




O o0 9 N wn A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

utility management practices, Regulatory constraints, MCB CPEN Annual Demand, and FPUD
Entitlement.

3.5.2. The Parties shall take all measures reasonably necessary or convenient to
protect Project Yield, and except as required by law and in accordance with Article 5, shall not
take any actions that would be reasonably expected to adversely affect that Project Yield, as
determined by the Technical Committee and approved by the Management Committee. The
Parties shall keep each other informed of anything they become aware of that could potentially
decrease project yield.

3.5.3. The Parties may, in their sole discretion, take actions to enhance Project
Yield. If such action results in a measurable material increase in Project Yield, as determined by
the Technical Committee and approved by the Management Committee, the Party whose action
caused such increase shall be accorded the benefits of that increase, provided that there is no cost
to the other Party. The Parties shall reasonably cooperate in furtherance of such increase. Before
either Party initiates any action that will or could enhance Project Yield, it shall offer to the other
Party the opportunity to participate on an equal (50:50) basis, or otherwise as agreed by the Parties,
and other reasonable terms. The Party to whom this offer is made can, but is not required to,
accept, and may accept in whole or in part. The Parties agree to negotiate the terms of such

participation in good faith.

ARTICLE 4
WATER RIGHTS
4.1.  Definition of Water Rights. “Water Rights” shall mean the Riparian Rights, the

Pre-1914 Rights, Permit 8511, Permit 11357, License 10494, Permit 15000B and any extensions,
amendments, replacements, successors, modifications or renewals of such rights, permits, or
licenses necessary or useful for construction, completion, operation, or maintenance of the Project.
The foregoing Water Rights are listed in order of their seniority, the most senior first. “Water
Rights” excludes water right Permit 11356 as it may change from time to time, and any license

issued pursuant thereto.

28

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 70




O o0 9 O wn A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

4.2. Reporting Requirements; Annual Fees.

4.2.1. SWRCB and Watermaster Reporting Requirements. The Parties are subject

to certain reporting requirements to the SWRCB and to the Watermaster with respect to California
State and local laws, rules, and regulations governing the Parties exercise of the Water Rights
(“Reporting Requirements™). The Parties agree that they will satisfy all Reporting Requirements
and report to the SWRCB and the Watermaster the diversion and use of the Water Rights in order
of priority of those rights, with the senior Water Rights being exercised, and water allocated to
them, first, except as otherwise jointly determined by the Parties to best serve Project purposes.
MCB CPEN shall ensure that such reporting is duly accomplished, with the assistance of and in
cooperation with the Technical Committee.

4.2.2. Use and Reporting of Riparian Rights. MCB CPEN’s use and reporting of

Riparian Rights shall not exceed the following:

(a) The annual amounts of “makeup water” Rancho California Water
District is required to provide under the Cooperative Water Resource Management Agreement
between Rancho California Water District and the United States dated March 26, 2002 (“CWRMA
”, approved in the above-captioned matter by Court order filed August 20, 2002), which protection
for MCB CPEN is also substantially reflected in conditions on Rancho California Water District’s
water right Permit 7032 (including any license issued pursuant thereto), pursuant to SWRCB Order
Approving Changes in Purpose of Use, Place of Use, Points of Rediversion and Denying
Extension of Time and amending the Permit dated April 22, 2009 (collectively, the CWRMA and
Permit 7032 conditions are referred to herein as “CWRMA”);

(b) If neither the CWRMA nor the relevant Permit 7032 conditions
apply, the actual amount of MCB CPEN valid use of Riparian Rights; and

(c) The total amount of Riparian Rights used and reported under
Sections 4.2.2 (a) and (b) shall not exceed on a cumulative basis 4,000 AFY.

(d  Water provided under CWRMA which reaches any diversion facility
which is part of the MCB CPEN Project Facilities shall be diverted and used for the Project and in

accordance with this Settlement.

29

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 7 1




O o0 9 AN »n AN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

(e) Use of the CWRMA in this Settlement neither characterizes nor

changes the CWRMA itself.
4.2.3. Use and Reporting of Pre-1914 Rights. MCB CPEN’s use and reporting of

the Pre-1914 Rights shall be as follows:

(a) The rights to and the use of the Pre-1914 Rights shall be in
accordance with the terms and conditions specified in Interlocutory Judgments 24 and 24A in the
Litigation, provided that the use of the water diverted under the Pre-1914 Rights shall be as set
forth in this Settlement.

(b)  The volume of Pre-1914 Rights used and reported as delivered to
Lake O’Neill shall not exceed 1,100 AFY, plus any refill to replace losses during the irrigation
season due to evaporation and seepage, provided that an additional amount not to exceed 100 AFY
may be delivered to Lake O’Neill for purposes of maintaining dead storage, all as more
specifically described in Interlocutory Judgment 24. Any refill of Lake O’Neill for other purposes
shall be an exercise of and reported on the next senior Water Right.

(©) MCB CPEN shall make reasonable good faith efforts to operate
Lake O’Neill in the most efficient and productive manner with minimal losses.

4.3.  Holder of Title Interest in Water Rights.

4.3.1. Riparian and Pre-1914 Rights.

(a) The Department of the Navy shall retain sole holder status in its
Riparian Rights and the Pre-1914 Rights provided, however, that its rights to riparian water shall
be subject to Section 4.2.2 and its rights to the Pre-1914 Rights use shall be subject to Section
4.2.3.

(b)  The Parties agree and acknowledge that the Department of the
Navy’s sole holder status to the Riparian Right and the Pre-1914 Rights set forth above in Section
4.3.1(a) is not intended, nor shall be interpreted, in any way to adversely affect any of FPUD’s
rights, including but not limited to its rights to water deliveries (the FPUD Entitlement), as set
forth in this Settlement, based upon exercise of all of the Water Rights.

4.3.2. All Other Water Rights. Except as specifically set forth herein, title to
30

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 072




O o0 N N A WwWN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Permit 8511, Permit 11357, Permit 15000B, License 10494 and all other Water Rights obtained for
the Project shall be held jointly by the Department of the Navy and FPUD (seventy percent [70%]
Department of the Navy and thirty percent [30%] FPUD). The Department of the Navy hereby
assigns to FPUD a thirty percent (30%) interest in License 10494 consistent herewith, shall file a
notice of change of ownership with the SWRCB in accordance with then applicable SWRCB
requirements within ninety days of Court approval of this Settlement, and shall take all further acts
to effect such change in ownership as are reasonably required.

(a) As of the date of this Settlement, title to Permits 8511, 11357, and
Permit 15000B has been transferred to FPUD and the Department of the Navy as co-permittees in
the proportions contemplated by this Settlement: 30% FPUD and 70% Department of the Navy.
The Parties agree to hold those permits as co-permittees in the specified percentages.

4.4. Credits under California Water Code sections 1011 and 1011.5, and any other
similar provision protecting the Water Rights from loss by nonuse due to reduction in use due to
inter alia water conservation and recycled water use, shall be allocated among the state issued
permits and licenses in a manner that best preserves the water rights to be exercised for the CUP
for the benefit of both Parties. The starting presumption is that credits should be allocated to the
most senior appropriative state issued Water Right(s) first, unless doing so in another manner will
better preserve the Water Rights or is preferable for Project purposes, as agreed by the Parties
respective interests.

The Parties’ respective interests in the Water Rights shall be as set forth in this Settlement.
While there are variations as set forth herein, generally speaking, the respective interests are FPUD
30% and Department of the Navy 70%. The Parties intend that this Settlement be interpreted to
the maximum extent possible to reflect the Parties’ joint ownership of the Water Rights as set forth
herein.

4.4.1. Excepting fees for which the United States has sovereign immunity, for
which FPUD shall not be liable, water right permitting and licensing fees and costs not otherwise
allocated by this Settlement shall be shared in accordance with this ratio where they are for the

benefit of both Parties. Fees and costs for the benefit of one Party shall be borne by that Party.
31

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 7 3




oW

O 0 3 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

4.4.2. (a) If and to the extent a single Party is designated as the primary holder, or
otherwise as the single one that receives correspondence (for example, as presently required by the
SWRCB pursuant to 23 California Code of Regulations section 691), that Party shall be the
Department of the Navy. The Department of the Navy shall be responsible for and shall
competently perform the functions required by this Article 4 and the SWRCB. Otherwise, such
designation shall have no effect on the Parties’ rights and obligations as set forth in this Settlement.
Any Party receiving or sending correspondence, notices, or information of any kind from or to the
SWRCB or other regulatory agency pertaining to the Water Rights shall immediately provide a full
copy thereof to, or if not in writing will otherwise effectively, fully, and timely share it with, the
other Party. Except as otherwise provided in this Settlement, the Parties shall coordinate via the
Technical Committee or other appropriate Party representatives regarding any such
correspondence.

(b) If and to the extent that any of the Water Rights are subject to fees or expenses
pursuant to state law, the Department of the Navy shall provide timely notice thereof to FPUD, and
to the extent such fees or expenses are attributable to FPUD’s 30% interest(s) in the Water Rights,
FPUD shall make such payment directly to the State (with notice to the Department of the Navy)
or shall send such payment to MCB CPEN for it, as primary right holder, to duly forward to the
State. FPUD shall not be liable for any fees or expenses attributable to MCB CPEN the
Department of the Navy’s 70% interest in the Water Rights, for which the Department of the Navy
may have sovereign immunity. (See, e.g., Water Code Sections 1540 and 1560.) The Department
of the Navy shall bear all costs and liabilities, if any, associated with its sovereign immunity, and
claims thereof. The Department of the Navy’s sovereign liability and claims thereof shall not
adversely affect FPUD, including but not limited to FPUD’s Water Rights and water supply. The
Parties shall cooperate in good faith to avoid the unnecessary payment of fees.

4.5. New Applications, Permits, and Licenses. Any new applications, permits, or

licenses issued as a result of this Settlement or as necessary for the construction, completion,
operation, or maintenance of the Project, shall be applied for, issued to and held by the Department

of the Navy and FPUD jointly, in the proportions described in Section 4.5.1 above.
32

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 07 4




AW

O 0 9 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

4.6. Maintenance of Water Rights. Both Parties shall diligently maintain the Water

Rights as appropriate in their respective jurisdictions, and as necessary for purposes set forth in
this Settlement. The Parties shall coordinate in good faith to comply with this provision.

4.7.  Permit 11356. FPUD holds Permit 11356 as it may change from time to time, and
any license issued pursuant thereto, separately and independently; that water right is not part of the
CUP. FPUD agrees not to relocate the point of diversion of Permit 11356 without the consent of
the Department of the Navy if such relocation would materially adversely impact the volume or
quality of water to which the Department of the Navy is entitled. The Department of the Navy
agrees not to unreasonably withhold such consent. If there is such material adverse impact, FPUD

may mitigate for any such impact, and thus allow for relocation.

ARTICLE 5
REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

5.1.  Geographic Allocation. Except as set forth in Section 2.5.2, the Parties shall each

be responsible for Regulatory compliance within their respective jurisdictions, including any costs
thereof. The MCB CPEN jurisdiction includes all facilities and operations on the Naval Enclave,
including on MCB CPEN and northerly through the NWS to the Point of Delivery. The FPUD
jurisdiction commences at the northerly side of the Point of Delivery and includes all FPUD
facilities and operations from that point to and including the FPUD service area, excepting any
conveyance pursuant to Section 2.5.

5.2. Regulatory Compliance Contingency.

5.2.1. In the event that the Project Yield is materially reduced by a lawful
mandatory Regulatory restriction imposed by a federal, state, or local agency other than the Parties
hereto, which restriction was not caused by a Party or the Parties, and could not be avoided or
mitigated as set forth below, FPUD Base Entitlement will be reduced by thirty percent (30%) of
the amount of that yield reduction, when and for so long as that reduction applies. Documentation
sufficient to demonstrate such reduction and the cause therefore shall be provided by either Party

or the Technical Committee to the Parties, the Technical Committee, and the Management

33

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 075



N

O 0 3 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Committee. Entitlement reduction shall be implemented only after final approval thereof, whether
by the Technical Committee, the Management Committee, or the conclusion of any dispute
resolution.

5.2.2. The Parties shall make all diligent and reasonable efforts to avoid, and if
unavoidable, to mitigate, any such restriction. The Party within whose jurisdiction the restriction
applies shall be responsible for such efforts. The other Party shall reasonably cooperate with such
efforts, as needed. Each Party shall bear its own costs except as otherwise provided in subsection
(b)(1) below.

(a) Avoidance: The Party within whose jurisdiction the restriction
applies shall be responsible for all diligent and reasonable efforts to avoid and to mitigate such
restriction, except as provided in subsection (b) below. The other Party shall reasonably cooperate
as needed.

(b)  Mitigation: If the restriction is not avoidable and it materially
reduces Project Yield, and if mitigation is required to and capable of restoring the Project Yield in
whole or material part, then:

i) The Parties shall cooperate to determine and agree upon
reasonable mitigation measures and reasonable costs thereof. The agreed upon mitigation costs
shall be shared in the following ratio: 30% FPUD and 70% MCB CPEN. The Party in whose
jurisdiction the mitigation must be implemented shall effect such mitigation.

(i) If the mitigation is to be effected in MCB CPEN’s
jurisdiction, MCB CPEN may elect to solely determine and pay for the mitigation in order to retain
its autonomy (see Recital Q).

(ii1))  Upon mitigation, the Parties’ rights to and share of Project

Yield shall remain as set forth in Article 3 of this Settlement.

ARTICLE 6
TECHNICAL AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

6.1. Technical Committee.
34

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 076



O o0 9 O wn A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

6.1.1. Function. The Technical Committee shall serve as a forum for discussion
and cooperation among the Parties regarding technical aspects of performance of the Project and
this Settlement. It shall have the duties set forth in this Settlement, and others as assigned from
time to time by the Management Committee. Examples of Technical Committee functions shall
include determining the water year type and scheduling deliveries in accordance with Article 3,
preparation of the Technical Committee Delivery Year Report, Water Bank accounting, and
technical aspects of other provisions of this Settlement. It shall make technical decisions, and
where appropriate, recommendations to the Management Committee, on technical matters. The
Technical Committee shall, with the approval of the Parties with respect to any required funding,
request the participation of one or more persons with relevant expertise, including but not limited
to the Watermaster and representatives of the U.S. Geological Survey, to address technical issues
within such persons’ expertise, and assist in resolving technical disputes within the Technical
Committee. Unresolved disputes shall be promptly reported by the Technical Committee, or either
member of the Technical Committee, to the Management Committee, with supporting
documentation and explanation as appropriate.

6.1.2. Composition. The Technical Committee shall be comprised of one technical
representative on behalf of each Party. The Parties shall at all times have an appointed Technical
Committee representative, notice of which shall be provided to the Management Committee
members. The Parties may change their representative at any time upon notice to the Management
Committee members. Other Party representatives may attend Technical Committee meetings, but
shall not have the ability to vote and must conduct themselves in a manner consistent with the
ability of the Technical Committee to function competently.

6.1.3. Meetings. The Technical Committee shall meet at least twice annually: (1)
at the close of the Delivery Year, on or about April 30, and (2) in October prior to the advent of the
winter season to cvaluate the status of the groundwater levels at the end of peak pumping,
determine whether and how much Excess Water is available, and recommend any needed
adjustments to pumping or other operations. Additional meetings shall be held as reasonably

needed. The Watermaster shall be afforded notice of and opportunity to attend Technical
35

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 077




[\S)

O 0 N A L N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Committee meetings.

6.1.4. Reports. The Technical Committee shall prepare at minimum four reports
per year to update the Parties regarding Project operations, yield, and issues if any. These reports
are the Delivery Year Report and three other quarterly reports. They shall be timely prepared by
the Technical Committee and submitted to the Management Committee.

6.2. Management Committee.

6.2.1. Function. The Management Committee is established for the purpose of
overseeing Project operations and matters relating thereto, and addressing any issues that arise.
The primary goal of the Management Committee shall be to maintain Project operations in a
manner that perpetuates the benefits of the Project to both Parties, and the allocation of burdens of
the Project, as reflected in this Settlement. Among other functions, after its deliberations thereon,
the Management Committee shall timely submit the Delivery Year Report to the Watermaster.

6.2.2. Composition. The Management Committee shall be comprised of one
representative of each Party. Each Party’s Management Committee member shall be authorized to
act on behalf of the Party that member represents. The Parties shall at all times have one appointed
representative to the Management Committee, and shall provide notice of that representative’s
name and contact information to the other Party. The Parties may change their representatives at
any time upon notice to the other Party.

6.2.3. Periodic Meetings. The Management Committee shall meet at least once

every two months from the Effective Date until the end of the first year of Project operations.
Thereafter, the Management Committee shall meet no less than two times per year. Meetings may
be conducted by conference call. Meetings may be called by either Management Committee
member upon no less than twenty (20) days advance notice, and shall be scheduled cooperatively
between the Parties, and the Watermaster to the extent feasible. Management Committee members
may agree to a shorter notice period.

6.2.4. Voting Rules. Decisions of the Management Committee shall be made by
the affirmative vote of both members of the Management Committee. Any decision so made shall

constitute the decision of the Management Committee.

36

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 7 8




O o0 9 O w»n AN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

6.2.5. Dispute Resolution. Decisions and disputes of the Management Committee

shall be subject to the Dispute Resolution provisions of this Settlement.

ARTICLE 7
PROJECT COSTS
7.1.  Allocation.

7.1.1. Costs. Except to the extent any Party is required to make payment(s) to the
other Party as set forth in this Settlement, FPUD and MCB CPEN shall each be independently
responsible for all costs, expenses, and liabilities, including but not limited to capital costs and
operating and maintenance costs of their respective FPUD Facilities and MCB CPEN Facilities.

7.2.  Anti-Deficiency Act. The Parties recognize and acknowledge that any payment

obligations of the United States pursuant to this Settlement can only be paid from appropriated
funds legally available for such purpose. Nothing in this Settlement shall be interpreted as a
commitment or requirement that the United States obligate funds or pay costs in contravention of
Anti-Deficiency Act, 31 United States Code § § 1301 and 1341, or any other applicable provision
of law. The United States payments under Article 3 will not exceed $20,000,000.00 in any given
water year.

7.2.1. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the United States shall make its payment
obligations wherever possible from appropriate MCB CPEN utilities accounts, and the inadequacy
or absence of funding to meet those payment obligations shall not reduce nor eliminate them.
Payment shall be made as soon as reasonably possible. FPUD may offset its payment obligations
when and to the extent that the United States is not meeting its payment obligations under this

Settlement.

ARTICLE 8
TERMINATION
8.1.  In the event that the necessary regulatory permits cannot reasonably be obtained for

the Project Facilities despite the best efforts of the Parties, and as a result the purpose and benefits
37

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 079




O 00 3 N W A W =

N N NN N N N N N = e e e e e e
0 N9 L1 A W= O V00NN N R WY =R o

of this Settlement are not reasonably possible, either Party may petition the Court to terminate this

Settlement. Termination shall occur only upon order of the Court.

ARTICLE 9
SETTLEMENT OF RESOLVED CLAIMS

9.1. Settlement and Dismissal of Resolved Claims. This Settlement shall resolve all of

the Resolved Claims. The Parties expressly agree that the Court shall retain indefinite subject
matter and personal jurisdiction pursuant to Section 11.1, below, to enforce this Settlement and any
disputes pertaining to the Settlement. Within  days of the full execution of this Settlement,
the Parties shall execute and file the Joint Motion for Approval of Settlement and Order of
Dismissal, with attached proposed Order of Dismissal for execution and filing by the Court, all in
the form of Exhibit 2. The Order of Dismissal shall expressly incorporate by reference the terms
of this Settlement and expressly provide that the Court shall retain indefinite subject matter and
personal jurisdiction to enforce this Settlement and any disputes pertaining to it. Additional
briefing in support of the Court approval of the Settlement and Order of Dismissal, as agreed by
the Parties or requested or ordered by the Court, shall be in a form mutually agreed by the Parties.

9.2. Inconsistent Provisions. To the extent this Settlement is inconsistent with all or any

portion of the Court Orders, Interlocutory Judgments, and other applicable rulings previously
entered in the Litigation, and for so long as this Settlement is in effect, this Settlement shall
supersede any such inconsistent provisions. Should this Settlement cease to be in effect, all
provisions of the previously entered Court Orders, Interlocutory Judgments, and other applicable
rulings shall apply.

9.3. Mutual Releases. Excepting the duties and obligations imposed by this Settlement

as set forth herein, each Party does hereby and for its elected officials, directors, officers,
shareholders, employees, agents, attorneys, accountants, expert witnesses, representatives,
successors, and assigns, release and acquit and forever discharge each other Party and its elected
officials, directors, officers, shareholders, employees, agents, attorneys, accountants, expert

witnesses, representatives, successors, and assigns from any and all claims, actions, causes of

38

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 80




O 00 N N U R~ W e

N NN NN NN N N N e e e ek ek e R e e
0 N A L A WD RO DY RN WD R, D

action, demands, rights, damages, fees, costs, expenses, and compensation whatsoever, relating to

the Resolved Claims.

9.4. No Admissions of Liability. This Settlement effects settlement of the Resolved

Claims and nothing contained herein shall be construed as an admission by a Party of liability to

another. Each of the Parties denies any liability and intends merely to avoid further litigation.

ARTICLE 10
BREACH

10.1. Breach Defined. “Breach” shall mean an uncured failure of a Party to perform its

obligations under this Settlement. A Party (the “Breaching Party”) shall not be in Breach until the
other Party (“Non-Breaching Party”) has first delivered to the Breaching Party thirty (30) days
written notice (the “Cure Period”) describing the alleged default, and

(a) for a monetary obligation, the Breaching Party fails to fully perform during
the Cure Period; or

(b) for a non-monetary obligation or such other obligation or default not
reasonably practicable to fully cure during the Cure Period, the Breaching Party fails to commence
within the Cure Period the work of curing the default and carrying it to completion with reasonable
diligence.

10.2. Remedies for Breach. The Non-Breaching Party shall be entitled to exercise such

rights and remedies as may now or hereafter be provided by law and in equity with respect to any

Breach.

10.3. Force Majeure. If a Party’s performance of any of its obligations pursuant to this

Settlement is prevented, hindered or delayed by fire, flood, earthquake, or acts of God, acts of war
(declared and undeclared), riots, rebellions, revolutions or terrorism, which directly and
unavoidably result in physical damage or destruction to the Project, thereby reducing Project
Yield, whether foreseeable or unforeseeable, the effects of which were not caused by that Party
and could not be prevented or avoided by the exercise of due care or foresight of that Party (each, a

“Force Majeure Event”), that Party shall use reasonable efforts, consistent with Prudent Utility
39

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 81




O 00 N O U A W

N N NN N N N N N = e mm em e e e
© N L A WD =2, VNN N N RN WD R

Practice, to recommence performance whenever and to whatever extent possible without delay,
including through the use of alternate sources, workaround plans or other means. The lack of
funding shall not constitute a Force Majeure Event. To the extent a Party’s performance of any of
its obligations pursuant to this Settlement is prevented, hindered or delayed by a Force Majeure
Event and such nonperformance, hindrance or delay could not have been prevented, then the non
performing, hindered or delayed Party shall be excused for such nonperformance, hindrance or
delay, as applicable, of those obligations affected by the Force Majeure Event for as long as the
Force Majeure Event continues and such Party continues to use reasonable efforts consistent with
Prudent Utility Practice to recommence performance pursuant to the foregoing sentence. The
Party whose performance is prevented, hindered, or delayed by a Force Majeure Event shall
immediately notify in writing the other Party of the occurrence of the Force Majeure Event and
describe in reasonable detail the nature of the Force Majeure Event. This Force Majeure provision
shall not apply to excuse non-delivery of all or any portion of FPUD Entitlement if MCB CPEN is
delivering water from the Project for on-Base use, unless and to the extent that the Force Majeure
reduced the Project Facilities’ capacity to make or receive deliveries of Project Water to FPUD. If
the Project Yield is reduced, but not eliminated, during the pendency of a Force Majeure Event,
such reduction shall be shared by the Parties on a pro rata basis (30% FPUD; 70% MCB CPEN).
In the event of and during the pendency of such Force Majeure caused reduction, in order to keep
100% of the reduced supply on MCB CPEN, MCB CPEN shall have the option in its sole
discretion of providing to FPUD SDCWA water purchased by MCB CPEN in accordance with

Section 3.2.5, in lieu of providing to FPUD its 30% share of available Project Water.

ARTICLE 11
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

11.1. Court’s Retained Jurisdiction. The Parties specifically and expressly agree that to

the maximum extent allowed by law, the Court in the Litigation shall retain indefinite subject
matter and personal jurisdiction to enforce this Settlement and any disputes pertaining to the

Settlement.

40

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 082




£ VS R (O]

O 0 9 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

11.2. Informal Resolution. Prior to seeking relief from the Court, the Parties shall first

communicate and meet in good faith to resolve potential disputes informally and promptly. This
shall occur at the Management Committee, with the input and recommendations of the Technical
Committee where appropriate. If, in spite of the foregoing efforts, a dispute persists, either Party
may submit a written Statement to the other Party at the earliest practicable time that the dispute is
identified (the “Initial Statement™). The Initial Statement shall set forth that Party’s position with
respect to the dispute, and shall: (i) be fully supported by detailed factual information; (ii) state the
specific provisions of the Settlement on which the Initial Statement is based; (iii) if the Initial
Statement involves monetary damages, state the exact amount based on best available information
of the damages; and (iv) if the Initial Statement involves specific performance, state the exact
performance requested based on best available information. The Initial Statement shall be
accompanied by all records supporting such Initial Statement and items (i) through (iv) above.
The Demand shall include a written statement signed by an authorized person indicating that the
Demand is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and as complete as feasible,
and that any monetary amount or quantity of water, requested accurately reflects the adjustment for
which the submitting Party believes the other Party is responsible. To assist the other Party in its
review of the Initial Statement, the submitting Party shall comply with reasonable requests for
additional information. Within forty-five (45) days after receipt of an Initial Statement, the Parties
shall meet and confer in a good faith effort to resolve the dispute. Within sixty (60) days of receipt
of the Initial Statement, or a shorter time if required by the circumstances and agreed to by the
Parties, the receiving Party shall provide a written response (the “Responsive Statement™) to the
Initial Statement, setting forth the receiving Party’s position, including the same type of
information as must be contained in an Initial Statement ((i) through (iv) above), and stating the
receiving Party’s decision as to whether the receiving Party accepts or rejects the remedies
requested in the Initial Statement, in whole or in part. The receiving Party may propose alternative
remedies. Failure by the receiving Party to provide such a Responsive Statement shall be deemed
a decision by the receiving Party constituting a rejection of the Initial Statement.

11.2.1. Third Party Neutral. If the dispute remains unresolved, the Parties

41

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 8 3




O o0 9 N b WD =

N N NN N N N N N e ek e ek e e e e e
(= BN e LY B U\ =\ R - BN B« N U, B N S B S e =)

by mutual consent may, but are not required to, select a third party neutral to assist the Parties in
resolving the dispute. The Parties shall first consult with the Watermaster regarding the need for
such third party neutral, to ascertain whether the Watermaster could serve that function in lieu of a
third party neutral, and to ensure that the use of a third party neutral does not interfere with the
jurisdiction of the Court. If the services of a third party neutral are deemed acceptable, the Parties
shall proceed as follows. The function of the third party neutral shall be as determined by the
Parties, e.g., to evaluate and render an opinion, or to act as a facilitator, or otherwise. In such
event the Parties shall share the reasonable costs of such third party neutral on a pro rata basis
(30% FPUD 70% MCB CPEN). Any proceedings before the third party neutral shall be
commenced as expeditiously as possible, and shall not involve any discovery. Either Party may in
good faith elect to terminate such proceedings and proceed to invoke the jurisdiction of the Court
as provided in Section 11.1 of this Settlement.

11.3. Judicial Resolution of Dispute. In the event that the Parties have not resolved a

dispute arising under this Settlement by means of the informal or formal procedures provided in
Section 11.2 above within sixty (60) days of receipt of the date the Responsive Statement was due
under Section 11.2, either Party may thereafter invoke, in the manner provided herein, or as
otherwise allowed by law, the jurisdiction of the Court to resolve such dispute.

11.3.1. The complaining party shall notice a motion, in accordance with the
Local Rules of Court, requesting judicial resolution of the dispute. The Parties may, by stipulation
approved by the Court, alter the time table for briefing the motion; otherwise, briefing shall
proceed as set forth in the Local Rules.

11.3.2. A Party may conduct discovery as to the matter in dispute upon a
showing of good cause that discovery is merited, which showing has been approved by the Court.

11.3.3. In resolving the dispute, the Court shall review the Parties’
respective positions and supporting data, analysis, and such other information as the Parties may
seek to submit.

11.4. The Parties expressly agree that in the event the Court fails or declines for any

reason whatsoever to accept or assert jurisdiction to enforce this Settlement, or at any point

42

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 08 4



O o0 9 O wn N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

terminates its continued jurisdiction to enforce this Settlement (including, but not limited to,
reasons pertaining to the discretion of the Court, a change in procedural or substantive law, or the
passage of time), any Party shall have the remedy to file a new action in the above court to enforce

this Settlement.

11.5. Attorneys’ Fees Incurred in Judicial Resolution of Dispute. In the event of any

dispute involving the Parties to this Settlement to enforce any provision of this Settlement, to
enforce any remedy available upon default under this Settlement, or seeking a declaration of the
rights of either Party under this Settlement, that entails judicial resolution of any such dispute,
enforcement, or declaration of rights, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to seek recovery from
the other Party such attorneys’ fees and costs as may be reasonably incurred, including the costs of
reasonable investigation, preparation and professional or expert consultation incurred by reason of
such dispute, provided that such fees and costs may be recovered only to the extent provided by
law. Except as set forth above, all attorneys’ fees and costs incurred prior to the execution of this
Settlement and all prospective attorneys’ fees and costs relating to this Settlement and the

transactions contemplated hereby shall be borne by the party incurring the same.

ARTICLE 12
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

12.1. Notices. All notices, demands or other communications given hereunder shall be in
writing and shall be sufficiently given if delivered by overnight delivery service, sent by registered
or certified mail, first class, postage prepaid or by facsimile with confirmation of receipt and the
original mailed same day first class postage prepaid, addressed as follows, or by electronic mail
provided confirmation of receipt is received by electronic mail or telephone within one business
day.

If to the FPUD:
General Manager
Fallbrook Public Utility District
990 East Mission Road
Fallbrook, CA 92088

43

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 085




O o0 O N »n N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

With a copy to:

Fallbrook Public Utility District General Counsel

c/o Fallbrook Public Utility District
990 East Mission Road
Fallbrook, CA 92088

If to United States, the Department of the Navy, the United States Marine Corps, and MCB

CPEN, or any of them:
Director, Water Resources Division
Box 555013
Bldg. 220105T
Camp Pendleton, CA 92055-5013
With a copy to:

Commanding General

Attn: AC/S G-F

MCIWest-MCB

Box 555010

Camp Pendleton, CA 92055-5010

Counsel, Western Bases

Western Area Counsel Office
Box 555231

Bldg. 1254

Camp Pendleton, CA 92055-5231

or such other address with respect to any Party hereto as such Party may from time to time notify
(as provided above) to the other Party hereto. Any notice, demand, or communication pursuant to

this Section shall be deemed to have been given upon delivery provided the delivering Party

receives requisite confirmation of delivery.

12.2. Assignment, Successors, and Assigns. Subject to the remaining provisions of this

Section 12.2, this Settlement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto
and their respective successors, heirs and administrators, and assigns. Except as provided in the
following sentence, no Party shall assign any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the
prior written consent of the other Party, which the other Party shall not unreasonably withhold,
delay, or condition. Notwithstanding the foregoing, both Parties shall have the right, without the
consent of the other, to transfer its rights and obligations under this Settlement pursuant to a
governmental change in organization or reorganization under California or Federal law, including
but not limited to any of the following circumstances: (a) to the surviving entity in a change of

organization, reorganization, or merger; (b) to an entity which acquires all of the assets of FPUD

44

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT

086



HwWN

O 00 3 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

or MCB CPEN; (c) where the transfer occurs pursuant to operation of law.

12.3. Further Assurances. The United States, Department of the Navy, United States

Marine Corps, MCB CPEN and FPUD each agrees to perform such other acts, and to execute,
acknowledge and deliver, subsequent to the Effective Date, such other instruments, documents and
other materials as the other may reasonably request and as shall be reasonably necessary in order
to implement this Settlement provided that such act and that execution, acknowledgement, and
delivery of such instruments, documents and other materials do not contravene any applicable
provision of law.

12.4. Reasonableness Requirement. Where the provisions of this Settlement provide for

the opinion, judgment, decision, approval, review, agreement, or determination of any Party, such
provisions are to be construed as requiring that such opinion, judgment, decision, approval, review,

agreement, or determination be reasonable.

12.5. Independent Responsibilities. Except as specifically set forth herein, each Party is

separately and independently responsible for its water supply, and associated treatment,

discharges, deliveries, water quality, financing, facilities, and otherwise.

12.6. Entire Agreement. This Settlement, together with all schedules, enclosures, and

exhibits attached hereto and thereto, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties, all oral
agreements being merged herein, and supersede all prior representations. No other documents,
representations, agreements, arrangements, or understandings, oral or written, between or among
the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Settlement constitute any part of this Settlement or
the settlement it represents, nor shall they be used in construing this Settlement.

12.7. Calendar Days. All references in the Settlement to “days” shall mean calendar days
unless stated otherwise.

12.8. Amendments and Waivers. Subject to Article 8 (Termination), no term or provision

of this Settlement may be amended, waived, discharged or terminated orally but only by an
instrument in writing signed by the Party against whom the enforcement of such amendment,

waiver, discharge, or termination is sought. Any waiver shall be effective only in accordance with

45

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 087




A~ W

O 0 3 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

its express terms and conditions.

12.9. Headings. The headings in the sections of this Settlement are inserted for
convenience only and shall not constitute a part hereof or affect the meaning or interpretation
hereof.

12.10. Construction. Each of the Parties acknowledges that (a) it has been represented by
legal counsel throughout the negotiations that preceded execution of this Settlement, and (b) it has
executed this Settlement in consideration of the advice of such legal counsel. No provision of this
Settlement shall be construed against any Party on the ground that such Party or its counsel drafted
the provision.

12.11. Counterparts. This Settlement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts
including by facsimile signature, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same document.

12.12. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence.

12.13. No Third-party Beneficiaries. This Settlement, and the obligations, responsibilities

and goals set forth herein, are solely for the benefit of FPUD and MCB CPEN only.
Notwithstanding any provision herein, the parties do not intend to create, expand of otherwise
imply rights of any nature to or for the benefit of any person, state, agency or entity not a named

Party hereto.

12.14. Cooperation. In the event of any action or proceeding by third parties to challenge
the terms and conditions of this Settlement the Parties to this Settlement agree to cooperate with
each other in a vigorous defense of such action as necessary.

12.15. Federal Entities. The federal entities referenced in this Settlement, the United

States, its Department of the Navy, the United States Marine Corps, and MCB CPEN, are related
entities which perform different functions. Any obligation undertaken, representation made, or
other reference made herein to one of these federal entities is fully binding on all of these federal
entities.

12.16. No Partnership or Joint Venture. The Parties are not partners or joint venturers, and

46

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT
088




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

O 00 9 &N n N

nothing in this Settlement shall be construed as to create a partnership or joint venture between the

Parties.

12.17. Authority to Execute Agreement. Each person whose signature appears hereon

represents, warrants, and guarantees that she or he has been duly authorized and has full authority

to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom such signature is made.

Signatures to immediately follow on next page.

47

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 089



O o0 N9 AN A~ W N -

N N NN NN N N N M s e e ek e m ek e
0 9 AN L A WD =, OV NN N DW= o

BY

BY

BY

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

President of the Board of Directors

LENNIHAN LAW

MARTHA H. LENNIHAN
Attorney for Defendant

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
NATURAL RESOURCES SECTION, ENVIRONMENTAL &
NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION

BRUCE D. BERNARD
Attorney for Plaintiff

48

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT

460978.5

090



O 00 9 N B~ W =

N N NN N NN N N e e e e e e e e
0 N9 A L A W R, OO NN N R W= o

EXHIBIT 1

TO
STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT

Definitions

“AMP” means the Adaptive Management Plan developed by MCB CPEN.

“Bank” means the CUP water bank discussed in Section 3.2.4 of this Settlement.

“Breach” shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 10.1 of this Settlement.

“BUREC” means United States Bureau of Reclamation.

“Court” means the United States District Court for the Southern District of California.

”CUP” or “Project” means the Santa Margarita River Conjunctive Use Project as described
in this Settlement. It includes all MCB CPEN water production facilities in the Santa Margarita
River Watershed, as those facilities may be rehabilitated, replaced, and/or expanded, subject to
Section 3.5 and other provisions of this Settlement. MCB CPEN is separately and independently
responsible for the Lower Ysidora sub-basin wells, including but not limited to water rights
reporting. This in no way affects the Parties’ other rights and responsibilities under this
Settlement.

“CWRMA” means the Cooperative Water Resource Management Agreement.

“Days” shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 12.7 of this Settlement.

“Effective Date” shall be the date of final Court approval of this Settlement.

“Excess Water” shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 3.2.2 of the Settlement.

“Force Majeure Event” shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 10.3 of the

Settlement.

“FPUD Base Entitlement” shall be as determined under Article 3, Sections 3.2 et. seq. of

the Settlement.

“FPUD Excess Entitlement” means water as to which FPUD has exercised the FPUD First

Right to Purchase Excess Water.

49

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 460978.5 09 1




N

O 0 N O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

“FPUD Entitlement” shall mean FPUD Base and Excess Entitlement. Those terms or

either of them may also sometimes be referred to as “delivery” entitlement.

“FPUD First Right to Purchase Excess Water” or “First Right” shall have the meaning set

forth in Section 3.2.2, and otherwise in this Settlement.

“FPUD Point of Delivery” shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 3.2.7 of this

Settlement.

“FPUD Project Facilities” means those Project Facilities located within the FPUD Service

Area, as more fully described in Section 2.3 of this Settlement, including water treatment facilities
at the proposed FPUD water treatment plant adjacent to the Point of Delivery (FPUD CUP WTP),
including any brine disposal facilities; conveyance facilities from the FPUD CUP WTP to the
Gheen Reservoir site including a booster pump station, and from the Gheen Reservoir site to Red
Mountain Reservoir, including a booster pump station.

“FPUD Service Area” shall have the meaning as set forth in Recital D of the Settlement.

“FPUD_Turnout” means the turnout constructed by MCB CPEN on the pipeline that

delivers Project Water to the MCB CPEN advanced water treatment plant (“MCB CPEN WTP”)
(Building number 2470). The FPUD Turnout will be located at a point in the pipeline prior to the
pipeline’s connection to the MCB CPEN WTP. Project Water for delivery to FPUD is diverted
into the FPUD Turnout and conveyed to the FPUD Point of Delivery, and water for delivery to
MCB CPEN continues in the pipeline to the MCB CPEN WTP for treatment. All water which
goes into the FPUD Turnout is water being delivered to FPUD, excepting any deliveries of water
to MCB CPEN conveyed through FPUD Wheeling Facilities in accordance with Section 2.5 of this
Settlement.

“FPUD Wheeling Facilities” shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 2.5.4 of this

Settlement.

“FPUD Delivery Facilities” means the MCB CPEN facilities from the FPUD Turnout to

the Point of Delivery, for which FPUD pays O&M and R&R rates for Project water delivered to
FPUD as otherwise set forth in this Settlement. These facilities will include one or more flow

meters to measure water deliveries to each Party.

50

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 092




O 0 N9 A AW NN =

N NN NN N N N N e e e pm e e e
® A L AW = OV NN DN WD R, oo

“Hydrologic Year” means May 1 through April 30.

“License 10494” means appropriative water rights license number 10494 issued by the

State Water Resources Control Board.

“Limited FPUD Capacity” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.6 of the
Settlement. It does not apply in the context of ordinary day to day and monthly scheduling or
temporary outages.

“Litigation” shall have the meaning as set forth in Recital H of this Settlement.

“Management Committee” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.2 of this

Settlement.

“MCB CPEN Annual Demand” means on-Base, offstream potable water demand served by

MCB CPEN. The northern portion of MCB CPEN has historically been served with water from
resources other than the Santa Margarita River; the Santa Margarita River is used to meet the
southern portion of MCB CPEN demands. A pipeline is being constructed by MCB CPEN to
allow water deliveries between the northern and southern portions of MCB CPEN, MCB CPEN
shall be allowed to use this pipeline to deliver its allocation of CUP Water per this Settlement to
meet northern portion of MCB CPEN demands in the event of and for the duration of an
emergency interrupting the other sources of supply to that portion of MCB CPEN. Otherwise,
CPEN Annual Demand shall be the southern portion of MCB CPEN demand. MCB CPEN shall
not use CUP Water in lieu of other sources of supply that can reasonably be used to serve the
northern portion of MCB CPEN demand.

“MCB CPEN SDCWA Rights” means any and all of MCB CPEN rights to water from the

San Diego County Water Authority, whatever those rights may be, and including but not limited to
the normal delivery of water, allocation of water during shortages, and the preferential right.

“MCB CPEN Project Facilities” means those Project Facilities located within MCB CPEN,

as more fully described in Section 2.2 of this Settlement. MCB CPEN facilities include the
following: Groundwater recharge facilities including a diversion structure, conveyance canal and
recharge ponds; extraction facilities including groundwater wells and conveyance piping; delivery

facilities including conveyance from the wells to the MCB CPEN WTP and to the FPUD boundary

51

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT O 9 3




oo 0 9 O wn A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

near the FPUD CUP WTP, including booster pump stations.

“Model Year” means the modeled future conditions based upon the 50-year Period of
Record used for this Project (see Appendix A).

“Naval Enclave” shall be as defined in Recital A of this Settlement.

“1966 Modified Final Judgment and Decree” shall have the meaning as referred to in

Recital H of this Settlement.

“NWS Fallbrook™ means Naval Weapons Station, Seal Beach Detachment, Fallbrook.

“O&M” means reasonable and actual routine operations and maintenance (excluding repair
and replacement). O&M is the actual labor and materials cost for the pump station and pipeline
for the specified facilities, e.g. for the delivery of water to FPUD, the pipeline and pump stations
located between the FPUD Turnout and the FPUD Point of Delivery. O&M costs are for
operations and maintenance personnel to operate and maintain facilities. O&M costs include but
are not limited to valve operation, pump operation and maintenance and pipeline inspection O&M
includes all planned operations and maintenance, and excludes all unplanned items such as repair
of unanticipated leaks which shall be R&R. See also Exhibit 5 to this Settlement.

“Parties” means FPUD and MCB CPEN, collectively.

“Party” means individually FPUD or MCB CPEN, as applicable.

“Period of Record” means the 50-year hydrologic period of record, consisting of Water

Years 1952 through 2001, as described in this Settlement including Appendix A.

“Permit 8511” means appropriative water rights permit number 8511 issued by the State
Water Resources Control Board pursuant to application number 11587, as it may be amended from
time to time, and any license issued based on that permit.

“Permit 11357 means appropriative water rights permit number 11357 issued by the State
Water Resources Control Board pursuant to application no 12129, as it may be amended from time
to time, and any license issued based on that permit.

“Permit 15000B” means appropriative water rights permit number 15000B issued by the

State Water Resources Control Board pursuant to application number 21471B, as it may be

amended from time to time, and any license issued based on that permit.

52

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 094




O 00 N N A~ W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

“Point of Delivery” shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 3.2.7 of this Settlement.

“Point of Diversion” means the location of the existing MCB CPEN diversion structure on

the Santa Margarita River at the head gate of the O’Neill diversion ditch.

“Pre-1914 Rights” means MCB CPEN’s pre-1914 appropriative water rights, the use and

application of which are further described in Interlocutory Judgments 24 and 24a entered in
the Litigation.
“Project” means the CUP.

“Project Facilities” means those facilities and equipment associated with the Project. A list

of primary Project Facilities is contained in Exhibit 4 to this Settlement.

“Project Water” or “CUP Water” means water from the Santa Margarita River system
diverted and/or extracted using Project Facilities.

“Project Yield” means the amount of water produced, without limitation, from the water
system supporting the southern portion of MCB CPEN, including wells in the Chappo, Upper and
Lower Ysidora sub-basins, and completion of all CUP Project Facilities, with yield estimates
quantified as set forth in Appendix A.

“Prudent Utility Practice” shall mean a Party’s diligent construction, operation,

maintenance, repair and replacement of the Project or Project components, excepting the facilities
and functions for which the other party is responsible, in a prudent and reasonable manner so as to
provide efficient and reliable water deliveries.

“Public Law 111-11” or “P.L. 111-11” means the Omnibus Public Land Management Act

of 2009.

“R&R” or “Repair and Replacement” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.1(b)
and Exhibit 5 of this Settlement.

“Regulatory” means all requirements of applicable law, including without limitation
administrative, judicial, and legislative requirements in all of their forms.

“Reporting Requirements” shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 4.2 of the

Settlement.

“Resolved Claims” shall have the meaning as set forth in Recital J of this Settlement.

53

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 095




AW

O 0 0 O W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

“Riparian Rights” means MCB CPEN’s riparian water rights, the use and application of which are

further described in Interlocutory Judgment 37 entered in the above-captioned matter.

“Settlement” means the Santa Margarita River Conjunctive Use Project Agreement and
Stipulation of Settlement.

“SDCWA” means San Diego County Water Authority.

“SDCWA Allocation”, as used in Section 3.2.5(a) of this Settlement, means the allocations

as they existed at the time of execution of this Settlement and any subsequent mechanisms by
which SDCWA makes water available to its members that serve the same or similar purpose. At
the time of execution of this Settlement, where there is a shortage of water, SDCWA makes water
available to its members on an “allocation” basis. There are at least two types of allocations: a
“loss of local supply” allocation, and a general allocation.

“SDCWA Treated Water Rate” shall mean the total amount FPUD would be required to

pay to SDCWA to purchase treated water delivered to Red Mountain Reservoir, as that amount
may change from time to time. Offsets, such as credits for water diverted under Permit 11356,
which would reduce this total amount, are not included.

“SWRCB” means the State Water Resources Control Board.

“Technical Committee” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.1 of this Settlement.

“United States” means the United States of America. References in this Settlement to the
United States, the Department of the Navy, the United States Marine Corps, and MCB CPEN, or
each of them, may reflect these federal entities’ different roles, but shall be construed as inclusive
of all these federal entities.

“Water Bank™ means the CUP water bank discussed in Section 3.2.4 of this Settlement.

“Water Rights” shall have the meaning as set forth in Section 4.1 of this Settlement.

“Water Delivery Year” or “Delivery Year” is May 1 to and including April 30.

“Watermaster” means the Watermaster appointed by the Court in the above-captioned

matter.

“Winter Flow” means the October 1 through April 30 total stream flow at the Point of

54

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 096




o o0 9 &

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Diversion, before any diversions, extractions, or bypasses at the Point of Diversion have occurred

(see Appendix A).

“WTP” means water treatment plant.

55

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 097



o o0 3 O

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

EXHIBIT 2
TO
STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT

Form of Joint Motion for Approval of Settlement and Order of Dismissal Attached

56

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT

098



O 00 N & Bk~ WD

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Case No. 51-1247-GPC-RBB

Plaintiff,
ORDER OF DISMISSAL
Vs.

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY
DISTRICT, a public service corporation of
the State of California, et al.,

Defendants.

It is stipulated by and through the plaintiff, United States of America, and defendant,
Fallbrook Public Utility District, as follows:

1. The United States of America and the Fallbrook Public Utility District executed that
certain Stipulation of Settlement (“Settlement”) on or about 2017, the terms of which are
incorporated herein by reference.

2. The Court approves the Settlement, the terms of which are hereby incorporated by
reference as though set forth at length.

3. Pursuant to the Settlement, the complaint is dismissed.

4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Court shall and hereby does reserve and retain
indefinite subject matter and personal jurisdiction to enforce the Settlement and any disputes

pertaining to the Settlement.

5. In the event the Court fails or declines for any reason whatsoever to accept or assert

57

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT 099




O 0 9 N n B

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

jurisdiction to enforce this Settlement, or at any point terminates its continued jurisdiction to enforce

this Settlement, any Party shall have the remedy to file a new action in the above court to enforce the

Settlement consistent with its terms.

Dated:

By:
Dated:

By:
Dated:

By:
IT IS SO ORDERED.
Dated:

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

President of the Board of Directors

LENNIHAN LAW

MARTHA H. LENNIHAN
Attorney for Defendant

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
NATURAL RESOURCES SECTION,
ENVIRONMENTAL & NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION

BRUCE D. BERNARD
Attorney for Plaintiff

Judge of the United States District Court

58

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT

100



FALLBROOK
PUBLIC UTILITY
DISTRICT

Red Mountain
Reservoir

(v

FPUD Point
of Delivery

Saj Diego
Clounty

o

N

1 ciy v River EXHIBIT 3
—— FPUD Delivery Facilities =~~~ Creek
/\/ Interstate ﬂ Naval Weapons Station VICINITY MAP
/\/ state Highway a Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base (Location of Facilities are Approximate)
San Diego Water Authority G FPUD Boundary . N P

STETSO! "M ol
’:{mq“q‘ Aqueduct and Pipelines T Viles

:\in2408\FPUDVicinity Map. mixd




EXHIBIT 4
TO STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT
MCB CPEN and Fallbrook Public Utility District

SMR CUP Project Facilities

(non-exhaustive)

The Project includes construction of facilities on CPEN and NWS Fallbrook by MCB CPEN, and
construction of facilities within FPUD by FPUD. The only exception to this geographic division of
responsibility for Project Facilities is that FPUD may construct certain conveyance facilities on the
Fallbrook Naval Weapons Station (NWS Fallbrook), as noted below and as shown on Exhibit X. Existing
facilities will also be used for the Project, such as the existing groundwater production wells and water
system facilities on MCB CPEN that will be used to produce and deliver water to FPUD as well as to
produce and deliver water for use by MCB CPEN.

CPEN Project Facilities include the following:

Modification of the existing diversion structure on the Santa Margarita River and an associated
diversion ditch to remove the existing constraint on diversion capacity resulting from a roadway,
and increasing the headworks diversion capacity from 100 cfs to 200 cfs;

Rehabilitation of existing groundwater recharge ponds located on Camp Pendleton property.

Installation of new groundwater production wells within the Upper Ysidora Sub-basin and the
Chappo Sub-basin;

New groundwater delivery facilities from CPEN to FPUD including modifications to existing
conveyance from the wells to Haybarn canyon, where the FPUD Turnout will be located, and
new conveyance facilities from the FPUD Turnout to the Point of Delivery at the FPUD boundary
at the existing Fallbrook WWTP site, including booster pump stations

Existing and upgraded groundwater production facilities, storage and delivery system

FPUD Project Facilities include the following:

Groundwater treatment facilities to treat Project water at the existing Fallborook WWTP site
(FPUD CUP WTP), including any brine disposal facilities

Bi-directional pipeline for conveyance of untreated Project water from the FPUD Turnout on
MCB CPEN to the FPUD Point of Delivery, and for conveyance of treated water supplies
imported from SDCWA to MCB CPEN. The facilities will provide conveyance of Project water
from the FPUD CUP WTP to FPUD’s Gheen reservoir site, including a booster pump station,
and conveyance facilities from the Gheen reservoir site to FPUD’s Red Mountain Reservoir,
including a booster pump station. A portion of the conveyance facilities from the FPUD CUP
WTP to Gheen Reservoir may be constructed by FPUD on NWS Fallbrook.

102



484 ANV
W80 SAVd and4
= S3LLITIDVA
123r04d
N3dD 8O

S3LLIDVA
vmodas

-
!
]
]
[}

S3ILITIOVL
103rodd
and4

~

SAILITIDVA
1253ro4d
N3dD 9O

(123ro¥d FH1
40 14vd 1ON)
ININLYIYL

N3dD 9O

g g S

NOIL231100 /

/! dim tl)

NOILONAoYd SANOd

IDYVHIOIY

’ ’

/! dnNdandd /,; ¢/
\ \ \\ \

/ S yeunadid
/ K \\cc:o:umg.ﬁ \“\

L y3LYm
w
! annoyo

; JITNZENIdD L | eTnd

JI0AIBS?Y \ N q,/ ~ / _r/

NLW Q34 : S/ ey

\ S/ /1 NOANWO
\INIAIG s I NYVEAVH LY
\ ”

A

. N7
i
i

TYNOILD3YHId / / /' 11NONYNL and4

\agands /) S .
Cecccrccccme= I\I PRp—— \
/

HIIM

/ /
angg /2 OB Noimanad HIAIY NOISYIAIG
/ SNOdVIM /
/ / dINVD VL1IdVOYVYIN VINYS
/ IVAVN / J e e e e mmmme e o

/

103



EXHIBIT 5

TO STIPULATION FOR SETTLEMENT

MCB CPEN and Fallbrook Public Utility District

General Description of Operation, Maintenance, Repair, Replacement, and Administrative
Costs for FPUD Delivery Facilities and FPUD Wheeling Facilities

1.0 Certain Project Rates

1.1  FPUD Delivery O&M Rate
1.2 FPUD Delivery R&R Rate.

1.3 Other Costs and Rates ........

2.0 FPUD Delivery O&M Costs

2.1.1 Source of Supply (SOS) .
2.1.2 Transmission...................
2.1.3 Pumping.......ccccoeeverenen..
2.1.4 Treatment..........cccuenn...n.

3.0 FPUD Delivery R&R Costs

..............................................................................................

..............................................................................................

..............................................................................................

..............................................................................................

..............................................................................................

..............................................................................................

..............................................................................................

3.1.1 R&RCostS...cuuuveeeeeeannn..

4.0  Other Rates

..............................................................................................

4.1  Administrative and General EXPenses .........ccccuvvievirieiinierieieieieieesiees e ese e
4.1.1 Adaptive Management and Operations Plans..............ccccovueieievienieniiiicieiieeeeren
4.1.2 CUP Administrative and General (AG).........ccoeveeivrieierienieiieieie et

4.2  Technical Committee (TC).

..............................................................................................

4.3 FPUD Wheeling Facilities COStS.........cerueriiairiieieiniieriieieieteiesessessssseeseessese e ssneseennas
4.3.1 FPUD AdMINISIIAtIVE COSES o.vvviiieieieeeeeieeeeeeeeeee e e e e e et eeeeeeeeeaeseeeeeeeeeeeeereeeaens

4.3.2 FPUD O&M Costs..........
4.3.3 FPUD R&R Costs...........

..............................................................................................

..............................................................................................

5.0 Exemplary Operation, Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement Activities .................

5.1  Operations activities Would inClude: ...........ccooeeiiviriiniiieieieieee e 7
5.2 Maintenance activities would include: ...........cccevieiiirinieiinieececece e 7
5.3 Repair activities Would inCIUde: ..........cceeviriieieiieieieecceee e 8

5.4  Replacement activities would include:............ccocuerievieiiiininiiniineieeeeeeee e

6.0 Exemplary O&M and R&R

Cost Calculation

Page i

Exhibit 5 - FPUD Delivery O&M and R&R Costs; Wheeling O&M and R&R Costs

104



1.0 CERTAIN PROJECT RATES

This Exhibit 5 provides additional detail regarding Payment Rate A, the “wheeling” rate,
and other costs.

Payment Rate A is comprised of: (1) the FPUD Delivery Operation and Maintenance
(O&M) Rate; (2) a 15% administrative surcharge on the O&M Rate; and (3) the FPUD Delivery
Repair and Replacement (R&R) Rate discussed in the Stipulation for Settlement (Settlement).
The FPUD Delivery Facilities are the MCB CPEN Project Facilities from the FPUD Turnout on
the raw water conveyance line near Haybarn Canyon to the FPUD Point of Delivery. Delivered
water is Project Water delivered by MCB CPEN to the FPUD Point of Delivery.

This exhibit also describes the FPUD wheeling rate which applies when SDCWA
imported water is delivered by FPUD through FPUD Wheeling Facilities to MCB CPEN at the
MCB CPEN side of the FPUD Point of Delivery. These rates, and any additional costs as
described in the Settlement, are paid by MCB CPEN to FPUD on a per acre foot of water basis.

This exhibit is to provide further detail regarding the foregoing rates and associated costs,
as well as some of the costs that are intentionally not being incorporated into the rates. It is
supplementary to the Settlement. In the event of conflict, the Settlement prevails.

1.1 FPUD DELIVERY O&M RATE

The FPUD Delivery O&M Rate is based on actual costs incurred by MCB CPEN for
FPUD Delivery Facilities during the operation of those facilities to make deliveries to FPUD. It
is charged to FPUD annually based on a per acre foot of delivered water basis. MCB CPEN will
document and summarize all O&M costs for each month during the delivery year, and include
this documentation with the final invoice for payment. The intent of the FPUD Delivery O&M
Rate is for FPUD to pay its fair share of costs associated with variable or recurring annual costs
such as labor, maintenance, monitoring, consumption of material and energy, and other variable
costs associated with the operation and maintenance of FPUD Delivery Facilities. This O&M
Rate will exclude all administrative costs. FPUD will pay for administrative costs via the fifteen
percent (15%) administrative surcharge on the O&M payment.

1.2 FPUD DELIVERY R&R RATE

The FPUD Delivery R&R Rate is a calculated amount based on the estimated life of the
FPUD Delivery Facilities (without regard to actual R&R costs, whether less or more.) It is
charged to FPUD annually based on a per acre-foot of delivered water basis. The actual costs
will be paid by MCB CPEN regardless of whether or not the costs are more or less than the
amount paid by FPUD. The intent of FPUD Delivery R&R Rate is for FPUD to pay a calculated
unit cost that represents its share to maintain facilities due to normal wear and tear over their
useful life. A calculated amount has been intentionally chosen in lieu of actual costs in order to
allow CPEN to maintain autonomy of facilities within the Naval Enclave.

Page 1
Exhibit 5 - FPUD Delivery O&M and R&R Costs; Wheeling O&M and R&R Costs

105



1.3 OTHER COSTS AND RATES

The Settlement introduces costs and rates that address the parties’ financial responsibility
for General and Administrative costs, Technical Committee costs, and FPUD facilities wheeling
costs for imported water. While the General and Administrative costs are based on a 15%
overhead fee levied against the FPUD Delivery O&M Rate, each parties’ share of the Technical
Committee is the responsibility of the party that incurs that cost. Finally, the FPUD Facilities
Wheeling cost for delivery of imported water to MCB CPEN is based on administrative, O&M,
and R&R costs incurred by FPUD to operate facilities required to deliver imported water to the
FPUD Point of Delivery as described in Section 2.5.4 of the Settlement.

2.0 FPUD DELIVERY O&M COSTS

The FPUD Delivery O&M costs account for water delivered from MCB CPEN at the
Turnout Point to the FPUD Point of Delivery. These costs do not account for delivery of
imported water from the FPUD Point of Delivery to MCB CPEN since the Base will be
responsible for O&M of the pipeline. Other costs associated with the delivery of imported water
through the FPUD Wheeling Facilities and the R&R costs for the use of the FPUD Delivery
Facilities are discussed in the appropriate section.

2.1.1 SoOURCE OF SupPPLY (SOS)

The FPUD Delivery SOS O&M includes labor, supervision, engineering, materials,
supplies, and other recurring expenses incurred in the operation and maintenance of collecting,
impounding, diverting, rediverting, and conveying of water from the inflatable weir to Haybarn
Canyon. SOS facilities include: inflatable weir, O’Neill ditch, turnout and control structures,
recharge ponds, Lake O’Neill, groundwater recovery wells, raw water conveyance pipelines, and
supporting appurtenant facilities.

FPUD Delivery SOS O&M costs include electricity and consumable materials required to
pump groundwater from the Santa Margarita River basin aquifer and deliver it to the FPUD
Turnout.

Allocation of SOS Costs:
CPEN: 100%
FPUD: 0%

2.1.2 TRANSMISSION

The FPUD Delivery Transmission O&M includes the cost of labor, supervision,
engineering, materials, supplies, meters, and other expenses incurred in the operating and
maintenance cost of transmitting water through the FPUD Delivery Facilities. FPUD Delivery
Transmission O&M facilities include the bi-directional pipeline and storage reservoirs, if any,

Page 2
Exhibit 5 - FPUD Delivery O&M and R&R Costs; Wheeling O&M and R&R Costs

106



required to support the conveyance of water from the FPUD Turnout to the FPUD Point of
Delivery.

FPUD Transmission O&M costs from the FPUD Turnout to the FPUD Point of Delivery
are calculated by summing the actual annual costs incurred by MCB CPEN divided by the total
quantity of water delivered.

Allocation of Transmission Costs:
CPEN: 0%
FPUD: 100%

2.1.3 PUMPING

The FPUD Delivery Pumping O&M includes labor, supervision, engineering, materials,
supplies, meters, electricity, consumable and other expenses incurred in the recurring cost of
pumping water through the FPUD Delivery Facilities from the FPUD Turnout to the FPUD Point
of Delivery.

FPUD Pumping O&M costs from the FPUD Turnout to the FPUD Point of Delivery are
calculated by summing the actual annual costs incurred by MCB CPEN divided by the total
quantity of water delivered.

Allocation of Pumping Costs:
CPEN: 0%

FPUD: 100%

2.1.4 TREATMENT

There are no treatment facilities included in the Fallbrook Delivery O&M costs.

3.0 FPUD DELIVERY R&R CoOSTS

FPUD Delivery R&R costs are not calculated individually for either the repair or
replacement portion; rather they have been lumped as one cost using industry standards. Minor
repair performed on the system is included in the costs identified as O&M discussed above.
FPUD Delivery R&R costs account for the delivery of Project Water to FPUD and imported
water to CPEN, when appropriate. Major repair is likely to include replacement of major
components and is included in the R&R costs described below. This R&R Rate will not include
any administrative costs nor incur an administrative surcharge. FPUD will pay for administrative
costs via the fifteen percent (15%) administrative surcharge on the O&M Rate.

The calculation of the FPUD Delivery R&R costs differs from the calculation of FPUD
Delivery O&M costs because they are based on long-term average annual use and not actual

Page 3
Exhibit 5 - FPUD Delivery O&M and R&R Costs; Wheeling O&M and R&R Costs

107



annual costs. FPUD Delivery R&R costs are calculated using 3,350 AFY based on the historical
50-year long-term average annual delivery of FPUD Base Entitlement (3,100 AFY) and the
estimated MCB CPEN average annual import water requirement (250 AFY). Additional water
delivered to either FPUD or MCB CPEN through the FPUD Delivery Facilities does not incur
R&R Costs.

3.1.1 R&R CosTs

The FPUD Delivery R&R unit cost is calculated based on the actual capital cost of the
component divided by the expected useful life divided by the projected average annual delivery
of both project, and if applicable, imported water. The R&R cost for the FPUD Delivery
Facilities required to lift or pump project water is based on an average annual delivery of 3,100
AFY. The R&R cost for FPUD Delivery Facilities used to convey both project water and
imported water between the Fallbrook Turnout and the FPUD Point of Delivery is based on an
average annual delivery of 3,350 afy. The 50-year long-term estimated requirement of imported
water from the SDCWA to MCB CPEN is anticipated to be 250 afy’.

R&R costs will be calculated based on actual capital costs following completion of
construction of the FPUD Delivery Facilities and initiation of deliveries to FPUD. After the first
year of full deliveries, FPUD Delivery R&R costs would then be escalated annually based on an
appropriate index such as the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index (CCI), the
Consumer Price Index (CPI), the Handy Whitman index or otherwise agreed to published
escalation factor(s) by the Parties, to reflect actual costs incurred by MCB CPEN.

FPUD R&R Costs are collected so that MCB CPEN may perform major repairs and
maintenance to the FPUD Delivery Facilities so they remain in good working order. R&R costs
are escalated annually so that the present value of repair and replacement is maintained
throughout the life of the project. The annual reporting of costs should include applicable
escalation factor(s) and an estimate of the present value of to replace facilities as if new. If the
cost to replace facilities as new are not consistent with the R&R unit cost or each parties’ use of
the pipeline is not consistent with the original estimate based on the 50-year historic record; the
Technical Committee should review discrepancies and provide recommendations to the
Management Committee for action.

Allocation of R&R Costs:

CPEN: 0% (except for delivery of imported water to MCB CPEN))
FPUD: 100% (except for delivery of imported water to MCB CPEN))

! MCB CPEN made this determination based on the 50-year model for Run 16a, which showed that MCB CPEN
will require an average of 500 afy to meet an assumed demand of 7,822 afy. Because the demand may be met by
severe drought demand measurements or other conservation measures, MCB CPEN believes that only 250 afy
(roughly '2) would be required from imported water supplies. Actual import water deliveries to MCB CPEN are
expected to occur during Extreme Drought and Below Normal hydrologic conditions; and may exceed 1,500 afy
during these periods.

Page 4
Exhibit 5 - FPUD Delivery O&M and R&R Costs; Wheeling O&M and R&R Costs

108



While FPUD is responsible for contributing to R&R expenses as set forth in this exhibit
and the Settlement Agreement, MCB CPEN has the responsibility of performing and paying for
R&R. The FPUD Delivery R&R payment rate from FPUD to MCB CPEN is calculated on a per
acre foot unit cost as shown in the attached table based on estimated 3,100 AFY FPUD Base
Entitlement delivered to FPUD; plus a projected 250 AFY of SDCWA water delivered to MCB
CPEN through non-pumping related facilities. The average annual conveyance of water through
the FPUD Delivery Facilities is estimated to be 3,350 AFY; of which only 3,100 is conveyed
through the pumping facilities. The R&R costs attributed with delivery of imported water to
MCB CPEN will be the responsibility of MCB CPEN and reduce the overall R&R Rate to be
paid by FPUD for non-pumping related FPUD Delivery Facilities.

4.0 OTHER RATES

The following sections of this exhibit describe other rates that are discussed in the
Settlement.

4.1 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

MCB CPEN recovers all administrative and general expenses based on a 15% overhead
fee levied against the FPUD Delivery O&M Rate; not on item-by-item methodology used for
O&M and R&R. The following section addresses various overhead costs which will be incurred
by MCB CPEN to maintain the maximum sustainable yield of the Lower Santa Margarita River
Basin.

4.1.1 ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS PLANS

The annual recurring expenses related to the Adaptive Management and Operations Plans
consists of all costs related to operation of the groundwater model, Adaptive Management Plan
(AMP), and Operation Plan (OP). Facilities included in the AMP and OP include monitoring,
telemetry, and recording instrumentation required to monitor streamflow, groundwater levels,
and environmental parameters that impact the diversion and rediversion of water for the CUP.
The cost of these plans is in part recovered by MCB CPEN through FPUD’s contribution of the
15% fee levied on the FPUD Delivery O&M cost.

Allocation of AMP and OP Costs:
CPEN: 100% (except as recovered by the 15% fee referenced above)
FPUD: 0% (except as recovered by the 15% fee referenced above)

4.1.2 CUP ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL (AG)

The CUP Administrative and General costs include all office, reporting, accounting, and
similar expenses related to the regulatory and statutory reporting requirements. The cost of AG
services is in part recovered by MCB CPEN by FPUD’s contribution of the 15% fee levied on
the FPUD Facilities O&M cost.

Page 5
Exhibit 5 - FPUD Delivery O&M and R&R Costs; Wheeling O&M and R&R Costs

109



Allocation of AG Costs:
CPEN: 100% (except as recovered by the 15% fee referenced above)
FPUD: 0% (except as recovered by the 15% fee referenced above)

4.2  TECHNICAL COMMITTEE (TC)

Technical Committee costs include administrative, office, and the Parties’ staff and
consultant services regarding all aspects of the performance of the project. Each party will pay
their share of TC services; these costs are not included in the 15% fee levied on the FPUD
Facilities O&M cost.

Allocation of TC Costs:

CPEN: Each Party Pays Their Share
FPUD: Each Party Pays Their Share

In the event that the Technical Committee requests and obtains approval for participation
of one or more persons with relevant expertise as set forth in Section 6.1.1 of the Settlement,
costs of those outside services shall be allocated 30% FPUD and 70% MCB CPEN.

4.3 FPUD WHEELING FACILITIES COSTS

The FPUD Wheeling Facilities costs include all administrative, O&M and R&R costs
associated with MCB CPEN’s use of FPUD Wheeling Facilities for delivering water from
SDCWA to the FPUD Delivery Facilities at the FPUD Point of Delivery. If there are any
additional costs or expenses incurred by or to FPUD in connection with such wheeling they will
be paid by MCB CPEN in accordance with the Settlement. FPUD will document and summarize
all FPUD Wheeling Facilities costs for each year and include this documentation with a final
invoice for payment.

4.3.1 FPUD ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

The FPUD Administrative costs include all office, reporting, accounting, and similar
expenses related to the purchase of SDCWA imported water to MCB CPEN.

4.3.2 FPUD O&M CosTs

FPUD O&M costs include the cost of labor, supervision, engineering, materials, supplies,
meters, and other expenses incurred in the operating and maintenance cost of transmitting
water through the FPUD Wheeling Facilities. FPUD Wheeling O&M facilities include
the bi-directional pipeline and storage reservoirs required to support the conveyance of
water from the FPUD’s turnout with SDCWA to the FPUD Point of Delivery.

Page 6
Exhibit 5 - FPUD Delivery O&M and R&R Costs; Wheeling O&M and R&R Costs

110



4.3.3 FPUD R&R CosTs

FPUD Wheeling Facilities R&R Costs will be based on a similar methodology used to
determine the FPUD Delivery R&R Costs described in Section 3.1.1. of this Exhibit.
FPUD Wheeling Facilities R&R costs are based on conveyance pipeline facilities and do
not include pumping station related costs because the delivery of imported water to MCB
CPEN will be entirely by gravity.

Allocation of FPUD Wheeling Facilities Costs:
CPEN: 100%

FPUD:

5.0

5.1

5.2

0%

EXEMPLARY OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND REPLACEMENT
ACTIVITIES

OPERATIONS ACTIVITIES WOULD INCLUDE:

Scheduling deliveries and turn on and off pumps or adjust pump operation based on
delivery requirements.

Coordination with FPUD on delivery timing and changes
Time associated with operating and controlling any valves to facilitate delivery.

Power costs for pump station operation to boost water from Haybarn Canyon to FPUD
for actual water delivered.

MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES WOULD INCLUDE:

Regular valve exercising.

Labor and material for regular maintenance of valves such as lubrication and
adjusting/replacing seats and seals.

Labor and material for regular pump and motor maintenance such as balancing impellors,
maintaining fluids, and painting.

Regular inspection of pipeline and appurtenances
Testing, inspection, and calibration of field instruments.

Minor repairs for regular schedule service replacement items such as replacing seals,
fluids, touch up painting, fuses, indicator lights and minor field instruments.

Page 7
Exhibit 5 - FPUD Delivery O&M and R&R Costs; Wheeling O&M and R&R Costs

111



5.3

5.4

6.0

Support, maintenance, and upgrades to CUP SCADA and related computer systems (as
with all costs, this is to the extent applicable to FPUD Delivery Facilities.)

REPAIR ACTIVITIES WOULD INCLUDE:

Servicing leaks in pipe, valves or pumps

Removing Pumps for service for replacement of parts such as impellors, casings, or
bearings.

Unplanned failures of valves or pumps that required immediate on-site modifications.

Fixing wiring or shorts on electrical components

REPLACEMENT ACTIVITIES WOULD INCLUDE:

Replacement of Entire Pump
Replacement of Pump Motor
Replacement of Valves
Replacement of Sections of Pipeline

Replacement of electrical gear such as motor control centers.

EXEMPLARY O&M AND R&R COST CALCULATION

See attached spreadsheet. The numbers are exemplary only.

Page 8
Exhibit 5 - FPUD Delivery O&M and R&R Costs; Wheeling O&M and R&R Costs

112



€102 'y Aeruge

o | abed

suopenoBaN Joj 81507 M/ /O Jo 8jdwex3

Kjuo sjdurexa Joj pasn sanjea [enuue abesone wual-buo *Aienjeq Jo Juiod ANdd 8Uk 0} palenyep Jojpue paduind Jojem [enjoe 8y} s}oajja1 MO} [enuuy :3LON

8re 029 000'€6L 000'002'S 000'€66'S 1500 OYRYY NO [enuuy  of
150D BORIIWOY [eO1UYOa] | b 000°G} 0005} %05 %05 0000 008°0I BRILULIOD [BALY23] Hoddng 0} SOSNJ01S0D  6E
}s00 uoissiwsuel] O} - 000°G¢ - %001 %0 0006 0s€'t auljadid [euooaid-ig 10} YOVOS  8€
, 1500808 - 6 ° 00000l %0 %001 000'00, 0080} Buiduing seMpunois) pue uoisieNd Yavos /€
}S00 d8jwWo) [ealUydel | - 000'S1 5 %00} %0 000°G} 008°01 }s00 Bugesy [eoluyoe pejejey ANd4 9
}s00 d9jlwwo) [eajuyse| - £ s 000°0¢ %0 %00} 000'05 0080l 1500 BORILIWOY [e21UYIB] PAjelOY NIdD  GE
 180) ueid uopesedQ pue Juswabeue|y aajdepy - ¥ - 00007 %0 %00L 0000y 008'0L llom Bupiojuow MeN ¢
1500 Uel4 uonessdo pue Juswebeuely sndepy - s - 00005 %0 %00L  0000S 0080l sjjem Bunioyuow Joj Juswdinba Anjewsje) ¥avos €€
1500 Ue|d uonesedQ pue juswsbeuep sajdepy - 6 = 000004 %0 %00} 000004 00801 8oUBUBJUIRY\ [9POJA JBjempunols  zg
1509 Ueld uoyesed( pue juswabeue|y andepy - 6 S 00000} %0 %00} 00000} 008°0} ue|d uonesadQ pue ueld Juewabeuey snjdepy  |g
1500 [eJaUS9 pue SAJelSIUIWPY dND - i = 00005 %0 %00} 000'05L 0080} ajepdn ue|d Juswebeuely JusliNN eSO
1500 [e18UBY) puB BAJRISIUIWPY dND - 6 : 100000} %0 %001 00000, 0080} ) Ueld Uoyosjold paysislepm 67
JsoQ uwpy and4 - 0l ¢ 10002 %0 %00} 000 002} Hodw Buljsey 10}1s0) UIWPY ANd4 82
JsoQ uoissjwsuel] g - 000 s %00L %0 0006 00L'€ Buniojjuop pue Ayswee) oe4 Aienea dndd /2
}s00 uoissiwisuel] | = 000°¢ - %00 %0 000'¢ 00L'¢ Buipoday pue Bunoyuoly oe4 ienjea And4 92
}S0D Uoissiwsuel] ¢ - 00001 - %001 %0  0000L  00L'€ ~ sonjeA Jo uopoadsul pue soueusjulely  GZ
js00 Jeday - 143 = 00000} %0 %001 00000,  00L'E SoNeA Y0oyQ oe4 Aionlad dnd4 fledsy 12
js00 Jedsy - 5l = 000'sy %0 %001 000Gy 00L'e oe4 Kienjeg dnd4 fledey €2
jsoo Jedey - | 2 000¢ %0 %00, 000t 00L'E oe4 KioAlleg dNd4 uo eAeA esesay Jiy dledey  Zg
1500 Juswaoe|day - ) 2 000'8 %0 %001 0009 00L'E oe4 A1on[aQ and4 uo eneA esesjay Iy soejdey  |g
~ }soojuswedelday - 8l = 000'5S %0 %001 0006S  00L'€ ~ Bigiejsoogie sojopy dwnd soejday (7
}s00 uoissjwsuel] g = 000'G - %00} %0 000's 00L'e soAjeA sailioed Aienjeg andd esiiexa 6l
~1s0Q Budwng 18 - 0000s¢ - %00} %0 000052  00b'€  (XXLOIXXEI®) Andd o} Jeysoog Buidwing Jojosl3 g}
1s00 Buidwng 18 = 000052 - %001 %0 00005 00L'€ (XX€ 01 06 |9) Joysoog 0} weghe buidwng Jojo8l3 /|
1s00 Budung ¢ - 00000} - %00} %0 000'00L  00L'E (0ed Aienjeq and4) siveld Buiduing and4 40 W30 91
}S0) UOISSIWSUBL] G| WB) Bl WS} ) WY 61 way %004 %0 6l way 00L'e oe4 KIoNIQ Nd4 Joj sesuadxe pied ‘syony ‘sied G|
180D Uoissjwsuel]  gg = 00000} - %00 %0 00000,  00L'€ sepyoe4 Aisnjeg ANd4 40 W30 ¥l
}s00 uoissiwsuel] g - 000% = %001 %0 0006 ook'e jnoun anddjouogesedp ¢}
1800508 - W - 000005 %0 %00} 00000 0080l soueferuo) Jajep mey o uojesedo )
1500508 - L = 00008 %0 %00} 00008 008°0l duind lap jo Jusweoedey |}
1800808 - €6 = 000'000'k %0 %00L  000°000°h  008°0b Buiduing Jejempunolg) Joy Aol )
1803808 - £ = 000°0¢ %0 %00} 00006 0080} Bunojuow [lam Jejempunoly 6
1500808 - K4 = 0000057 %0 %00,  000'0057 0080} slleMm Jajempunolg jo uojesadp g
1500508 - ¥ 5 000's %0 %00} 000's 00Z' Buipoday pue Bulojuoy lBNO Y87 £
1800808 - €8 = 00000} %0 %00} 00000 002t llen,0 e¥e Bulbpaig 9
1500808 - ¥ e 000'G %0 %00} 000G 002} I8N, eYeTjouogesedp G
) 100508 - o - 0002 %0 %00} 0007 008°0L _ Jefeuueq 1oy Aompoe3
1500808 - ¥ E 00007 %0 %00} 0000¥  008°0l Buipoday pue Bunoyuoly yaug ¢
1500808 - ! = 000°01 %0 %00, 0000} 008°0L YOHQ IIIBN,O Jo uopesed) 7
}s00 808 - Z S 000'0Z %0 %00} 000'0¢ 00801 uojsian] pue 1isp Jo uoeiedp |
150D 1s0) and4 N3dD 0} uonesojly  uoneaofly }s0) MO|4 aoueusjule|y pue :o_ﬁm_wqo lenuuy wa}f

wndy  wundy o opqupy qQUAYISOD  dnd4 N3dD N3d0 fenuuy

andd  N3do 1809 [enuuy

(AluQ sesoding ojdurexy 1oy a1e UMOYS dI€ SON[BA [[)

SLSOD INTWIDVIdTH/ MIVITT ANV ‘AINVNALNIVIA ‘NOLLVIAJO TVIOdALJO STTdNVXA

HATdV.L ONILIOddNS ¢ LIGIHXHT

113



€102 'y Kierugad

240 7 abed

suopenoBaN Joj $}S00) /Y W/O 10 ajduex3

(AdV 052) N3dD 0} saualieq YMD [enuuy + (4 00}€) Juowopiu3 8seg (Ndd POIEWNSS S8}l AJY 0SE'S
(100z-zG61) ABojo1pAy Jeak-Qg U0 paseq JusLORNUT 8seg (Nd- POIBWNSS SI8|RI A4V 001
Aie 06z Jo saliaAljaq J81ep papodul| apnjoul v 'z Ly SWa) :3LON

(ATuQ sosoding spdurexy 1oy a1e UMOYS dIe SSN[eA [[)

SLSOD INFWIDVIITA/AIVATA ANV “‘ADNVNALNIVIA ‘NOLLVIAJO TVIDJALJC STTINVXA
ATdV.L ONILIOddAS § LIGIHXH

vse 029 L99'SEL'L  000°002'S 199'5ee'9 o S1S0) yBY pue WRO [BI0L 9
90L - 199'7vE . 199'2p¢ 1500 ¥y [enuuy G
00000z 9 = 00002 0 _%00L 0L 0000z _ 0SEE uonejuswnisy]  py
000000} 22 - 19999 0 %001 5l 19999 00L¢ leag [eowel3 gy
- 000'0007h v . 00007} 0 %00, 00l 00007} 0gg'e suedld gy
00000 9 . 00002 0 %00} 1A 0000 0S€'s seAep sulpdld |y
000008 O} - 000ze 0 %00L Sz 0002€  00L'E Juewdinbz dwng  qoy
1000'009'h G s 0009} 0 %00L  00L 0009k 00b'E sjuswoenoidu| pue sainpnis dung — eqy
000'00v'2 - , ) Jueld budwng Jg)soog oy
000008 0} - 000'Z¢ 0 %00} 52 0002  00L'E Juowdinbz dwng  ageg
000'009'h G - 000°9} 0 %00) 00l 0009} 00b'e sjuswanoidw| pue saimonyg dund  egg
000°00¥'C Weld buiduing wegfey  6¢
}s0) _E_%o 109 1s0) and4 o) N3d0 0} uoljeso|ly )7 Inydsn 1s0) MO |enuuy Ssoljioe4 EwEmom_aom pue __maww_ lenuuy wa)|
Wndy N4y QUAYISOD  quaYIso) N3O N3dO
andd  N3dd lenuuy

114



EXHIBIT 6
Payment Rate B
(All Costs Shown are For Example Only)

CPEN O&M COSTS to FPUD POINT OF DELIVERY Comments
CPEN O&M Cost of
& FPUD Delivery - producing and conveying
CPEN GW 0&M Fac. O&M CPEN Cost project water to FPUD
POD.
$430 $46 $476
FPUD TOTAL COSTS to RMR
FPUD FPUD Cost of treating and
FPUD Treat + FPUD Convey * | Capitalto | = FPUD conveying project water
O&M 0&M BOR, Cost from FPUD POD to RMR
if any
$158 $50 Unknown $208

Caicuiate Rate B

CALCULATE EQUIVALENT COST OF IMPORT AT POINT OF DELIVERY

Equivalent Cost of Import
Cost of SDCWA . at POD is the cost of
Treated - = Equivalent imported water delivered
Imported Water FPUD Cost Import at to RMR minus the cost to
to RMR POD treat and convey project
water to RMR
$1,073 $208 $865

CALCULATE RATE B MARGIN

Rate B Margin
Equivalent Rate B
Import at POD - CPEN Cost - Margin
$865 $476 $389
CALCULATE RATE B
Rate B is the CPEN O&M
Cost plus 1/2 the Rate B
CPEN O&M Cost +* 1/2 | Rate B Margin - Rate B Margin

$476 $195 $671

Notes: CPEN = MCB Camp Pendleton
BOR = Bureau of Reclamation
RMR = FPUD's Red Mountain Reservoir
O&M costs are determined in accordance with the Settliement Agreement.
In the even of conflict, the Settlement Agreement Governs.

115



EXHIBIT 7

TO STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT
MCB CPEN and Fallbrook Public Utility District

Examples of Water Delivery Accounting

Example: Below Normal Year, Banked Excess Delivery, starting bank balance = 0.

Year Type: BN

Month Required Actual Ending Bank | Rate A Rate B SDCWA in-
Entitlement | Delivery Balance Excess (<400 | Excess (>400 | lieu water
Delivery AF) AF) delivered

May 60 70

June 60 70

July 60 50

August 60 50

September 60 60

October 150 150

November 150 200

December 150 250

January 150 150

February 150 200

March 150 150

April 100 150

Annual Total 1300 1550 50 200 0 0

Example: Below Normal Year, Rate B Excess Delivery, starting bank balance = 0.

Year Type: BN

Month Required Actual Ending Bank | Rate A Rate B SDCWA in-
Entitlement | Delivery Balance Excess (<400 | Excess (>400 | lieu water
Delivery AF) AF) delivered

May 60 400

June 60 400

July 60 400

August 60 400

September 60 400

October 150 400

November 150 400

December 150 400

January 150 400

February 150 400

March 150 400

April 100 800

Annual Total 1300 5200 3000 400 500 0

116



Example: Very Wet Year, Required SDCWA in-lieu water Delivery, starting bank balance = 300.

Year Type: VW

Month Required Actual Ending Bank | Rate A Rate B SDCWA in-
Entitlement | Delivery Balance Excess (<400 | Excess (>400 | lieu water
Delivery AF) AF) delivered

May 740 400

June 650 400

July 550 400

August 450 50

September 350 50

October 350 0

November 400 0

December 500 0

January 550 0

February 590 0

March 590 0

April 600 400

Annual Total 6320 1700 -3000 0 0 1320

Note: Additional examples showing project conditions and use of the bank during a simulation of 50-

year project conditions if the 50-year 1952-2001 hydrology were repeated are shown in
Appendix A.

This exhibit and Appendix A augments the Settlement Agreement. In the event of conflict, the
body of the Settlement Agreement shall prevail.

117




B AV ARVWEAPONS

FALIBROOK

Connection to FPUD Distribution
| and Imported Water Supply

Point of Delivery is a location on the boundary
between the NWS Fallbrook property and the

(Location of Facilities are Approximate)

» FPUD CUP WTP property, at the location as
| close to feasible to the FPUD CUP WTP. The
FPUD Delivery Facilities i location serves as the Point of Delivery for Project
N .| Water delivered to FPUD and for SDCWA Imports
e 'i delivered to CPEN.
T 3 FPUD Point
: of Delivery
N \gmsﬁ“',mw

* d " -
3 \
E‘ \ San Diego
@ County
2|
[
% ¥ \
E na
& Exhibit 8
@ - -
3 Point of Delivery
P

0 10 20
] Miles

118



RESOLUTION NO. 4919

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION OF THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
UNITED STATES AND THE DISTRICT AND CAMP PENDLETON AND
ITS FILING WITH THE FEDERAL COURT FOR APPROVAL

* % % % %

WHEREAS, after many decades, a successful conclusion to the long-standing
litigation between the District and Camp Pendleton has been reached: and

WHEREAS, in 1951, the Federal Government sued all water users in Fallbrook,
claiming it had water rights superior to those of Fallbrook, and as a federal military
installation, was not required to comply with state water law. This case, United States
v. Fallbrook PUD, is the oldest unresolved water rights litigation in California. In 1966, a
Modified Final Judgment and Decree was issued by the Federal Court, which required
the U.S. Government and the District to develop a physical solution to address the
water rights dispute on the Santa Margarita River; and

WHEREAS, for over 66 years the residents of Fallbrook and the District have
been seeking to resolve this dispute to be able to develop a local water supply. After
many years of unsuccessful negotiations, that physical solution, the Santa Margarita
River Conjunctive Use Project and the local water supply it will provide, is now within a
few years of being a real, functioning project; and

WHEREAS, the final settlement was achieved by District staff and District water
counsel, working with Camp Pendleton and its advisors. It was approved by the United
States Department of Navy on November 8, 2017. It has been reviewed by the Santa
Margarita Watermaster, who has indicated that he will support it in his role as advisor to
the Federal Court.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT THAT:

1. The Board authorizes the Board President and the District water counsel to
execute the Settlement Agreement substantially in the form of Attachment 2
to the December 11, 2017 Memorandum of Acting General Manager Jack
Bebee to the Board of Directors; and

2. The Board further authorizes the filing of the Settlement Agreement with the
Federal Court for approval.

119



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District at a regular meeting of the Board held on the 11 day of December, 2017, by

the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

President, Board of Directors

120



This page intentionally left blank.

121



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee
DATE: December 11, 2017

SUBJECT: Consider Adopting Resolution No. 4920 Approving the Increased Rates
- for Water and Recycled Water Service Charges, and Rates for
Wastewater Service Charges and Taking Other Related Actions

Purpose

Provide the Board with the Fiscal Policy & Insurance Committee’s final recommended
rates and charges for water, recycled water and wastewater services.

Summary

December’s vote on the calendar year 2018 rates and charges and the Proposition 218
noticed proposed rate and charge increases is the culmination of long and thorough
financial planning process that began in April of 2017. The process involved extensive
community outreach and communications as well as multiple public hearings.
Attachment A shows all of the Public Relations actions taken to notify and solicit input
from the District’s ratepayers.

In preparation for the adoption of rates and charges for calendar year 2018, the water
cost data was updated to reflect the adopted water rates from the District's wholesale
provider, the San Diego County Water Authority (the “SDCWA”). Prior to this update,
estimated SDCWA water costs were used to determine the District’s rate and charge

levels.

In addition to updating water costs, staff also identified some personnel cost savings
measures. These cost savings combined with lower water costs reduced the overall
recommended water revenue increase in calendar year 2018 from 8% to 6.5%.
Attachment B shows the Proposition 218 published rates and charges along with the
calendar year 2018 recommended water rates and charges.

While the Board is only adopting rates and charges for calendar year 2018 at this time,
as part of the Proposition 218 process, the published rates and charges are also being
approved as a cap or maximum for each of the District’s rates and charges. Attachment
C is the Resolution adopting the calendar year 2018 rates and charges and setting the
maximum permitted rates and charges through 2022. It is important to note that the
District will adopt rates and charges each year after a thorough review of actual costs.

Recommended Action

That the Board adopt Resolution No. 4920 adopting the rates for water and recycled
water service charges, and rates for wastewater service charges.

Page 1 of 2

122



Attachment A:
Public Relations Outreach Activities

Letters:
e Sewer increase, approximately 5,000 letters, mailed Aug. 18
e TSAWR increase, 360 letters, mailed Aug. 24
* 1" meter customers increase, approximately 1,600 letters, mailed Aug. 28
e Commercial Ag, Gov meter service charge, approximately 365 letters, mailed
Aug. 30
Domestic, Multi-family meter service charge, approximately 79 letters, mailed
Aug. 30
Stand-by increase, approximately 102 letters, mailed Aug. 30
Pumping cost increase, 36 letters, mailed Aug. 30
Prop. 218 letters, mailed Sept. 30
Second round of Prop. 218 letters, mailed Oct. 24

Workshop/meetings
e Mon., May 17, 4 p.m. public hearing with Raftelis Financial Consultants
e Tues., Sept 12, 6 pm for TSAWR customers
e Thurs., Sept. 14, 6 pm for other customers who received letters
e Wed., Nov. 15, 6 pm public workshop

Press release
o Written Sept. 8, appeared in Sept. 14 Village News — front page, top of the fold

Ad/mini newsletters in Village News
Oct. 5, half-page ad

Nov. 2, half-page ad

Nov. 9, half-page ad

Nov. 23, half-page ad

Dec. 7, half-page ad

Printed material
* Full-page color handout created for Nov. 15 Public Comment meeting

Web site
e Posted complete cost-of-service study by Raftelis — under “Transparency” and on
the home page revolving carousel
Posted PowerPoint presentation prepared for May board meeting
Posted PowerPoint presentation prepared for Nov. 15 board meeting
Posted Prop. 218 letter mailed in October
Posted (12/1) the Nov. 15 public workshop transcript and District response to
speaker questions

123



Attachment B

124



£8TT X3 GTTT-82/ (09£) 0 3uawindaq buliaauibug gnd4 ayi 19031u02 aspajd WWn02p InoA 13fJo [j1m A3y1 moy 1o $a3p4 asayl Inoqp suolisanb Aub anby noA e

€8'%$ 680$" " Yauow Jad syun g 19nQ

LTS TZHS " yuow Jad syun gz JanQ

N@.mw @Whmw.............................WH_CD S-1T @ wioq 8y wo)
mw.qm mw._ W........... ..... sesnseas ......wmmw: __< R 5 < EOU

('1e3.000°T = 1un T) LINN ¥3d 34V SIDI¥d TIV

Y= 1Yy ¢} 1\ ng‘:&Ig
.......... 38esn ||y :[D) IUSWIUIoA0D)

mw.vw mwqu........ —._HCOE 19d spun 0z-9 Ow.mm WWhWW. ...... ceee |me3 =< “A: >_CO CO\IWI_HN (50]] mm.owg.lﬁw ....................................SMCOE Jad sjuun Qg FEYYe)
Nw.mm @mew.....................:..... suung- | u.Alj 3NMS5Wioqg 3y O.H.OW.... ..... T ©** (AjJuouokol g vSa@) D10 suiduing s gyyOW Jad suun Qg -9
. . e mm.om........ ...... ssescsanees ..A>_Co C°>°|—. uw <Wﬁ: mwm‘_mgu m..%&:& N@.mw QWth L P R P PP P Y —._HCOE ‘_WQ WH_CB m - .H
LTVS T2 S a8esn I\ ~W<' 3y .VN.N.W........ ..... e 98000 IV D) 938 UOIDNIISUO) W) 3un oIn
UMVS .Hw..vw .Nmb—vw:....... ..... sesesseseess 98pcn IV (4] 7o1EM pophday PUE "[@7) oAsawioq 107 3587 @) onsawog ‘[enuapIsoy

Ajuo uonesiu = | {(4Mvs) ansawoq Sy = 1y ‘(YMVS) 8v = sy dnsswoq 8y |enJswwo) = gy
'8v |enJswwo) = y) ‘pajdAiey=y ‘AQpuels = §S ‘JUBWUIAN0D = D )Isawoq 107 98ie] = @1 :onsawoq = @ ‘uun N = A ‘jeswwo) =)

adJey) Juswanosdwy [eude) = Jy

09°L65 66°LLS VE'6LS 89°65€S 6S'6CTS 85°6G€S 00'98Z$ 90°0LTTS w9
08'8%S T0'6€S 89°6€S €Y' v8TS 08'9% €V ¥81S 00°€VTS £9°68SS uv

YT1ES L6'1TS ov'szs 8€'TCTS LY TS 8€TTTS 5165 €1°08€S €

79'STS LY'TTS L7218 7€'59% ¥£°02$ T€'59S 9/°S¥S T0'S6TS wl

9/°6$ 6L°LS 6S°0TS TEvrS 96°CTS TEVPS 09'8¢S 9€'STIS «Z/TT
88'1S 16°€S €1°SS 08'92% 8%°99 089S 0E'vTS €€°L9S Wl

€6'CS vETS L8YS 6L°6TS 68°€S 6L°6TS 85°8S IR Wb/E

SS 9N IDIA3a ELYT ) IDYVHD IDYVHD IDYVHD IDYVHD 3ZIS Y313
BYdadx3 | D‘G1‘a‘9d | MOIDIDVE | "AY3S a3xXI4 o] io) *AY3S aaxi4 k) *AY3S aaxid
SISSe IV | ‘VD LV ‘SV a3nAdY AGANVYLS AGANVY1S YILVM YILVM
e M O e
SADYVHI ATHLNOWN

‘slawolsnd

(Aed-oine) HOvy oy paijdde Ajjeannewoine pue 91Bp SNp 3} 91043 10 UO 3310 SSBUISN] BY] Ul PIAISIAI S JudwAed ydIym 1o} SJUN0IE Juanbulep-uou 03 paldde aq |im 1unoasip
9UL "30n0U JayIny INoyum pardnuiaiul aq Aew sad1nIes pue pagieyd aq |jim 234 Suissasoud Juanbuiap e ‘9 @Y1 uo pajedipui aulpeap Jo-300| ay1 Aq pred 10u aJe syunodde
uanbuljap 1uaA3 3Y3 U] “|lig 9Y3 UO UMOYS 31eP B3NP BY) Jaye Juanbuijap pue 1diada. uodn ajqeAed pue anp si luawAheq ‘siseq Ajyauow e uo Paj|iq a.4e s1woIsNd ||y "PLISIa

9yl UlYam 1913w ay3 JO uoi1edo] ayl o3 Suipaodde 31aAd e ul padeld si Junodde uy "w0E PUB ‘,07 ‘,0T 3y} uo Sutpua sporiad Buijjiq 10y Yyruow yoea s3|dAd 9aJy) Ul peaJ aJe SI9IBN

NOILVINYOSNI ONITTIE 43WO0LSND / 1D141SId ALIILN DI19Nd XOO0Y¥d11V4

QI/IE/TI-81/10/10 241123 ffo pasodosg

S31VYH ¥3.1LVM @3isododyd

125



Attachment C

126



RESOLUTION NO. 4920

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT, ADOPTING
INCREASES IN WATER, RECYCLED WATER, AND
WASTEWATER SERVICE CHARGES, ADOPTING PASS-
THROUGH ADJUSTMENTS AND INFLATIONARY
INCREASES FOR CERTAIN CHARGES, REVISING THE
DISTRICT’S ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, AND TAKING
OTHER ACTIONS RELATING THERETO

* k k k %

WHEREAS, the Fallbrook Public Utility District (“District”) is a public utility district
organized and operating pursuant to the Public Utility Districts Act, commencing with section
15501 of the California Public Utilities Code: and

WHEREAS, the District is authorized to fix and collect charges for the provision of services
and facilities including water, recycled water, and wastewater services; and

WHEREAS, the District has determined that it is necessary to increase the rates for its
water, recycled water, and wastewater services charges (collectively herein, the “Charges”) to:
(1) maintain the operational and financial stability of the District, including keeping pace with
inflation and other cost increases such as water supply costs; (2) comply with State and Federal
regulations governing drinking water and the treatment, disposal, and reuse of wastewater; (3)
fund capital infrastructure improvements needed to repair and update the District’'s aging water,
recycled water, and wastewater systems; and (4) avoid operational deficits and depletion of
reserves; and

WHEREAS, the District retained Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., an independent
financial consultant, to conduct a cost of service analysis and rate study (the “Rate Study”) and
assist the District in preparing the proposed rate structure to provide a cost-effective way for
meeting the District’s increased revenue requirements for providing water service, recycled water
service, and wastewater service. The rate structure is set forth in Exhibit A hereto and by this
reference incorporated herein, and the Rate Study has been made available on the District's
website and at the offices of the District for public inspection; and

WHEREAS, the water service charges are comprised of two components: (1) fixed service
charges (“Fixed Water Charges”), which include charges for capital projects (the “Water CIC”),
and (2) variable volumetric water consumption charges (“Volumetric Water Charges” and,
collectively, the “Water Charges”); and

WHEREAS, the Fixed Water Charges are designed to recover a portion of the District's
fixed costs for providing water service, including billing and customer service and meter service
costs; and

WHEREAS, the District imposes the Water CIC to fund various water capital projects
necessary to provide water service to customers of the District, which is charged based on the
size of the meter serving the property; and

127



WHEREAS, the District's Fixed and Variable Water Charges include charges for certain
of the District's water customers for specific services received, including: (1) fixed standby
charges (“Standby Service Charge”); (2) fixed charges for private fire systems (“Private Fire
Services Charge”); (3) variable pumping charges (‘Pumping Charge”); and (4) variable capital
improvements charges associated with areas that require pumping (the “Water CIC Pumping”).
Customers not receiving such services do not pay such additional charges; and

WHEREAS, the District imposes the Private Fire Service Charge as a fixed charge on
certain properties that are additionally served by a private fire service meter as a condition of
extending or initiating water service by the installation of a private fire suppression system, and
upon the request of the customer or property owner for delivery of water to the property for the
purpose of fire protection services, with the Private Fire Service charge determined based on the
size of the private fire service meter serving the property. The Private Fire Service Charge is
calculated to recover the costs of providing water to such properties for private fire service
protection; and

WHEREAS, the District imposes the Standby Service Charge on certain customers who
choose to remain connected to the water system, but have opted to not receive water for a period
of time including during peaking periods, in order to compensate the District for fixed costs
associated with maintaining a connection to the water system, with the Standby Service Charge
determined by the size of the meter serving the property; and

WHEREAS, the Volumetric Water Charge is the variable component of the Water Charge,
and is imposed per unit of delivered water during a billing period, with one unit equal to one
kilogallon of water; and

WHEREAS, the Volumetric Water Charge is designed to recover water supply, reliability,
delivery, and conservation costs, as well as a portion of the District's fixed costs, and contains
one to three tiers (depending on customer class) imposing higher rates as levels of consumptions
increase depending on customer class, all as set forth in Exhibit A hereto; and

WHEREAS, the District has eight customer classes pursuant to which the Volumetric
Water Charge is determined: special agriculture water rate (‘Ag SAWR”), special agriculture water
rate domestic (“Ag Domestic”), domestic and multi-unit residential (collectively “Residential”),
commercial agricultural (“Commercial Ag”), commercial domestic agricultural (“Commercial
Domestic Ag”), commercial, government, and irrigation; and

WHEREAS, certain customers in the DelLuz High Pressure Service Area (“DSA”) and
Toyon Heights (“Toyon”) will also be charged Pumping Surcharges to compensate the District for
the additional cost of electricity necessary to pump water to those areas (the “Pumping
Surcharges”), and a Water CIC Pumping charge to pay for capital improvements necessary to
serve DSA and Toyon service areas alone, which are both imposed per unit of delivered water,
with each unit equaling one kilogallon of water; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 375 et seq. of the California Water Code, the District
previously adopted a Water Shortage Response Program (the “Program”), in order to provide
policies, procedures, rules and regulations in the event drought or water shortage conditions exist;
and

128



WHEREAS, the Program establishes four water shortage levels (each a “Level”), which
upon declaration will result in a mandatory reduction in water use, during which the District may
experience significant losses in revenues due reductions in the amount of purchased water; and

WHEREAS, to offset the impact on its revenues during specified drought Levels, the
District further proposes to revise the drought rates applicable upon declaration of one of the
Levels set forth in Article 26 of the District's Administrative Code, in accordance with the
procedures set forth therein, in order to ensure sufficient revenue to recover its costs of providing
service, all as set forth in Exhibit A hereto; and

WHEREAS, the District is not currently charging drought rates, and the drought rates
would be implemented only upon declaration of a 1, 2, 3 or 4 drought Level; and

WHEREAS, the District purchases almost all of its water from the San Diego County Water
Authority (the “CWA”), which in turn purchases water from the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California (‘MWD”); and

WHEREAS, the District pays a Readiness-To-Serve charge (“RTS") to MWD and an
Infrastructure Access Charge (“IAC” and, collectively, the “Pass-throughs”) to CWA, which are
passed through to customers; and

WHEREAS, the District anticipates that CWA and MWD will increase the rates of the IAC
and RTS, respectively, and in order to ensure that there are sufficient revenues to provide water
services to customers, the District will annually pass through to customers any increases in the
IAC and RTS for a five year period to reflect any such increases by CWA and/or MWD,
respectively, commencing January 1, 2018 and ending on December 31, 2022, provided however
that the District shall not increase either the IAC or RTS in any year by more than 10% in such
year, in no event shall the rates be increased by more than the cost of providing water service,
and the District will provide customers at least 30 days written notice prior to an increase (each a
“Pass-through Adjustment”); and

WHEREAS, the RTS and IAC, effective January 1, 2018, are set forth in Exhibit A hereto;
and

WHEREAS, recycled water service charges are comprised of two components: (1) fixed
service charges (“Fixed Recycled Water Charges”), which are determined on the basis of the size
of the meter serving a property (in inches), and (2) variable volumetric recycled water charges
(“Volumetric Recycled Water Charges” and, collectively, the ‘Recycled Water Charges”); and

WHEREAS, the Fixed Recycled Water Charges are designed to recover a portion of the
District’s fixed costs of providing recycled water service, and the Volumetric Recycled Water
Charges recover a portion of the fixed costs, as well as the variable costs of providing recycled
water service; and

WHEREAS, the Volumetric Recycled Water Charge is a uniform rate for all recycled water
customers regardless of customer class, based on the cost of providing recycled water service;
and

WHEREAS, wastewater service charges are comprised of two components: (1) fixed
service charges (“Fixed Wastewater Charges’), including a wastewater capital improvements
charge (the “Wastewater CIC") to fund improvements and related debt service for the benefit of

129



the wastewater system, and (2) flow-based wastewater service charges to pay for a portion of the
fixed and the variable costs of the wastewater system (“Volumetric Wastewater Charges” and,
collectively, “Wastewater Charges”); and

WHEREAS, Fixed Wastewater Charges and Wastewater CIC are charged based on
equivalent dwelling units (‘EDUs”) assigned to a property, which are used to estimate the amount
of wastewater returned to the sewer and certain assumptions regarding concentration of
wastewater discharged, with single family residential customers assigned one EDU and all other
customers assigned a fraction of one EDU or one or more EDUs depending on customer
classification, all as set forth in the District's Administrative Code: and

WHEREAS, the Volumetric Wastewater Charges are determined based on total flow,
measured in dollars per kilogallon of flow, and customer class, including Ag Domestic,
Commercial Domestic Ag, Residential, Government, School, Church and Commercial, with flow
for residential customers determined at 75% of average water use (capped at 22 kilogallons per
month of water i.e. 16.5 kilogallons for sewer) from December to February, and flow for non-
residential customers determined at the return-to-sewer levels set forth in Article 21 and Exhibit
B hereto; and

WHEREAS, the Commercial customers are further divided into Low Strength (0-300
average biological oxygen demand (“BOD”) and total suspended solids (“TSS”), Medium Strength
(300-550 average BOD and TSS) and High Strength (above 550 average BOD and TSS); and

WHEREAS, the revenues derived from the proposed Charges will not exceed the funds
required to provide the services and shall be used exclusively for the operation and maintenance
of the water, recycled water, and wastewater systems; and

WHEREAS, the Charges are equitable to all customer classes:

WHEREAS, the amount of the proposed Charges will not exceed the proportional cost of
the services attributable to each parcel upon which they are proposed for imposition; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Charges will not be imposed on a parcel unless the services
are actually used by, or immediately available to, the owner of the parcel; and

WHEREAS, article Xl D, section 6 of the California Constitution (“Article XIII D”) requires
that prior to imposing any new property-related fee such as the Charges, or increase to existing
Charges, the District shall provide written notice (the “Notice”) by mail of the proposed increases
to the Charges to the record owner of each parcel upon which the Charges are proposed for
imposition and any tenant directly liable for payment of the Charges, the amount of the Charges
proposed to be imposed on each parcel, the basis upon which the Charges were calculated, the
reason for the Charges, and the date time and location of a public hearing (the “Hearing”) on the
proposed Charges; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article XIII D such Notice is required to be provided to the affected
property owners and tenants directly liable for the payment of the Charges not less than forty-five
days prior to the Hearing on the proposed Charges; and

WHEREAS, the District did provide such Notice to the affected property owners and
tenants in compliance with Article XIII D; and

130



WHEREAS, a public workshop was held on the Charges on November 15, 2017, and a
public Hearing was held on December 11, 2017, noticed in the manner and for the time required
by law; and

WHEREAS, at the Hearing, the Board of Directors of the District (“Board”) considered all
written materials and written protests to the proposed new or increased Charges received prior to
the close of the Hearing, and heard oral testimony concerning the establishment and imposition
of the proposed Charges, and at the close of the Hearing the District determined that it did not
receive written protests against the establishment and imposition of the proposed Charges from
a majority of the affected property owners or tenants directly liable for the payment of such
Charges; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors now desires to adopt the Charges for a five-year period
in the maximum amounts and on the dates set forth in Exhibit A, effective January 1, 2018;
provided, however, the Board shall determine each year the rates at which the Charges will be
imposed, and may impose such rates for the Charges at a rate lower than those set forth in Exhibit
A hereto. Commencing January 1, 2018, the actual rates imposed for the Charges are included
in Article 21, as revised in Exhibit B hereto; and

WHEREAS, the Board further desires to authorize the Pass-through Adjustments for the
MWD RTS and the CWA IAC for a five-year period, to authorize inflationary adjustments for
certain of the rates, such as the Water and Wastewater CICs, as described in this Resolution,
and to authorize revisions to the drought rates for a five-year period, in the maximum amounts
set forth in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has further determined that it is appropriate to amend
Articles 21 and 26 of the District’s Administrative Code to reflect the new and increased Charges,
revised drought rates, and Pass-through Adjustments established herein;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:

1. Incorporation of Recitals:

The Recitals set forth above are made findings of this Board of Directors and are
incorporated herein and made an operative part of this Resolution.

2. Inconsistency with other Fees:

To the extent any Charges, including the drought rates and Pass-through Adjustments,
established by this Resolution are inconsistent with the Charges, drought rates, or any other fee
or charge previously adopted by the Board of Directors; it is the explicit intention of the Board of
Directors that the Charges, including the drought rates and Pass-through Adjustments, adopted
pursuant to this Resolution shall prevail.

3. Water Charges:

The Board of Directors hereby establishes, adopts and imposes the Water Charges,
including the drought rates, Pass-throughs and Pass-through Adjustments, up to the maximum
amounts, on the dates, and up to the maximum rates (including associated tier widths) set forth
in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The maximum rates for

131



monthly Water Charges may be applied to water services provided on and after the effective date
of each year as set as forth in Exhibit A. The Board shall determine each year the rate at which
the Water Charges shall be imposed, provided, however, that the Board may not impose rates for
the Water Charges at a level higher than those set forth in Exhibit A hereto. The actual rates to
be imposed commencing January 1, 2018, are set forth in Article 21 of the Administrative Code,
as amended as set forth in Exhibit B hereto; and

4. Recycled Water Service Fees:

The Board hereby establishes, adopts and imposes the Recycled Water Charges up to
the maximum amounts, on the dates, and up to the maximum rates set forth in Exhibit A. The
maximum rates for the monthly Recycled Water Charges may be effective and applied to recycled
water services provided on and after the effective of each year as set forth in Exhibit A. The
Board shall determine each year the rate at which the Recycled Water Charges shall be imposed,
provided, however, that the Board may not impose rates for the Recycled Water Charges at a
level higher than those set forth in Exhibit A hereto. The actual rates to be imposed commencing
January 1, 2018, are set forth in Article 21 of the Administrative Code, as amended as set forth
in Exhibit B hereto; and

5. Wastewater Service Fees:

The Board hereby establishes, adopts and imposes the monthly Wastewater Charges up
to the maximum amounts, on the dates, and up to the maximum rates set forth in Exhibit A. The
maximum rates for the monthly Wastewater Charges set forth in Exhibit A may be effective and
applied to wastewater services provided on and after the effective date of each year as set forth
in Exhibit A. The Board shall determine each year the rate at which the Wastewater Charges
shall be imposed, provided, however, that the Board may not impose rates for the Wastewater
Charges at a level higher than those set forth in Exhibit A hereto. The actual rates to be imposed
commencing January 1, 2018, are set forth in Article 21 of the Administrative Code, as amended
as set forth in Exhibit B hereto; and

6. Pass Through Adjustments:

(a) The District is hereby authorized to implement any MWD RTS Pass-through
Adjustment commencing January 1, 2018, through and including, the calendar year commencing
January 1, 2022. Provided, however, that: (1) any increase in the rates for water service fees as
a result of any MWD RTS Pass-through Adjustment shall not exceed a 10% increase for the MWD
RTS for such year; and (2) in no event shall such rates be increased as a result of a MWD RTS
Pass-through Adjustment by more than the cost of providing water service.

(b) The District is hereby authorized to implement any CWA IAC Pass-through
Adjustment commencing January 1, 2018, through and including, the calendar year commencing
January 1, 2022. Provided, however, that: (1) any increase in the rates for water service fees as
a result of any CWA IAC Pass-through Adjustment shall not exceed a 10% increase for the CWA
IAC for such year; and (2) in no event shall such rates be increased as a result of a CWA IAC
Pass-through Adjustment by more than the cost of providing water service.

(c) Prior to implementing any future increases to the MWD RTS or CWA IAC as a
result of a Pass-Through Adjustment, the District General Manager, or his or her designee, is
hereby directed and shall provide written notice of any such rate increases to District customers
not less than 30 days prior to the effective date of the rate increases. Any such notice may be

132



provided in the regular billing statements of such District water customers. In the event that a
Pass-through is implemented in accordance with this Resolution, the District General Manager,
or his or her designee, is hereby directed and shall revise the schedule of rates and charges as
set forth in Article 21 of the District's Administrative Code.

7. Inflationary Adjustments:

(a) Each July 1, commencing July 1, 2018, through and including July 1, 2022, the
District will be authorized to increase the Water CIC in accordance with the Engineering News
Record Construction Cost Index of February for Los Angeles of the preceding year (“ENR CCI")
plus 3%, not to exceed 10% annually. The Water CIC may not be increased by more than the
cost of providing water service, and the District shall provide all customers at least 30 days’ written
notice prior to implementing any such increase. While the Board is authorized to make such
increase on July 1 of each year, no such increase shall go into effect until the following January,
commencing with January 1, 2019.

(b) Each July 1, commencing July 1, 2018, through and including July 1, 2022, the
District will be authorized to increase the Water CIC Pumping in accordance with the ENR CCi,
not to exceed 10% annually. Such rates may not be increased by more than the cost of providing
water service, and the District shall provide all customers at least 30 days’ written notice prior to
implementing any inflationary adjustment. While the Board is authorized to make such increase
on July 1 of each year, no such increase shall go into effect until the following January,
commencing with January 1, 2019.

(c) Each July 1, commencing July 1, 2018, through and including July 1, 2022, the
District will be authorized to increase the Wastewater CIC in accordance with the ENR CCi, for
Los Angeles, in an amount not to exceed 10% annually. Such rates may not be increased by
more than the cost of providing service, and the District shall provide all customers at least 30
days’ written notice prior to implementing any inflationary adjustment. While the Board is
authorized to make such increase on July 1 of each year, no such increase shall go into effect
until the following January, commencing with January 1, 2019.

8. Drought Rates:

The Board hereby adopts the drought rates in the amounts, on the dates, and at the rates
set forth in Exhibit A. The drought rates may be implemented only upon the declaration of a
drought Level 1, 2, 3 or 4, as provided in Article 26 of the District's Administrative Code. Any
drought rates implemented by the Board shall be in place of the Volumetric Water Charge for
those customers subject to drought rates.

9. Authorization:

The General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to
implement and collect the Charges, including the drought rates and any Pass-through
Adjustments, as set forth herein. The General Manager, or his or her authorized designee, is
hereby authorized and directed to revise Articles 21 and 26 of the District’s Administrative Code,
in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit B hereto, to reflect the new or increased rates for the
charges, including the drought rates and Pass-through Adjustments, as set forth in Exhibit A and
as approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to this Resolution.

10. CEQA Compliance:

133



The Board of Directors finds that the administration, operation, maintenance, and
improvements of the District's water, recycled water, and wastewater systems, which are to be
funded by the Charges, including the drought rates and the Pass-through Adjustments, and set
forth herein, are necessary to maintain service within the District’s existing water, recycled water,
and wastewater service areas as described herein. The Board of Directors further finds that the
administration, operation, maintenance and improvements of the District's water, recycled water,
and wastewater systems, to be funded by the Charges, including the drought rates and the Pass-
through Adjustments, will not expand the District’s water, recycled, and wastewater systems. The
Board of Directors further finds that the adoption of the rates for the Charges, including the drought
rates and the Pass-through Adjustments, is necessary and reasonable to fund the administration,
operation, maintenance and improvements of the District water, recycled water, and wastewater
systems. Based on these findings, the Board determines that the adoption of the Charges,
including the drought rates and the Pass-through Adjustments, established by this Resolution are
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to section
21080(b)(8) of the Public Resources Code and section 15273(a) of the State CEQA Guidelines.
The documents and materials that constitute the record of proceedings on which these findings
have been based are located at the District, 990 E Mission Rd, Fallbrook, CA 92028. The
custodian for these records is the secretary of the District.

1. Severability:

If any section, subsection, clause or phrase in this Resolution or the application thereof to
any person or circumstances is for any reason held invalid, the validity of the remainder of this
Resolution or the application of such provisions to other persons or circumstances shall not be
affected thereby. The Board hereby declares that it would have passed this Resolution and each
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that one or more
sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance be held invalid.

134



12. Effective Date of Resolution:
This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District at a
special meeting of the Board held on the 11" day of December, 2017, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

President, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors

135



EXHIBIT A
SCHEDULE OF MAXIMUM RATES FOR THE CHARGES
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2018*

* These are the maximum rates that can be adopted each calendar year in accordance
with the State of California Law. Actual increases will be voted on by the Board of
Directors before each rate increase.

A-1

136



MAXIMUM RATES FOR WATER CHARGES

MONTHLY WATER FIXED CHARGES

Monthly Water Fixed Charges ($/meter size)

Rates and Effective Date

Meter Size Jan. 1, 2018 | Jan.1, 2019 | Jan. 1, 2020 Jan. 1, 2021 Jan. 1, 2022
3/14” $44.72 $48.30 $52.17 $56.35 $60.86
1” $68.27 $73.74 $79.64 $86.02 $92.91
115" $127.12 $137.29 $148.28 $160.15 $172.97
27 $197.75 $213.57 $230.66 $249.12 $269.05
3” $386.09 $416.98 $450.34 $486.37 $525.28
4” $597.97 $645.81 $697.48 $753.28 $813.55
6” $1,186.53 $1,281.46 $1,383.98 $1,494.70 $1,614.28

Monthly Standby Service Charge
3/4” $20.06 $21.67 $23.41 $25.29 $27.32
1” $27.17 $29.35 $31.70 $34.24 $36.98
111" $44.93 $48.53 $52.42 $56.62 $61.15
2 $66.24 $71.54 $77.27 $83.46 $90.14
3” $123.08 $132.93 $143.57 $155.06 $167.47
4” $187.02 $201.99 $218.15 $235.61 $254.46
6” $364.64 $393.82 $425.33 $459.36 $496.11
Monthly Private Fire Services Charge
2” $9.74 $10.52 $11.37 $12.28 $13.27
3” $10.39 $11.23 $12.13 $13.11 $14.16
4” $11.51 $12.44 $13.44 $14.52 $15.69
6” $15.51 $16.76 $18.11 $19.56 $21.13
8” $22.42 $24.22 $26.16 $28.26 $30.53
Water CIC ($/meter size)
Effective January 1, 2018

Meter Size | Water CIC (Regular Service)* | Water CIC (Standby Service)

3/4” $8.58 $3.89

1” $14.30 $6.48

111,” $28.60 $12.96

2” $45.76 $20.74

3” $91.52 $41.47

4” $143.00 $64.80

6” $286.00 $129.59

A-2

137




VOLUMETRIC WATER CHARGES

Monthly Water Volumetric Charges and Pumping Charges ($/kgal)

Rates and Effective Dates

Customer Class Jan. 1, 2018 | Jan. 1, 2019 | Jan. 1, 2020 | Jan. 1,2021 | Jan. 1,2022
| Ag SAWR $4.22 $4.56 $4.93 $5.33% $5.76*

Commercial Ag $4.89 $5.29 $5.72 $6.18 $6.68

Ag Domestic

Tier 1 0 — 5 kgal $5.69 $6.15 $6.65 $7.19 $7.77

Tier 2 6 — 20 kgal $4.89 $5.29 $5.72 $6.18 $6.68

Tier 3 Above 20 kgal $4.22 $4.56 $4.93 $5.33* $5.76*

Commercial Domestic Ag

Tier 1 0 — 5 kgal $5.69 $6.15 $6.65 $7.19 $7.77

Tier 2 Above 5 kgal $4.89 $5.29 $5.72 $6.18 $6.68

Residential

Tier 1 0 — 5 kgal $5.69 $6.15 $6.65 $7.19 $7.77

Tier 2 6 — 30 kgal $5.79 $6.26 $6.77 $7.32 $7.91

Tier 3 Above 30 kgal $7.04 $7.61 $8.22 $8.88 $9.60

Commercial $5.87 $6.34 $6.85 $7.40 $8.00

Government $5.78 $6.25 $6.75 $7.29 $7.88

Irrigation Only $5.88 $6.36 $6.87 $7.42 $8.02

Pumping Surcharges

(DSA, Toyon service areas) $0.69 $0.75 $0.81 $0.88 $0.96

*The SAWR program expires on December 31, 2020. If the SAWR program is not extended, Ag SAWR
and Ag Domestic customers (Tier 2 only) will be charged the rates for Commercial Ag customers
i.e. $6.18/kgal effective January 1, 2021, and $6.68/kgal effective January 1, 2022.)

Water CIC Pumping ($/kgal)

Effective January 1, 2018

Water CIC Pumping |

$0.10

MONTHLY WATER MWD RTS AND CWA IAC PASS-THROUGHS

Monthly MWD RTS Charge and CWA IAC ($/meter size)
Effective January 1, 2018

Meter Size MWD RTS CWA IAC

314” $2.34 $2.93
1” $3.91 $4.88
11/,” $7.79 $9.76
2” $12.47 $15.62
3” $24.97 $31.24
4” $39.01 $48.80
6” $77.99 $97.60

A-3

138




DROUGHT RATES

2018 Monthly Drought Rates by Drought Levels ($/kgal)

Customer Class Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 and 4
Residential
Tier 1 $5.98 $6.24 $7.01
Tier 2 $6.08 $6.35 $7.13
Tier 3 $7.40 $7.72 $8.67
| Ag Domestic
Tier 1 only $5.98 $6.24 $7.01
Commercial Dom Ag
Tier 1 $5.98 $6.24 $7.01
Tier 2 $5.14 $5.36 $6.02
Uniform
Commercial Ag $5.14 $5.36 $6.02
Commercial $6.17 $6.44 $7.23
Irrigation Only $6.07 $6.34 $7.12
Government $6.18 $6.45 $7.24
2019 Monthly Drought Rates by Drought Levels ($/kgal)
Customer Class Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 and 4
Residential
Tier 1 $6.46 $6.75 $7.57
Tier 2 $6.58 $6.87 $7.71
Tier 3 $7.99 $8.35 $9.37
Ag Domestic
Tier 1 only $6.46 $6.75 $7.57
Commercial Dom Ag
Tier 1 $6.46 $6.75 $7.57
Tier 2 $5.56 $5.80 $6.51
Uniform
Commercial Ag $5.56 $5.80 $6.51
Commercial $6.66 $6.95 $7.81
Irrigation Only $6.57 $6.86 $7.69
Government $6.68 $6.98 $7.83
A-4

139



2020 Monthly Drought Rates by Drought Levels ($/kgal)

Customer Class Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 and 4

Residential

Tier 1 $6.99 $7.29 $8.19

Tier 2 $7.11 $7.43 $8.33

Tier 3 $8.63 $9.01 $10.12
| Ag Domestic

Tier 1 only $6.99 $7.29 $8.19

Commercial Dom Ag

Tier 1 $6.99 $7.29 $8.19

Tier 2 $6.01 $6.27 $7.04

Uniform

Commercial Ag $6.01 $6.27 $7.04

Commercial $7.20 $7.51 $8.43

Irrigation Only $7.09 $7.40 $8.31

Government $7.22 $7.53 $8.46

2021 Monthly Drought Rates by Drought Levels ($/kgal)

Customer Class Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 and 4

Residential

Tier 1 $7.55 $7.89 $8.85

Tier 2 $7.69 $8.03 $9.01

Tier 3 $9.33 $9.74 $10.93
| Ag Domestic

Tier 1 only $7.55 $7.89 $8.85

Commercial Dom Ag

Tier 1 $7.55 $7.89 $8.85

Tier 2 $6.49 $6.78 $7.61

Uniform

Commercial Ag $6.49 $6.78 $7.61

Commercial $7.77 $8.12 $9.11

Irrigation Only $7.66 $8.00 $8.97

Government $7.79 $8.14 $9.13

2022 Monthly Drought Rates by Drought Levels ($/kgal)

Customer Class Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 and 4

Residential

Tier 1 $8.16 $8.52 $9.56

Tier 2 $8.31 $8.67 $9.74

Tier 3 $10.08 $10.53 $11.82
| Ag Domestic

Tier 1 only $7.55 $7.89 $8.85

Commercial Dom Ag

Tier 1 $8.16 $8.52 $9.56

Tier 2 $7.02 $7.33 $8.22

Uniform

Commercial Ag $7.02 $7.33 $8.22

Commercial $8.40 $8.77 $9.85
| Irrigation Only $8.28 $8.64 $9.70

Government $8.42 $8.80 $9.87

A-5

140



MAXIMUM RATES FOR RECYCLED WATER CHARGES

MONTHLY FIXED RECYCLED WATER CHARGES

Monthly Fixed Recycled Water Charges ($/meter size)

Rates and Effective Dates
Meter Size Jan. 1, 2018 | Jan. 1, 2019 Jan. 1, 2020 Jan. 1, 2021 Jan. 1, 2022
3/4” $20.06 $21.67 $23.41 $25.29 $27.32
1” $27.17 $29.35 $31.70 $34.24 $36.98
11/,” $44.93 $48.53 $52.42 $56.62 $61.15
2”7 $66.24 $71.54 $77.27 $83.46 $90.14
3” $123.08 $132.93 $143.57 $155.06 $167.47
4” $187.02 $201.99 $218.15 $235.61 $254.46
6” $364.64 $393.82 $425.33 $459.36 $496.11
VOLUMETRIC RECYCLED WATER CHARGES
Monthly Volumetric Recycled Water Charges ($/kgal)
Rates and Effective Date
Jan 1, 2018 Jan 1, 2019 | Jan 1, 2020 | Jan 1, 2021 Jan 1, 2022
Recycled Water $4.92 $5.32 $5.73 $6.19 $6.69
A-6

141




MAXIMUM RATES FOR WASTEWATER CHARGES

MONTHLY FIXED WASTEWATER CHARGES

Monthly Fixed Wastewater Charges ($/EDU*month)

Effective Date

Jan 1, 2018

Jan 1, 2019

Jan 1, 2020

Jan 1, 2021

Jan 1, 2022

$9.28

Wastewater ($/EDU)

$9.70

$10.14

$10.60

$11.08

*EDUs are defined and set forth in Section 20.7.2 of the District’s Administrative Code.

Wastewater CIC ($/EDU/month)

Effective January 1, 2018

Wastewater CIC |

$11.16

VOLUMETRIC WASTEWATER CHARGES

Monthly Volumetric Wastewater Charges ($/kgal)

Rates and Effective Dates
Customer Classes Jan. 1, 2018 | Jan. 1, 2019 | Jan. 1, 2020 [ Jan. 1, 2021 | Jan. 1, 2022
| Ag Domestic $9.44 $9.87 $10.32 $10.79 $11.28
Commercial Ag $9.44 $9.87 $10.32 $10.79 $11.28
Residential (Single, Multi- | $9.44 $9.87 $10.32 $10.79 $11.28
Family)
Government $9.37 $9.80 $10.25 $10.72 $11.21
School $9.37 $9.80 $10.25 $10.72 $11.21
Church $9.37 $9.80 $10.25 $10.72 $11.21
Commercial - Low Strength | $9.37 $9.80 $10.25 $10.72 $11.21
Commercial-Med Strength | $11.57 $12.10 $12.65 $13.22 $13.82
Commercial - High Strength | $14.44 $15.09 $15.77 $16.48 $17.23
A-7

142



EXHIBIT B

REVISIONS TO ARTICLES 21 AND 26 OF THE
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2018*

*The actual rates for the Charges imposed effective January 1, 2018, for calendar year
2018, will be included in Article 21 of the Administrative Code, as revised and shown
below. For calendar year 2018, these rates are lower than the maximum authorized rates
shown in Exhibit A.

B-1

143



Article 21. Water and Sewer Rates and Service Charges.

—— From-and-afterWater and sewer rates and charges are set to fully

recover the District’s costs. In order to help stabilize the revenue of the District during
increasing or decreasing sales, the District has established a policy to collect
approximately 80% of the District’s fixed water operating costs through the monthly
fixed charges and collect the remaining approximately 20% of the District’s fixed
operating cost through volumetric water rates. The rates and charges are set based upon
cost of service principals that meet legal requirements and industry standards.

Effective January 1, 2047%-threugh-Deeember31;20172018, the following

rates for water deliveries to each class of service are established:

Sec. 21.1 Volumetric Water, Recycled Water and Pumping Rates.
For purposes of -determining water rates, one unit equals 1,000

gallons:
Base Rate:—————mommmnm e s e T ST perunit
Domestic (D), Large Lot Domestic (E/BLD).
1-5 units per MONth ......cc.oceevieievienieieieeeieree e $5.2162 per unit
6-30 units per Month.........cccoeeveeveeeieereieeeeeeeeee e $5.7471 per unit
Over 30 units per month .........ccoecevvevveerernienieensienereeeennes $6.3295 per unit
Commercial (C).
1-30-units permonthAll USAZE.......ceveeverreereecrerereerereennes $5.21479 per unit

Multi-Unit (M) (Tier ranges factor residential units, per Article 19.1).

1 -5 units per month........cccceevieireneceneneseeeeeeeseeeee $5.2462 per unit
6 - 30 units per Month .......cccoeeeveveeiereeeeieieeieceeeee, $5.71 per unit

Over 1830 units per month ..........coceecerveevervieesienseenenneennen. $6.3295 per unit

Government (G).

All USBEOUSALE ..oeevvereeeeereerereeeenteevecseesesesessessasssesssnnns $5.7470 per unit
Irrigation Only (I).

21-1

144



AlL USAZE .vevervrerrerrerrersenressensessessessessessessessesssesssssassssssssenes $5.7480 per unit
SAWR - Ag Only (AS).

AL USAZE ...ttt ittt te e sreesaesaesseseens $3-654.17 per unit
SAWR - Ag & Home (AT).

1-5 units per MOnth.........ccceeveeeviieenieeceeeeceeeee e $5.2162 per unit
6-20 units per Month .........ccoceeceevreereereereenreneeseeceeee e $5-744.83 per unit
Over 20 units per month ..........cccceeveveveeeeeesieeeeeeeenee $3.654.17 per unit
Commercial Ag (CA).

AL USAZE ..ottt sttt e s $4.9783 per unit
Commercial Ag Domestic (CB).

1-5 units per MONth .........cocvevveveeeeeeeieeeeieeeeeeereeeeeenes $5.2162 per unit

6-20-3nits
O—=Z0ar

narmonth
OIS PO O U L T T T o e ieesessesrssrssssssessssssssassssssssossessosss

Over 205 units per Month .........cccceeveeeeveeciereeeecreeeeeeeneene $4.9783 per unit

Drought Rates

In order to prepare and manage future periods of water shortage and
mandatory conservation, the District adopted a water shortage contingency plan called the Water
Shortage Response Program (the “Program”). Pursuant to the Program, the District established
four Water Shortage Response Levels. Article 26 Water Shortage Response Program provides
information on the program and the applicable water use rates.

Volumetric Recycled Water Rate.

Recycled water furnished within the District service area for any
appropriate purpose will be billed at $4.4381 per 1,000 gallons. Recycled water sold
outside the District service area will be sold by contract with specific customers. For San
Diego County Water Authority and Metropolitan Water District rebate purposes,
reclaimed water rates must be set at higher of 85 percent of lowest applicable potable
water rate or 80 percent of the average of Tier 1 and Tier 2 rates.

Construction Meter.

Water furnished for construction purposes will be billed at $7.17 per 1,000
gallons.

Volumetric Pumping Charges. (DSA and Toyon only)

21-2

145



Pumping charges for the DeLuz High Pressure Service Area and Toyon
dat$

N0,

0.3369 per 1,000 gallon

s to recover the cost of electricity-

IyEffective January 1, 201462018, the following rates and

charges are established and shall be collected by the District for water and recycled water

service:

Monthly Service Charges for each meter: ($/meter size):

Classes
AS-AT. CA-CB-G D, L/D, C MR
Water Fixed Recycled Standby Private Fire Services Charge
Charges | Water Charges Service
Charge

3/4 inch $49-0144.10 | $4459-19.79 $19.79 NA
meter
1 inch meter $64.7267.33 $541226.80 $26.80 NA
1-1/2 inch $93-56125.36 | -$77-23$44.31 $44.31 NA
meter
2 inch meter $195.01 $65.32 $65.32 $9.61
23 inch $380.73 $121.38 $121.38 S$1H13.03
meter $138%$10.25
34 inch $227.48589.67 $184.3943 $184.43 $11.36
meter
46 inch $35345 | $293-17359.58 $359.58 $15.30
meter 1,170.06
68 inch $636.95 NA $523.95 NA $22.11
meter NA
all sizes

NA- Not applicable

For construction meters, a service charge of $169-55292.52 per month or fraction thereof
will be made in addition to the cost of water consumed. This rate is calculated using a
factor of 1.5 times the eemmereialratefixed charge for a 2” water meter.

21-3

146



The foregoing minimumfixed charges for water service through various sized meters _that
are installed or upgraded will be effective commencing the day of installation, regardless
of the amount of water used, as long as the consumer's property is actually connected
with the District's distribution system._In addition, any request to down size a meter

properly filed with the District will receive a fixed charge commensurate with the meter

size effective the next billing cycle.

Billings for water furnished to all accounts will be on a monthly basis.

A monthly service charge to cover the District's cost for annual inspection, maintenance,
repair and replacement of backflow prevention devices will be made as follows: ($/meter

size):

Reduced B Prinein] :

For each 3/4 inch device $6-384.87
For each 1 inch device $6-885.73
For each 1-1/2 inch device $9:9410.59
For each 2 inch device $9:9412.71
For each 3 inch device $11-2725.40
For each 4 inch device $15.9239.68
For each 6 inch device $19:0679.34
Roeveled tiiater Sea-cherze

21-4

147



——See214 MWD Readiness-to-Serve Charge (RTS) and SDCWA Infrastructure
Access Charge (IAC).

Effective January 1, 19972018, the following monthly
charges are established and shall be collected by the District for the Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California’s Readiness-to-Serve (the “RTS”) charge and San Diego
County Water Authority’s Infrastructure Access Charge (the “IAC”). :

Monthly charges for each meter: ($/meter size):

( RTS )
At AT A ST

,LD,,C, I‘:'I, & . SRLALAC
&Z $4.00RTS* $2.82 JAC
123/4 inch meter $5-502.34 $4.512.93
1422 inch $8.00-3.91 $8-464.88
meter
221-1/2 inch $12.507.79 $14-669.76
meter
3) inch meter $21-0012.47 $27.0715.62
423 inch meter $33-0024.97 $46-2531.24
624 inch meter $60-0039.01 $84-60-48.80
$S6 inch meter $2:0077.99 $97.60

*A credit to —=See=2+4+—MWDBIAWP Overuse Penalty

—— See—21-5the RTS charge of $0.49/EMU through July will be applied due to an

overcollection in the first 6-months. The RTS will be adjusted July 1, 2018 and each
subsequent July to match the wholesaler charges.

Sec.21.4 Water Capital Improvement Charge.

For each water account-as-ealeulated-by-this-Seetion, an additional
$9-458.58 per month per Equivalent Meter Unit (EMU) shall be added as a Capital

Improvement Charge beginning FY 20141 5-effective January 1, 2018. This charge is
solely dedicated to Water-Capital-lmprovementfunding water capital improvement

projects. The Water Capital Improvement Charge has-been(the “CIC”) was
implemented to rovide a partial funding source

for capital projects like the UV treatment facility at the Red Mountain Reservoir and to
fund pipeline replacement projects.

21-5

148



Water Capital Improvement Charges will be adjusted annually based on the ENR
(Engineering News Record) Construction Cost Index (CCI) of February-plus-3-pereent,
not to atleast2033-exceed 10%. Staff will report back to the Board of Directors no less
than every five (5) years with analysis of its necessity. The Water-Capital Improvement

Charge waslast-analyzed-and-approved-bywill be used to fund capital improvement

projects or debt service for capital improvement projects. Revenue from the Beard-of

BairectoretlocteJuly 2012 thesefore the-Hatapabosisbreguired b 2018 Capital

Improvement Charge will not be used to fund Operating Costs.

Fallbrook Public Utility District’s Equivalent Meter Unit (EMU) is associated with meter
size as listed below.

Metar S12a
IV 1=

ERUD-EMU — Charge

Meter Size FPUD Water CIC Water CIC (Standby
EMU Service)

3423/4 inch meter 1.0 $9-458.58 $3.89

12 inch meter 1.37567 $12:9914.30 $6.48

1+2421-1/2 inch 2:03.33 $18-9028.60 $12.96

meter

22 inch meter 31255.33 $29.5345.76 $20.74

32 inch meter 52510.67 $49-6191.52 $41.47

42 inch meter 82516.67 $7796143.00 $64.80

62 inch meter 15.033.33 $141-75286.00 $129.59

An additional, a Water CIC Pumping charge of $.10 per 1,000 gallons is charged and
allocated to capital improvements for the DeLuz High Pressure service area and Toyon
Heights zone. This Capital Improvement Charge will be adjusted annually based on the
ENR (Engineering News Record) Construction Cost Index (CCI) of February, not to
exceed 10% annually.

Sec. 21.65 Billing Periods.

Billing periods end on the 10%, 20%, and 30" of the month depending on
meter location in the District. All charges for water and sewer service and water usage
during any billing period are due and payable when rendered and become delinquent on
either the 10%, 20", or 30™ of the month, as noted on the bills. Bills paid prior to
becoming delinquent will be credited with a discount. Accounts not paid by the
delinquent date are sent special delinquent notices and the meters are subject to lock-up
for non-payment. Delinquent accounts are subject to a pre lock-up notice implemented
by a door hanger on the property, which is delivered a minimum of 48 hours before the
meter is locked. Such accounts accrue a $30 lock-up notice fee upon the District’s
preparation of the final pre lock-up notice report, regardless of when the actual door
hanger is placed on the property. Accounts not paid within 30 days after lock-up and
accounts that have tampered with the meter to obtain water illegally are subject to
removal of meters and permanent disconnection of water service. Standby charges will
continue to accrue after the meter has been removed.

21-6

149



If a meter has been locked for non-payment for a period of 90 days, it may be placed on
Standby Service by FPUD. Standby Service charges will accrue from that time until an
application for service restoration has been received by the District.

The District must be notified in a timely manner with the name and mailing address of
the new owner or tenant and the upcoming date of transfer. Notification of the transfer of
property ownership, or tenancy, is the responsibility of the owner/seller. The District is
not responsible for the proration of the final billing if notification is not received prior to
the date of sale, or change of tenancy.

Sec. 21.76 Meter Locks and Restrictors.

If for any reason, other than District convenience, a water meter shall be
locked by the District, the water may not be again turned on to serve the property through
such meter until all past due charges plus a turn-on charge of Fifty Dollars ($50) shall
have been paid to the District. There shall be a fee of $30 to process and deliver Pre-
Lock Notices and a fee of $100 for broken or damaged locks. Damage to
eerpcorporation or angle stop in attempt to restore services locked for non-payment will
be billed at actual time and material and added to the water bill.

If flow restrictors are required for any reason in order to implement
policies within this Administrative Code, the fees are as follows:

Meter Size Installation Fee
¥ and 1”7 Meters cuueeeeeeeeneennnnen. $137
1-1/2” and larger ........cccceevevennee $582

Sec. 21.87 Meter Not Registering.

Whenever, for any reason, a meter fails to register correctly, the consumer
will be charged an amount for the previous billing period increased or decreased by the
percentage change in total billing by the District for all consumers for the two billing
periods.

Sec. 21.98 Water Rates or Service Charges Lien on Property.

In addition to any other remedy provided therein or by law for the
collection of any water rate, charges or account, all rates or service
charges provided ;
for in this Administrative Code shall be charged and become a charge against the
property on which the water is furnished and against the owner thereof, and all charges
for water so served to a property shall be and become a lien against the premises upon
which the water is used or served.

Standby accounts with a delinquent balance greater than $2506500 as of April 1% of each
year may be sent notification of intent to place delinquent and unpaid charges on the
annual tax roll. The notification will be sent by May 1% and provides the customer 60
days to bring the account current. If the amount is not brought current by July 1%, the
portion of the delinquency due as of the prior April 1% may be reported to the County
Treasurer for inclusion on the annual taxes levied on the property.

21-7

150



If for any reason or cause the sums of money owing for such water services are not paid
as required by the terms and provisions of this Administrative Code, the District shall
have the right to shut off such water, and in no case shall service of water be resumed on
the same property until all such delinquencies and additional turn-on charges shall have
been paid in full. Delinquent bills from former owners or tenants are the responsibility of
the present owner.

Sec. 21.98.1 Theft of Water.

Water is defined as stolen from the customer if the water is stolen
from the customer’s side of the meter. Water stolen from a mainline, hydrant, District
pipeline, appurtenance, or tampering with a customer's meter is defined as water being
stolen from the District.

Water Stolen from Customer.

Customers who have reported water theft to the District must also
notify local law enforcement agencies. The District will require proof of theft from a law
enforcement agency that a theft of water occurred. Customer’s asking for credit on the
bill for water theft will be processed by account type. If a full price M&I customer, the
District may discount the estimated amount of water stolen and charge the District’s
wholesale cost of water for the amount stolen. An estimate of the amount of water stolen
will be made by District staff using that customer’s usage history. Water sold to
agricultural customers;, SAWR, and Commercial Ag/Commercial Ag Domestic, is sold
at District cost so no discount may be applied. If the stolen water caused the customer’s
allocation bank to be adversely affected, the District will restore the estimated amount
stolen to the customer’s allocation bank. If the water theft resulted in an overuse penalty,
the District will credit the penalty to the customer for the estimated amount of water
stolen.

Water Stolen from District.

Any theft of water from the District will be reported to law
enforcement agencies. If the theft is due to meter tampering, the customer will be
charged a $250 fee for tampering with the meter plus time and materials to place the
meter back into proper position. If a water theft from the District due to meter tampering
occurs again on the same meter, the customer will be charged a $500 fee for tampering
and an item will be brought forward to the Board of Directors to consider discontinuance
of service. An estimate of the amount of water stolen will be calculated and billed to the
customer’s account. Collection of said fees are subject to all District regulations
regarding collection of past due accounts.

Sec. 21-10— SewerRates21.9 Volumetric Wastewater Charges.

SewerWastewater service charges are established upon each property
within the District that is connected to a sewer line of the District whether said premises
are occupied or unoccupied. Volumetric Wastewater Charges are applied to estimated
billable wastewater flows, which are based upon adjusted water deliveries. The charge
per killogallon of wastewater flow is shown below:

21-8

151



METER-SIZEUser Class EEXED-CHARGEVolumetric
Wastewater Charge
($/kgal)
%2-and-AllAg. Domestic $ 1612944
Commercial Ag. Domestic}? $ 24.01-9.44
+4”Residential (Single , Multi- $ 43759.44
family)
22Government $ 67429.37
32School $122.67- 9.37
42Church $201-60- 9.37
62Commercial — Low Strength* $398.91- 9.37
Commercial — Medium Strength* $ 11.57
Commercial — High Strength* $ 14.44

Appendix A to this Article provides commercial effluent classification.

For the purpose of determining the billable wastewater flows, water deliveries must be

converted to wastewater flows returned to the sewer system. To do this conversion, a
Return to Sewer Factor is applied. The Return to Sewer factor adjusts the water received
by the meter to the estimated flows from the residence or entity into the sewer system.
The Return to Sewer Factor applied to the different customer classes are shown below:

RTFSReturn to Sewer
BSER-CODECusomer Class Factor

Residential (Multi-Family-&-SER,
Single Family) 9075%
Non-Residential/Commercial 90%

Low / Medium / High 90%
Government

Low / Medium / High 90%
Schools 80%
Churches 80%

21-9

152



Special

Low / Medium / High 100%
Special 10% RTS (1-10%)

Low / Medium / High 10%
Special 20% RTS (11-20%)

Low / Medium / High 20%
Special 30% RTS (21-30%)

Low / Medium / High 30%
Special 40% RTS (31-40%)

Low / Medium / High 40%
Special 50% RTS (41-50%)

Low / Medium / High 50%
Special 60% RTS (51-60%)

Low / Medium / High 60%
Special 70% RTS (61-70%)

Low / Medium / High 70%
Special 80% RTS (71-80%)

Low / Medium / High 80%

Non-residential customers with higher outdoor are evaluated on a case by case basis.

For those Single Family Residences (D, LD, AB;-AT, CB), volumetric charges are
calculated as follows:

1. 90The average winter use is calculated based upon prior vear water deliveries that

include December, January and February. The average used for wastewater billing is
capped at 21.33 units.

75% of this water is assumed Returned-to-Sewer(RTS):to be returned to
sewer/billable flow.

The Volumetric Wastewater Charge ($/kgal) is applied to this flow.

Consumption analysis is performed annually. Appeal for consumption is available.
No prior history customer (new customer) will be placed at that customer class
median of 5.

.__Use must be > 0 unless customer is on standby.

A0 e T Beeed componeri-basedonpetersise oo chorte

N

el Pl ad

N

For those Multi-Family Residences (M), volumetric charges are calculated as follows:

7. The average winter use is calculated based upon prior year water deliveries that
include December, January and February.

8. 75% of this water is assumed to be returned to sewer/billable flow.

9. The Volumetric Wastewater Charge ($/kgal) is applied to this flow.

6-10. Consumption analysis is performed annually. Appeal for consumption is
available.

21-10

153



8:11. No prior history customer will-be-placed-at-that(new customer-class-median
eufseﬂtlry@tbr—F%LzG%é—l—?) w111 addressed on a case by case basis.

All other water customer classes (M;-G, C, A;,, AS, CA), with the exception of public
elementary and public junior high schools:

1. Monthly sewer bill based on actual water sold.

2. RTSThe Return to Sewer factor as-determined-by-customerelassapplied to determine
the billable flow. Appeals for irrigation and/or water usage which does not get
returned to the sewer is available.

3. Customer is classified as high, medium, or low strength (based upon BOD and SS).

See attached Appendlx A Appeal for strength class1ﬁcat10n is avallable

DNDND

. The apphcable Wastewater Volumetnc Charge is apphed to the blllable flow.

4.

Public elementary and public junior high schools:

1. Monthly sewer bill based on per person, per month charge.

2. The public elementary and / or public junior high school district to provide a report
each October that documents the number of students and faculty at each site.

3. EX2016-17CY 2018 public elementary school rate is $1.0611 per persenstudent and
$1.62 per staff, per month.

4. EY-20616-17CY 2018 public junior high school and administrative offices rate is
$1.5562 per person, per month.

5. Rates to be increased by the overall percentage ehangeincrease in the-wastewater
budgetrevenues each year.

Sec. —21.10 Monthly Fixed Wastewater Charge.

For each sewer account, Effective January 1., 2018, the Monthly Fixed
Wastewater Charge shall be $9.28 per month per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).
EDUs will be calculated per Administrative Code Sections 20.7.2, 20.7.3. or 20.7 4.

Sec. 21.10.1 Wastewater Capital Improvement Charge.

For each sewer-account, an additional $+6-8411.16 per month per
Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) shall be added as a Wastewater Capital Improvement
Charge beginning EY-2046-17Effective January 1, 2018. This charge is dedicated to
Wastewater Debt Service and Wastewater Capital Improvements. The Wastewater

21-11

154



Capital Improvement Charge has been implemented to partially fund the debt service
payments for upgrades to the Wastewater Treatment Plant. EDUs will be calculated per
Administrative Code Sections 20.7.2, 20.7.3, or 20.7.4. This Capital Improvement
Charge will be adjusted annually based on the ENR (Engineering News Record)
Construction Cost Index (CCI) of February-, not to exceed 10%. Staff will report back to
the Board of Directors every five (5) years with analysis of its necessity. —The Capital
Improvement Charge will only be used to fund capital improvement projects or debt
service for capital improvement projects. Revenue from the Capital Improvement Charge
will not be used to fund Operating Costs.

21-12

155



ARTICLE 21

Sec. 21.1 —Rev. 7/02

Sec. 21.2-21.8.2 — Rev. 9/96

Sec. 21.3 — Rev. 10/96

Sec. 21.4 & 21.9 — Rev. 6/97
Sec. 21.4 —Rev 7/02

Sec. 21.9 — Rev. 10/97

Sec. 21.9 — Rev. 6/04

Sec. 21.9 — Rev. 1/05

Sec. 21.1,21.3,21.4,21.9 — Rev.
6/05

Sec.21.1,21.2,21.4, &21.9—
Rev. 6/06

Sec. 21.9, Flat Rate + Metered
Flow — Rev. 7/06

Sec. 21.9 (Flat Rate classification)
—Rev. 10/06

Sec. 21.4 (construction meters),
Sec. 21.5 & Sec. 21.6 — Rev.
12/06

Sec. 21.5 - Rev. 3/07

Sec. Sec. 21.1,21.2,21.4, 21.10,
21.10.1-Rev. 6/07

Sec. 21.5 — Added 6/07

Sec. 21.10.2 — Deleted 6/07

Sec. 21.11 — Added 10/07

Sec. 21.4.1 — Added 12/07; Sec.
21.7 renamed and addition of
flow restrictors — Rev. 12/07

Sec. 21.1,21.2,21.4,21.5, 21.7,
21.10, and 21.11 — Rev. 6/08
Sec. 21.1,21.2,21.4,21.4.1,
21.4.2 (added), 21.5, 21.7,21.10
(new table), 21.10.1, - Rev. 6/09
Sec. 21.4,21.10 —Rev. 12/09
Sec. 21.6,21.9 — Rev. 5/10

Sec. 21.1,21.2,21.4,214.1,
21.4.2,21.5,21.10,21.10.1 —
Rev. 6/10

Sec. 21.9.1 (added) — Rev. 9/10
Sec. 21.1,21.4,21.4.1,21.4.2,
21.5,21.10,21.10.1 - Rev. 6/11
Sec. 21.1,21.2,21.4,21.5,21.10,
21.10.1 — Rev. 6/12

Sec. 21.1,21.2,21.4,21.5, 21.10,
21.10.1 — Rev. 6/13

Sec. 12,1,21.2,21.4,21.5,21.9.1,
21.10,21.10.1 — Rev. 6/14

Sec. 21.1,21.2,21.5—Rev. 1/15
Sec. 21.1,21.2,21.3,21.4,214.2,
21.5,21.10,21.10.1 Rev 6/15
Sec. 21,21.1 —Rev. 11/15

Secs. 21,21.2,21.4,21.5,21.7,
21.10,21.10.1 —Rev. 7/16

Secs. 21,21.1 - Rev. 12/16

All Secs. — Rev. 12/17

21-13

156



Article 26. Water Shortage Response Program.

Sec. 26.1 Declaration of Policy.

California Water Code Sections 375 et seq. permit public entities
which supply water at retail to adopt and enforce a water conservation program to reduce
the quantity of water used by the people therein for the purpose of conserving the water
supplies of such public entity. The Board of Directors hereby establishes a
comprehensive water conservation program pursuant to California Water Code Sections
375 et seq., based upon the need to conserve water supplies and to avoid or minimize the
effects of any future shortage.

Sec. 26.1.1 TSAWR Reduction Program.

The San Diego County Water Authority Transitional Special
Agricultural Water Program (TSAWR) provides discounted wholesale supply and
treatment pricing for qualified agricultural users within its service area on the basis that
participants receive non-firm, interruptible supply up to the maximum allowed under
Article 162 of the SDCWA Administrative Code. During periods of water shortages
imposed by the Metropolitan Water District (MWD), those customers who are
participating in the TSAWR shall abide by the conditions set forth by SDCWA for
implementation of the TSAWR Reduction Program. TSAWR customers shall be notified
of impending drought restrictions within (14) days of the Board’s declaration of a water
shortage. Administration of the TSAWR Reduction Plan is incorporated by reference in
Article 19 of this Administrative Code.

Sec. 26.1.2 TSAWR Reduction Compliance.

When SDCWA imposes a mandatory use reduction, TSAWR
customers must be prepared to reduce consumption by complying with a water allocation,
or water use target. Water consumed during each billing period will be compared to the
assigned target. Any use below the target will be accumulated and carried forward. The
customer’s cumulative use will be compared with the cumulative target, and any total
usage above the target will be billed at the “above average” rates. This cumulative
comparison will continue for the duration of the fiscal year. Below target usage “credits”
will be carried forward until the cumulative target is exceeded, at which time, all
cumulative “over target” use will be billed at the “above target” rates. The cumulative
comparison process will start over in the next fiscal year.

Upon written request, customers shall reserve the right to “group”
accounts and adjust, or “smooth”, alloctations to facilitate compliance.

In accordance with the MWD Water Supply Allocation Plan
(WSAP), any person that uses water in excess of the allocation shall be subject to a
penalty, structured as an “Allocation Surcharge”. Currently, the “Allocation Surcharge”
for each unit of usage greater than the allocation but less than 115% of the allocation is
$1,480 per acre-foot, and the penalty for each unit of water in excess of 115% of the
allocation is $2,960 per acre-foot. The Penalty Rate is charged over and above the water
rates for the use of water.

26-1

157



Sec. 26.2 Findings.

The Board of Directors finds and determines that a water shortage
could exist as a result of a general regional water supply shortage due to increased
demand or limited supplies.

The Board of Directors also finds and determines that the conditions prevailing in the
coastal San Diego County area require that the water resources available be put to
maximum beneficial use to the extent to which they are capable, and that the waste or
unreasonable use, or unreasonable method of use, of water be prevented and that the
conservation of such water encouraged with a view to the maximum reasonable and
beneficial use thereof in the interests of the people of the Fallbrook Public Utility District
and for the public welfare.

NORMAL CONDITIONS. The District’s service area is in a semi-arid climate. Good
water management practices dictate that water be used wisely and not wasted at any time.
Customers are requested to follow the guidelines presented in Sec. 26.8.1. Under Normal
Conditions, the District will provide public education and outreach efforts to emphasize
public awareness of the need to always voluntarily use water wisely and practice water
conservation measures.

Sec. 26.3 Application.

The provisions of this Administrative Code shall apply to all water
served to persons, customers, and property by the Fallbrook Public Utility District.

Sec. 26.4 Determination and Declaration by General Manager of Water
Supply Conditions.

Based on information provided by the District's wholesale water
agency of water availability supplies, the Fallbrook Public Utility District General
Manager (or in the General Manager's absence his designee) is hereby authorized and
directed to implement the provisions of this Administrative Code. Additionally, the
General Manager (or in the General Manager's absence, his designee) is hereby
authorized to make minor and limited exceptions to prevent undue hardship or
unreasonable restrictions, provided that water shall not be wasted or used unreasonably
and the purpose of this Administrative Code can be accomplished. Any such exceptions
shall be reported to the Board of Directors at the next meeting.

The General Manager (or in the General Manager’s absence his designee) shall from time
to time based upon all available data determine and declare whether the District’s water
supply is in the following condition and post a notice thereof in the District’s lobby and
publish said notice in the local newspaper:

WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 1 — WATER SHORTAGE WATCH
CONDITION. This level applies when the San Diego County Water Authority notifies
its member agencies that due to water shortage or other supply reductions, there is a
reasonable probability there will be supply shortages and that a consumer demand
reduction of up to 10 percent is required in order to ensure that sufficient supplies will be
available to meet anticipated demands. The General Manager shall declare the existence
of a Water Shortage Response Level 1 condition and take action to implement the Level

1 conservation practices identified in Sec. 26.8.2. The District will suspend consideration
of annexations to its service area.

26-2

158



The Board of Directors shall from time to time based upon all available data determine
and declare whether the District’s water supply is in one of the following conditions and
post a notice thereof in the District’s lobby and publish said notice in the local
newspaper:

WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 2 - WATER SHORTAGE ALERT
CONDITION. This level applies when the San Diego County Water Authority notifies
its member agencies that due to cutbacks caused by water shortages or other reduction in
supplies, a consumer demand reduction of up to 20 percent is required in order to have
sufficient supplies available to meet anticipated demands. The Board of Directors shall
declare the existence of a Water Shortage Response Level 2 condition and implement the
mandatory Level 2 conservation measures identified in Sec. 26.8.3. The District will
suspend consideration of annexations to its service.

WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 3 — WATER SHORTAGE CRITICAL
CONDITION. This level applies when the San Diego County Water Authority notifies
its member agencies that due to increasing cutbacks caused by water shortages or other
reduction of supplies, a consumer demand reduction of up to 40 percent is required in
order to have sufficient supplies available to meet anticipated demands. The Board of
Directors shall declare the existence of a Water Shortage Response Level 3 condition and
implement the Level 3 conservation measures identified in Sec. 26.8.4. The District will
suspend consideration of annexations to its service area and no new potable water service
shall be provided and no statements of immediate ability to serve or provide potable
water service shall be issued.

WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 4 —- DROUGHT EMERGENCY
CONDITION. This level applies when the San Diego County Water Authority Board of
Directors declares a water shortage emergency pursuant to California Water Code
Section 350 and notifies its member agencies that Level 4 requires a demand reduction of
more than 40% in order for the District to have maximum supplies available to meet
anticipated demands. The District shall declare a Water Shortage Emergency in the
manner and on the grounds provided in California Water Code Section 350.

The General Manager is authorized to require submission of water use curtailment plans
from those users having the largest effect on overall District consumption in order to
protect the minimum supplies necessary to provide for public health, sanitation, and fire
protection. Failure to provide curtailment plans in a timely manner or plans that do not
meet the required cutbacks shall authorize the District to install flow restrictors at the
meter or termination of service.

Sec. 26.5 Implementation of Emergency Water Management Program.

California Water Code Sections 375 et seq. permit public entities
which supply water at retail to adopt and enforce a water conservation program to reduce
the quantity of water used by the people therein for the purpose of conserving the water
supplies of such public entity.

At such time when the Board of Directors of the District finds and determines that by
reason of an anticipated general water supply shortage, inadequate San Diego County
Water Authority distribution facilities, or the prospect of a major failure of the supply and
distribution facilities of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California exists, the
Board may adopt and enforce a water conservation program to reduce the quantity of
water used by the people therein for the purpose of conserving the water supplies of such
public entity. Upon adoption of a water conservation program, the district shall provide

26-3

159



notice to customers within (14) days of the Board’s declaration of a water shortage. In
addition, the Board may also find and determine that the conditions prevailing in the
coastal San Diego county area require that the water resources available be put to
maximum beneficial use to the extent to which they are capable, and that the waste or
unreasonable use, or unreasonable method of use, of water be prevented and that the
conservation of such water encouraged with a view to the maximum reasonable and
beneficial use thereof in the interests of the people within the Fallbrook Public Utility
District service area and for the public welfare.

The General Manager shall determine the extent of the emergency conservation required
in order for the District to prudently plan for and supply water to its customers.
Thereafter, the General Manager may order that the Emergency Water Management
Program be implemented or terminated in accordance with the applicable provisions of
this Article of the Administrative Code. The declaration of a water emergency shall be
made by public announcement and notice shall be published a minimum of three (3)
consecutive times in a newspaper of general circulation and shall become effective
immediately upon announcement.

The declaration shall be reported to the Board of Directors at its next regular meeting.
The Board of Directors shall thereupon ratify the declaration or rescind the declaration,
and may adopt such additional rules and regulations to limit water use during the
emergency as it deems appropriate.

Sec. 26.6 Duration of Declaration.

As soon as a particular condition is declared to exist, the water
conservation measures provided for herein for that condition shall apply to all District
water service until a different condition is declared.

Sec. 26.7 Mandatory and Discretionary Use of Recycled Water.

Nothing in this Administrative Code shall prohibit or limit the use
of recycled water for any purposes listed herein. No customer of the District shall make,
cause, use or permit the use of potable water supplied by the District for construction
grading on major subdivisions, paved surface cleaning, or greenbelt uses, including, but
not limited to, cemeteries, playing fields, parks, and highway landscaped areas, when,
following notice and a hearing, the District finds that recycled water is available under
the following conditions:

1. The recycled water is of adequate quality and is available for use.

2. The recycled water may be furnished to such areas at a reasonable cost, equal to
or less than the cost of supplying potable domestic water.

3. The State Department of Health Services has determined that such use would not
be detrimental to public health.

4. The use of recycled water will not adversely affect downstream water rights, and
will not degrade water quality.

26-4

160



Sec. 26.8 Water Conservation Stages.

Sec. 26.8.1 NORMAL CONDITIONS.

During Normal Conditions, customers are asked to use water

wisely and to practice water conservation measures so that water is not wasted.

No water furnished by the District will be wasted. All water withdrawn from District
facilities shall be put to reasonable beneficial use. District water users shall comply with
the following water use prohibitions and conservation measures at all times:

1.

Do not wash down paved surfaces, including but not limited to sidewalks,
driveways, parking lots, tennis courts, or patios, except when it is necessary to
alleviate safety or sanitation hazards.

Eliminate water waste resulting from inefficient landscape irrigation, such as
runoff, low head drainage, or overspray, etc. Similarly, stop water flows onto non-
targeted areas, such as adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, hardscapes,
roadways, or structures.

Irrigate residential and commercial landscape before 10 a.m. and after 6 p.m.
only.

Use a hand-held hose equipped with a positive shut-off nozzle or bucket to water
landscaped areas, including trees and shrubs located on residential and
commercial properties that are not irrigated by a landscape irrigation system.

Irrigate nursery and commercial grower’s products before 10 a.m. and after 6 p.m.
only. Watering is permitted at any time with a hand-held hose equipped with a
positive shut-off nozzle, a bucket, or when a drip/micro-irrigation system/
equipment is used. Irrigation of nursery propagation beds is permitted at any time.
Watering of livestock is permitted at any time.

Use re-circulated water to operate ornamental fountains.

Wash vehicles using a bucket and a hand-held hose with positive shut-off nozzle,
mobile high pressure/low volume wash system, or at a commercial site that re-
circulates (reclaims) water on-site. Avoid washing during hot conditions when

additional water is required due to evaporation.

The irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf on public street medians is
prohibited.

The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes during or within 48 hours
of measurable rainfall is prohibited

26-5

161



10.

11.

12.

13-

14.

The irrigation with potable water of landscapes outside of newly constructed
homes and buildings in a manner inconsistent with regulations or other
requirements established by the County of San Diego’s Landscape Ordinance.

Serve and refill water in restaurants and other food service establishments only
upon request.

Offer guests in hotels, motels, and other commercial lodging establishments the
option of not laundering towels and linens daily.

Repair all water leaks within five (5) days of notification by the Fallbrook Public
Utility District unless other arrangements are made with the General Manager.

Use recycled or non-potable water for construction purposes when available.

Sec. 26.8.2 WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 1 — WATER
SHORTAGE WATCH CONDITION.

During a Level 1 Water Shortage Watch condition, the District will increase its public
education and outreach efforts to emphasize increased public awareness of the need to
implement water conservation practices.

All persons using District water shall comply with Normal Conditions water conservation

practices during a Level 1 Water Shortage Watch, as identified in Sec. 26.8.12.

Upon declaration of a Level 1 Water Shortage Watch condition, the District will suspend

consideration of annexations to its service area except under the following circumstances:

1.

The applicant provides substantial evidence of an enforceable commitment that
water demands for the project will be offset prior to the provision of a new water
meter(s) to the satisfaction of Fallbrook Public Utility District.

Sec. 26.8.3 WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 2 - WATER
SHORTAGE ALERT CONDITION.

During a Level 2 Water Shortage Alert condition, all persons using District water shall
comply with Normal and Level 1 Water Shortage Watch water conservation practices
during a Level 2 Water Shortage Alert, as identified in Sec. 26.8.12 and 26.8.23, and
shall also comply with the following additional conservation measures:

1.

During the months of June through October, limit residential and commercial
landscape irrigation to no more than two (2) days per week on a schedule
established by the General Manager and posted by the Fallbrook Public Utility
District. During the months of November through May, landscape irrigation is
limited to no more than once per week on a schedule established by the General
Manager and posted by the Fallbrook Public Utility District. During extreme
Santa Ana conditions (temperature > 80 and easterly winds > 20 mph), one
additional day per week of watering is allowed. This section shall not apply to
commercial growers or nurseries. This provision does not apply to landscape
irrigation systems using water efficient devices, including but not limited

26-6

162



to: weather based controllers, drip/micro-irrigation systems and stream rotor
sprinklers.

2. Limit lawn watering and landscape irrigation using sprinklers to no more than ten
(10) minutes per watering station per assigned day. This provision does not apply
to landscape irrigation systems using water efficient devices, including but not
limited to: weather based controllers, drip/micro-irrigation systems and stream
rotor sprinklers.

3. Water landscaped areas, including trees and shrubs located on residential and
commercial properties, and not irrigated by a landscape irrigation system
governed by section 5 (b) (1), on the same schedule set forth in section 5 (b) (1)
by using a bucket, hand-held hose with a positive shut-off nozzle, or low-volume
non-spray irrigation.

4, Repair all leaks within seventy-two (72) hours of notification by the Fallbrook
Public Utility District unless other arrangements are made with the General
Manager.

For Levels 2 and above, the District may establish a water allocation for property served
by the Fallbrook Public Utility District using a method that does not penalize persons for
the implementation of conservation methods or the installation of water saving devices
and allows for the bankmg and subsequent use of unused allocatlons Fer—demesﬁe—and

26-7

163



If the District establishes a water allocation it shall provide notice of the allocation within
(14) days of its establishment by including it in the regular billing statement for the fee or
charge or by any other mailing to the address to which the District customarily mails the
billing statement for fees or charges for ongoing water service. The following customer
classes are subject to allocations: Commercial Agriculture (CA), Commercial Agriculture
Domestic (CB), Commercial (C), Government (G), and Irrigation (I). Following the
effective date of the water allocation as established by the District, any person that uses
water in excess of the allocation shall be subject to a penalty in the amount of 1.5 times
the Base Rate, for each unit of usage greater than the allocation. The penalty for excess
water usage shall be cumulative to any other remedy or penalty that may be imposed for
violation of this ordinance.

This provision shall not be construed to preclude the resetting or turn-on of meters to
provide continuation of water service or to restore service that has been interrupted for a
period of one year or less.

Sec. 26.8.4 WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 3 — WATER
SHORTAGE CRITICAL CONDITION.

During a Level 3 Water Shortage Critical condition, all persons
using District water shall comply with Normal, Level 1 Water Shortage Watch and Level
2 Water Shortage Alert water conservation practices during a Level 3 Water Shortage
Critical condition and shall also comply with the following additional mandatory
conservation measures:

1. During the months of June through October, limit residential and commercial
landscape irrigation to no more than two (2) assigned days per week on a schedule
established by the General Manager and posted by the Fallbrook Public Utility
District. This section shall not apply to commercial growers or nurseries.

2. Water landscaped areas, including trees and shrubs located on residential and
commercial properties, and not irrigated by a landscape irrigation system

26-8

164



governed by section 6 (b) (1), on the same schedule set forth in section 6 (b) (1)
by using a bucket, hand-held hose with a positive shut-off nozzle, or low-volume
non-spray irrigation.

3. Stop filling or re-filling ornamental lakes or ponds, except to the extend needed to
sustain aquatic life, provided that such animals are of significant value and have
been actively managed within the water feature prior to declaration of a drought
response level under this ordinance.

4. Stop washing vehicles except at commercial carwashes that recirculate water, or
by high pressure/low volume wash systems.

5. Repair all leaks within forty-eight (48) hours of notification by the Fallbrook
Public Utility District unless other arrangements are made with the General
Manager.

Sec. 26.8.5 WATER SHORTAGE RESPONSE LEVEL 4 — WATER
SHORTAGE EMERGENCY CONDITION.

During a Level 4 Water Shortage Emergency condition, all persons
using District water shall comply with Normal, Level 1 Water Shortage Watch, Level 2
Water Shortage Alert, and Level 3 Water Shortage Critical water conservation practices
during a Level 4 Water Shortage Emergency and shall also comply with the following
additional mandatory conservation measures:

1. Stop all landscape irrigation, except crops and landscape products of commercial
growers and nurseries. This restriction shall not apply to the following categories
of use unless the Fallbrook Public Utility District has determined that recycled
water is available and may be lawfully applied to the use.

A. Maintenance of trees and shrubs that are watered on the same schedule set
forth in section 6 (b) (1) by using a bucket, hand-held hose with a positive
shut-off nozzle, or low-volume non-spray irrigation;

B. Maintenance of existing landscaping necessary for fire protection as
specified by the Fire Marshal of the local fire protection Fallbrook Public
Utility District having jurisdiction over the property to be irrigated;

C. Maintenance of existing landscaping for erosion control;

D. Maintenance of plant materials identified to be rare or essential to the well
being of rare animals;

E. Maintenance of landscaping within active public parks and playing fields,
day care centers, school grounds, cemeteries, and golf course greens,
provided that such irrigation does not exceed two (2) days per week
according to the schedule established under section 6 (b) (1);

26-9

165



F. Watering of livestock; and

G. Public works projects and actively irrigated environmental mitigation
projects.

2. Repair all water leaks within twenty-four (24) hours of notification by the
Fallbrook Public Utility District unless other arrangements are made with the
General Manager.

The District may establish a water allocation for property served by the District.
If the District establishes a water allocation it shall provide notice of the
allocation by including it in the regular billing statement for the fee or charge or
by any other mailing to the address to which the District customarily mails the
billing statement for fees or charges for ongoing water service. Following the
effective date of the water allocation as established by the District, any person that
uses water in excess of the allocation shall be subject to a penalty in the amount
1.5 times the Base Rate, for each unit of usage greater than the allocation. The
penalty for excess water usage shall be cumulative to any other remedy or penalty
that may be imposed for violation of this ordinance.

3. (TSAWR) customers as defined in the San Diego County Water Authority
(SDCWA) Administrative Code must abide by any TSAWR restrictions that may
be in place.

Water consumed during each billing period will be compared to the assigned
target. Any use below the target will be accumulated and carried forward. The
customer’s cumulative use will be compared with the cumulative target, and any
total usage above the target will be billed at the “above target” rates. This
cumulative comparison will continue for the duration of the fiscal year. Below
target usage “credits” will be carried forward until the cumulative target is
exceeded, at which time, all cumulative “over target” use will be billed at the
“above target” rates and the cumulative comparison process will start over in the
next fiscal year.

Sec. 26.8.6  Drought Rates
Drought Rates would be implemented during declaration of Levels 1. 2. 3 and 4 described above.
Drought Rates would only be in effect during declared drought Levels 1-4. The effective January
1. 2018 the Drought Rates during drought Levels 1-4 are set forth in the tables below:

2018 Monthly Drought Rates by Drought Levels ($/kgal

Customer Class Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 and 4
(See Article 21 for class definitions)

Residential (D, LD,M)

Tier 1 $5.91 $6.16 $6.92
Tier 2 $6.00 $6.26 $7.03
Tier 3 $7.30 $7.62 $8.56

| Ag. Domestic (AT)

26-10

166



Tier 1 $5.91 $6.16 $6.92
Tier 2* $4.83 $4.83 $4.83
Tier 3* $4.17 $4.17 $4.17
Commercial Domestic Ag. (CB)
Tier 1 $5.91 $6.16 $6.92
Tier 2 $5.08 $5.30 $5.95
| Agriculture TSAWR (AS)* $4.17 $4.17 $4.17
Commercial Ag (CB) $5.08 $5.30 $5.95
Commercial (C) $6.08 $6.35 $7.13
Irrigation Only (I) $6.07 $6.34 $7.12
Government (G) $5.99 $6.25 $7.02

*TSAWR customers must implement cuts to water use during drought restrictions or face
penalties. Program compliance is discussed above in Section 26.1.2.

Sec. 26.9 Implementation of Conservation Levels.

The General Manager shall monitor the projected supply and
demand for water by its customers on a daily basis. The General Manager shall
determine the extent of the conservation required through the implementation and/or
termination of particular conservation stages in order for the District to prudently plan for
and supply water to its customers. Thereafter, the General Manager may order or
recommend to the Board of Directors that the appropriate level of water conservation be
implemented or terminated in accordance with the applicable provision of this
Administrative Code. The declaration of any level beyond Water Shortage Response
Level 1shall be made by public announce-ment and notice shall be published a minimum
of three (3) consecutive times in a newspaper of general circulation. The level designated
shall become effective immediately upon announcement. The declaration of any level
beyond Water Shortage Response Level 1 shall be by action of the Board of Directors.

Sec. 26.10 Variances.

If, due to unique circumstances, a specific requirement of this
Article of the Administrative Code would result in undue hardship to a person using
District water or to property upon which the District water is used, that is
disproportionate to the impacts to the District water users generally or to similar property
or classes of water uses, then the person may apply for a variance to the requirements as
provided in this section.

The variance may be granted or conditionally granted, only upon a written

finding of the existence of facts demonstrating an undue hardship to a person using
District water or to property upon with the District water is used, that is disproportionate
to the impacts to the District water users generally or to similar property or classes of
water use due to specific and unique circumstances of the user or the user’s property.

A completed appeal shall describe the specific reason(s) the allocation is causing undue
hardship, including the following:

26-11

167



1. Commercial buildings that were empty or partially occupied during base period
but are now occupied to a greater degree and require more water.

2. A grove with new trees planted a year before the base period began that, in the
third year of growth, would need additional water.

3. Agricultural land used for annual crops that had abnormally low irrigation
application during the base year.

4. An unexpected emergency line break, or equipment malfunction that has since
been fixed.

5. Loss or reduction of an alternative water source, such as a well or pond.

6. Other, with a detailed description.

Sec. 26.10.1 Application.

Application for a variance shall be a form prescribed by Fallbrook
Public Utility District.

Sec. 26.10.2  Supporting Documentation.

The application shall be accompanied by photographs, maps,
drawings, and other information, including a written statement of the applicant.

Sec. 26.10.3 Required Findings for Variance.

An application for a variance shall be denied unless the approving
authority finds, based on the information provided in the application, supporting
documents, or such additional information as may be requested, and on water use
information for the property as shown by the records of the Fallbrook Public Utility
District, all of the following:

A. That the variance does not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent with
the limitations upon other Fallbrook Public Utility District customers.

B. That because of special circumstances applicable to the property or its use, the
strict application of this ordinance would have a disproportionate impact on the
property or use that exceeds the impacts to customers generally.

C. That the authorizing of such variance will not be of substantial detriment to
adjacent properties, and will not materially affect the ability of the Fallbrook

Public Utility District to effectuate the purpose of this chapter and will not be
detrimental to the public interest.

26-12

168



D. That the condition or situation of the subject property or the intended use of the
property for which the variance is sought is not common, recurrent or general in
nature.

Sec. 26.10.4. Approval Authority.

The General Manager or his/her designee shall exercise approval
authority and act upon any completed application no later than 20 days after submittal
and may approve, conditionally approve, or deny the variance. The applicant requesting
the variance shall be promptly notified in writing of any action taken. Unless specified
otherwise at the time a variance is approved, the variance applies to the subject property
during the term of the mandatory drought response.

Sec. 26.10.5 Appeals to Fallbrook Public Utility District Board of Directors.

An applicant may appeal a decision or condition of the General
Manager on a variance application to the Fallbrook Public Utility District Board of
Directors within 10 days of the written decision upon written request for a hearing. The
request shall state the grounds for the appeal. Any determination not appealed within ten
(10) days is final. At a public meeting, the Fallbrook Public Utility District Board of
Directors shall act as the approval authority and review the appeal de novo by following
the regular variance procedure. The decision of the Fallbrook Public Utility District
Board of Directors is final.

26-13

169



ARTICLE 26

Sec. 26.6 — Rev.
7/97

Sec. 26.4, Sec.
26.5, Sec.
26.8.2 —Rev.
10/07

Article 26
revised in its
entirety — 6/08
Sec. 26.8.3,
26.9, 26.10,
26.10.1,
26.10.2,
26.10.3,
26.10.4,
26.10.5, and
addition of
Domestic Class
and Multi-Unit
Class rates—
Rev. 6/09

Sec. 26.8.3 —
Rev. 10/09
Sec. 26.8.3 —
Rev. 5/11

Sec. 26.8.3 —
Rev. 8/14

Sec. 26.11 —
Rev 6/15

0,

Rev. 3/16

Secs. 26.8.1,
26.8.3 — Rev.
6/16

Secs. 26.8.2
26.8.3,26.8.6 —
Rev. 12/17

26-14

170



MEMO
TO: Board of Directors ,
FROM: Todd Lange, System Service Supervisor ’Q
DATE: December 11, 2017

SUBJECT: AMI Meter Service Replacement Program, Year 3

Purpose

To request board approval to purchase required meters and associated equipment to
complete year three of a five-year program to transition for existing drive-by radio-read
Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) meters to fixed network Advanced Metering
Infrastructure (AMI) meters that allow real-time tracking and monitoring of water use.

Summary

In July 2015, the Board approved starting a five-year program to replace existing drive-
by Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) meters and associated radio-based endpoints
(ERT) that are exceeding their reliable lifespan and recommended replacement
frequency with Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) meters that allow for real-time
tracking. The replacement of these meters ensures that the District continues to have
accurate readings of water usage by customers and also allows the District to utilize
newer meter technology with real-time tracking, which will provide additional tools to
customers along with the implementation of Water Smart software to track water use
and identify leaks.

Meter Replacement

The District budget includes costs to transition from the drive-by meters to a real-time
fixed network for the vast majority of District customers over by the end of FY 2020-21.
Currently, 3,576 meters out of 9,600 have been replaced. Meter inventory is low, and it
is necessary to order new meters to maintain the schedule to complete the repla<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>